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Osprey Holdco Limited
Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial staterments of Osprey Holdeo Limited
{the “Campany’) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities, business review and future developments

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {together ‘the Group’} during the year were water
supply, treatment and distribution; sewage callection and treatment; and retail services to water and water
recycling customers. The Group's principal business is Anglian Water Services Limited ('Anglian Water’). The
Directors expect the activities as detailed in the Strategic Report to continue for the foreseeable future
without material change. The information that fulfils the requirement of the Strategic Report, including the
Company’s financial risk management objectives, is set out on pages 6 to 71

Group results and returns to shareholders

The income statement on page 72 shows the Group's resuits for the year Dividends of £91.8 million (2022:
Enit) were paid during the year. The Directors are not recommending payment of a final dividend.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report, unless otherwise stated, are set
cut below.

Jahn Hirst

Steve Buck

Peter Simpsan

jeremy Aflalo appointed 21 july 2022
Jjohn Barry

james Bryce

Deepu Chintamanent appointed 23 March 2023

trina Luckey resigned 21 july 2022
Niall amills

Alexandros Nassuphis

Henrik Onarheim resigned 21 July 2022
Batiste Ogier

Luis Pisco
David Stirton

Duncan Symonds resigned 23 March 2023,

Ciaire Russell continued to sarve as Company Secretary throughout the year.

Directors' indemnities

During the 2022723 financial year and up until the date of the signing of the financial statements, the Group
has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for legal action
brought against its Directors. The Company has also provided an indemnity for its Directars, which is a
quatifying third-party indemnity provision for the purpose of section 234 {{2) — {6}) of the Companieas Act 2006
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Sharehaldecs
The sole shareholder of the Company is Anglian Water Group Limited.

At 31 March 2023 the following investor groups held unsecured lcan notes of £0.01 each in the Company:

Mumber of
loan notes
heid
CPP investment Board Private Holdings (6] Inc. * 15,229,224,556
First Sentier Investors 7,187,825 807
Platinum Atlas ZA 2014 Limited Partnership ** 7,715,399,959
Giobal InfraCo (HK} D. Limited *** 9,137,534,734
Carnylpdunum Investments Ltd 6,930,014,904

~ 46,200,000,000

* an indirect subsidiary of Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
** an affiliate of Infinity Investments S.A.
** an indirect subsidiary of [FM Investors

Political donations and expenditure
No political donations or expenditure were made during the year {2021/22: £nil).

Research and development
The Group has a cantinuing policy of undertaking market-facused research and development on process plant,
biosolids treatment, sewers and water supply networks, and other water and water recycling related matters.

Financial instruments disclosures
Details are included an pages 23-24 of the Strategic Repart and in note 21 of the financial statements.

Employees

The group keeps employees informed through a range of communication channels including the intranet,
weekly Newstream emails and the online emplayee newspaper Anglian Water News. The Group engages with
employees through three recognised trade unions. During the year, the Group broadened its Open House
forum from a group of elected employee representatives to a truly open forum in which all employees have
direct access to regular interactive sessions with the CEO and senior management.

Anglian Water welcomes job applications from all sectors of society and bases selectian decisions an
applicants’ skills, experience and competence for the role, embedding flexible working practices for anyone
with a disability, health condition or family responsibifities that affect how and when they work. In addition,
Anglian Water advertises on disability job boards and are a disability confident employer. Under the Anglian
\Water Supporting Attendance Policy we make reasonable adjustments for employees who are or become
disabled. In addition, the Group is committed ta maintaining high standards of accessibility and experience.
Therefore, the Group has extended our approach to reasonable adjustments to embrace not just disability, but

any special individual need or circumstance.
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Employees are offered the oppartunity to participate in the AWG Loyalty Savings Scheme. This scheme
enables employaes to save on a monthly basis and then potentially benefit from the financial performance of
the Group and the end of the three-year savings period.

Stakeholder engagement

Details of how Directors across the Group have engaged with customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders

including those representing communities and the environment, can be found in the section 172 statement on
pages 26-30.

Emissions

information relating to carbon emissions can be found on pages 63-66.

Health and safety

Information refating to health and safety can be found on pages 31-33.

Events occurring after the reporting period
There have been no events between the balance sheet date, and the date on which the financial statements

were approved by the Board, which would reguire adjustment te the financial statements ar any additional
disciosures.

Statemeit of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsibte far preparing the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financiat statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the Directors have elected to prepare the Group and parent company financial statements (in accordance with
section 474(1) of the Companies Act 2006) under international accounting standards which are adopted for
use within the United Kingdom by virtue of Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 2 of the International Accounting Standards
and European Public Limited-Liability Company (Amendment etc.} (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. The Group
financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the IASB and the Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK
adopted international accounting standards and as applied in accardance with the provisions of the
Campanies Act 2006. Under Company Law, the Directars must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. in preparing these financial statements, international
Accounting Standard 1 requires that the Directors:

«  properiy select and apply accounting policies;

«  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that praovides retevant, reliable.
comparable and understandable infarmation;
provide additionat disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable usars to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entity's financial position and financial performance; and
»  make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient te show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsihle for the inaintenance and integrity of the group’s website Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors section on page 1 confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge:

+ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with 1FRSs as adopted for
use within the United Kingdam, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Group and the Company; and

+ the Directors” Report and Strategic Report contained in the Annual Report include a fair review of the

development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and the Company,
together with a descriptiaon of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.
The Directors cansider that the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for sharehalders to assess the Group
and Company’'s performance, business model and strategy.

Statement of Directors’ disclosure of information to Auditor

in the case of each of the persons who are Directors at the time when the report is approved, the following

applies:

a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's Auditor is
unaware; and

b} he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himseif/herself aware of any retevant audit information and to estabiish that the Company's Auditar is

aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted 0 accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Auditor
The Auditor, Deloitte LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and are deemed to be

reappointed.
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Geing concern
The Directars believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Group has sufficient resources to continue in
aperational existence for the foreseeabte future and, therefore, consider it appropriate to adopt the going

concern basis in preparing the 2023 financial statements. Further details of this review can be found on pages
80-81.

By ¢order of the Board

Claire Russell/

Company Secretary
13 juty 2023

Registered Office: Lancaster House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park,
Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE29 6XU

Registered in England and Wales No. 05915869



Osprey Holdco Limited

Strategic report
for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present the strategic report of the Osprey Haoldco Limited {“the Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2023. This strategic repert shouid be read in conjunction with the strategic repart of Anglian Water
Services Limited, which does not form part of this repart, which can be faund at
https://www.angiianwater.co.uk/about-us/our-reports/ and provides a more detailed insight into the
reguiated business.

Group overview

Osprey Holdco Limited’s principal business is Anglian Water Services Limited {'Anglian Water'}, the Group’'s
regulated water and sewerage company, which supplies water and water recycling services to almost seven
milfion customers in the East of England and Hartlepooi.

The Group also includes Anglian Venture Holdings, which comprises:

« Alpheus Environmental Limited ~ operates industrial and commercial wastewatar ireatment warks in
the UK,

> Ceitic Anglian Water Limited ~ operates water and wastewater treatment works in the Republic of
Ireland,

» Tide Services Limited — operates property conveyancing, residential insurances and the provision of
web hosted information services for utilities on pehaif of other group companies,

= Wave Ltd — a 50:50 joint venture with Northumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water services to
non-household customers in the UK,

= OHL Property Holdings Limited - oversees the construction of a new water recycling centre, and

+  OHL Piper Limited — a property rental business

Financial and Operational Highlights
Chigf Enecutive, Patar Simpson, tommantea

“It has been a challenging year following extreme weather, a cost of living crisis, record inflation and operating
in the public eye with increasing concern over the impact of poilutions and the need to upgrade aging
Victorian water and sewage infrastructure.

“Qur historic investment in leakage, where we have again improved on last year’s industry-leading position,
meant we kept water flowing, avoided a hosepipe ban and grotected the environment by keeping within the
amount we are licensed to safely take fram rivers and watercourses.

“We supported a record 334,000 vulnerable customers, moving them to a lower tariff and helping them with
wider benefits. We also managed our costs by hedging energy, and made a record investment of £725 million
in the region — significantly above our operating profit — which inciuded instailing a further 40 storm tanks;
increasing capacity and reducing average spills to the lowest level in the industry {15 versus 29 industry
average), ahead of the regulatory target.

“In achieving substantiaf smart meter coverage we have helped our customers better understand their water
usage and in turn reduce their consumption, conserving water as well as saving them money,

“"We still have a lot more to do. We didn’t achieve all of our Qutcome Delivery Incentive (ODI) targets last yaar,
largely as a result of extreme weather events, which has led to a year-end penalty of £22 million. We also
know more investment is needed in our infrastructure, which is why we have annocunced plans for two more
reservoirs and mare than £1 billion next AMP to upgrade our sewerage system”
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financial highlignts

——

2023 | 2022 | Change . Change
£m Em | £fm . % -

| Revenue i 1,549.6 | 1,452.8 | 96.8 6.7
| EBITDA! i 800.0 | 787.8 | 12.2 15
| Operating profit I 418.3 436.7 1‘ (18.4) {4.2) .
| Operating cash flow 1 7025 | 743.4 | {40.9) {5.5)

- ‘—%—____ I T 1
| Met dehbt befare derivatives® J 8,937.1 8,307.3 | 629.8 , 7.6
il _ 3

Financial measures ar metrics used i this report that are not defined by iFRS are glivrnatve performance measuras. The
Group uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide additional usaful information on the performance
and position of the Group. Since the Group defines 1ts own aitarnative performance measures, thasa might not be directly
comparable to other companies’ aiternative performance measures. These measures are not intended te be a substitute for,
or superior to, IFRS measurements and have been consistently spphied within 2ach year presented in these financial
statements,

1 EBITDA 15 an alternative performance measure as defined in note 32

2 Net debt excluding derivatives 15 an alternative performance measure as defined in note 13

0Dl penalty

+ Operations were significantly impacted by the extreme weather, including a heatwave and drought,
leading to record soil maisture deficits versus the rest of the country. These principalty affected three
ODIs - Burst Mains, Interruptions to Supply and Leakage, making up the majarity of the £22 million
penalty incurred. This year we are also in an QD! penalty on leakage, despite making further
reductions on our 2022 industry-leading leakage leveis.

« Action on cur Pollution Reduction Plan includes progress on the installation of 22,000 monitors to
provide coverage on 11,000km of high and medium-risk sewers (in addition ta event duration
monitors on storm overflows) as part of our Dynamic Sewer Visualisation initiative. This uses
predictive analytics and will provide greater insight on asset health. Avoidable biockages, 80% of which
are caused by fats and unflushable items in our small diameter sewers, are a primary focus. Our
partnership with Environmental Compliance and Services (ECAS) to reduce the impact of food serving
establishments has now been expanded to include domestic customers.

= While classified as ‘serious’ none of the poliution incidents resulted in the death of fish. Following
close review, we know the very narrow watercourses, owing to the heavily drained nature of cur
region, create an increased vuinarability to serious poitutions and this is samething we are looking to
address.

= Our self-reparting has continued to improve in 2022/23. importantly, we made gains on our
comparative pollutions performance but this has been offset by our decision to retrospectively report
incidents in light of our new manitoring capabilities. We are one of a few companies to take a national
lead on this.

Reverue up £96.8 million (6.7%])

+ The increase s, in part, as a result of prices set based on the November 2021 Consumer Price Index
{CPIH) inflation of 4.6%, and the impact of changes applied to our tariffs from our revised regulatory
settlement foilowing referrai to the Competitions and Markets Authority.
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EBITDA up £12.2 million {1.5%)

+ The revenue increase provides some protection against inflationary increases in our cost bhase.
However, as our revenue was set prior to the steep increase in inflation following the Russian invasion
of Ukraine (February 2022}, our costs rose at a greater rate creating a short-term timing mismatch.

* Inaddition, the Board agreed to invest £13.9 million with a view to maintaining our leading leakage
position as we sought to recover from the climate-related events in the year.

+  We have a rubust energy hedging programme which means our costs have not risen in line with
wholesale prices. We were fully hedged for the year to March 2023 in advance of the most significant
market increases. Our hedged prices are materially below the government cap and therefore, as with
furlough rates relief during the Covid pandemic, we have not had to make use of Government suppart
far energy price rises.

Operating profit down £18.4 million {4.2%)

» In addition to the items described above in relation to EBITDA, our depreciation charge increased in
the year reflecting the significant investment in our asset base — a record year of capex at £725 miilion
(E1.7 billion AMP to date), all centred on building a resilient business, delivering environmental
improvements, and supporting our customers.

Operating cash flow down £40.5 million (5.5%)

+  Qperating cash was impacted by the rate of increase in operating costs exceeding the rate of increase
in revenue due to the short-term timing mismatch of inflationary increases in revenue (as mentioned
in relation to EBITDA}. In addition, we saw short-term timing differances on working capitai and
additional pension contributions.

Net debt before derivatives up to £8,937.1 million {up 7.6%)

+« Net debt increased as a result of indexation combined with our continuing capital investment
programme.

Reconciliation of operating profit to statutory profit before tax

Year Year

ended Ended

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£m £m

Operating profit 4138.3 436.7
Net interest exciuding indexation {233.6) {272.5)
Indexation on debt {561.4} (255.0}
Fair value gains/{losses) on derivatives &45.3 111513
Share of joint ventures' loss after tax [0.4) (2.6}
Statutory profit/{loss) before tax 268.2 {208.5)
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s Statutory profit has increased by £478.0 million. A result of the fair value gam on derivatives which
was driven by the increase in interest rates which, despite the material movement in fair value, have
only partially reversed fair value losses experienced over the past 10-years in a falling interest rate
environment. This was partially offset by higher indexation costs an inflation-linked debt, consistent
with many other utility companies. In addition, net interest was down due to higher nterest inceme
and costs associated with the financial restructure in the prior year.

Treasury management

Group financing, including debt, interest costs and forelgn exchange, is substantially managed by a centrai
Treasury team reporting ta the Chief Financial Officar. Treasury palicy continues to be focused an the efficient
and effective management of cash and financial resgurces within the Group.

The activities of the central treasury function include the following:

«  ensure that tenders’ covenants are met;

»  secure funds through a balanced approach te financial markets and maturnities;

- rnanage interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;
» invest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financiai risk;

+  maintain an excelient reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies;

+  enhance control of financial resources; and

+  mornitor counterparty credit exposures.

The Group’s Board, through the Finance, Treasury and Energy Palicy Group, regularly reviews treasury policy.
grganisation and reporting to ensure continued effectiveness and relevance. Mare information on treasury
management can be found in note 21 of the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity

As at March 2023 Anglian Water Services has access to £375.0 milhon of undrawn facilities {(March 2022:
£600.0 million), to finance warking capita!l and capital expenditure requirements. In addition, it has access to a
further £375.0 million of liquidity facilities (March 2022: £375.0 million), consisting of £244.0 miflion to finance
debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and maintenance capital expenditure in
the event that the Company was in an Event of Defautt on its debt obligations and had insufficient alternative

sources of liquidity. See note 1 for further commentary over the liquidity requirements of the group in
relation to geing concern.

Osprey Acquisitions Limited Group’s borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of a syndicated £253.0 million
revalving loan facility for general corporate requirements provided by National Westminster Bank Plc and
syndicated to certain other banks.

Borrowing facilities at Aigrette Financing Limited Group camprises an additional £30.0 mullion revolving loan
facility provided by National Westminster Bank Pic.

See note 18 for other movements in net debt. The matunty profile of the Group’s barrowings is set out in note
20 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Capital structure

The Group's capital structure is targely driven by the rcquirements of Anglian Water’s capital expenditure
programme and the need to support Anglian Water’s investment grade credit status, which is met by a
combination of cash flow and debt issuance at the three levels of the Group structure with covenant tests at
the Anglian Water, Osprey Acguisitions Limited, and Aigrette Financing Limited levels. At 31 March 2023
Anglian Water's and Osprey Acquisitions’ net debt to capital vatue ratic {net debt as defined in the Common
Terms Agreement expressed as a percentage of Anglian Water’s regulated capital value) was 66 per cent
(2022: 65 per cent) and 75 per cent (2022: 76 per cent) respectively. At 31 March 2023 Aigrette Financing
Limited’s net debt to capital value ratio was 82 per cent (2022: 83 per cent). Aigrette Financing Limited’s net
debt is similarty defined to those of Anglian Water and Osprey Acguisitions, but Aigrette Financing Limited is

not subject to a Commaon Terms Agreement.
Borrowing covenants

The financing wilhin Angiian Water is secured under a Common Terms Agreement with investors. All cther
group borrowings are raised or guaranteed by the Company, Anglian Water {Osprey} Financing Plc, AWG
Parent Co Limited, AWG Group Limited, Aigrette Financing Limited and, in certain instances, subsidiary

companies.

The central Treasury function is responsible for monitoring ongoing compliance with the Group’s financial
covenants, which principally relate to Anglian Water’s, Osprey Acquisition’s, and Aigrette Financing Limited’s
ratio of net debt to Regulatory Capitat Value and interest coverage. At 31 March 2023, all group companies
were compliant with all covenants.

{nterest rates

The Group’s policy, as agreed by the Board, is to achieve an efficient mix of funding at fixed rates of interest,
floating rates of interest and rates indexed to retaii prices. This mix also reflects utilisation of interest rate
swaps so as to manage the Group’s net exposure to interest rate and retail price variations.

10
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Ownership and company struciure

Anglian Water Services Limited is a private company limrted by shares and is the principal subsidiary of Anghan
Water Group Limited (AWG}. The AWG Board cansists of six investor representatives, the Chief Executive
Officar, the Chief Financiai Officer and an independent Non-Executive Chair.

AWG Investors
v
Anglian Water Group Limited
v
Ospreay Holdco Limited
v
Aigrette Financing Limited

v

Osprey investco Limited

v

Osprey Acguisitions Limited

v

AWG Parent Co Limited

A\ 4
AWG Group Limited

Angiian Water Services
Holdings Limited
v
Anglian Water Services
UK Parent Co Limited
v
Anglian Water Services
Limited 'Y

v

Anglian Water Services

O el

Financing Pl¢™

11—
i { Anglian Water Services Financing
f 3 Group (AWSEG)

LI T

W Directsubsidiary
't Collectivefy known as the Anglian

Water Services Group, for which

consolidated financial statements

are prepared.

. A LI G e W e MR e e s —

Our corporate structure

AWG is owned by a cansortium of committed, (ong-term investars
representing milions of individual pension hotders. Details of the
consortium, alang with details of beneficial ownership of AWG by
investar type, are shown on the following page. When AWG was
acquired by investors in 2006, 1t became the ultimate parent
company of the Group. 1t is a lersey-registered company, buttis
UK tax resident and, as such, is liable for tax in the UK. All
companies in the AWG Group holding structure are UK tax resident
and hable for tax in the UK. Osprey Holdco Limited has issued debt
that is held by our shareholders in proporticn to their respective
shareholdings, and they are entitled to receive an interest payment
on the debt annually.

The aim of the Group’s financing strategy for AMP? has been to
reduce AWS gearing in order to enhance and protect its current
solid investment-grade credit ratings, enabling AWS to borrow at
lower rates to support the investments that customers have asked
us ta make. Farlier in AMP7, three new UK companies {Aigrette
Financing Limited, Osprey Investco Limited and Aigrette Financing
{issuer) Plc) were inserted into the Company structure ta help
defiver the AMP7 financing strategy. The insertian of these
companies resulted in a two-tier financing structure sitting above
AWS in the AWG Group and enabied the Group to increase its
equity investment in AWS.

AWG Group companies

Aigrette Financing Limited and its UK subsidiary Aigrette Financing
{issuer) Pic, have barrowed funds externally in order to increase
the equity investment in AWS. Osprey [nvestco Limited, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited and Osprey Acquisitions Limited’s subsidiary,
Anglian Water {Osprey) Financing Plc, together comprise AWG’s
‘'midco’ financing group. The ‘midco’ financing group has also
borrowed funds externally during AMP7 to increase the aquity
investment in AWS. AWG Parent Co Uimited and AWG Group
Limited are holding companies that were set up when AWG was a
listed group. Both companies are whotly owned subsidiaries, are

registered in the UK and are UK tax resident. During the 2022/23 financial year, AWG [UK) Holdings Limited
{which was used to be the immediate parent of AWG Group Limited) was removed fram the holding structure

11
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Anglian Water Services Financing Group companies

Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited was put in place in 2002, when Anglian Water’s covenanted and ring-
fenced debt structure was established. This group of companies (referred to as the Anglian Water Services
Financing Group, or AWSFG) protects customers and our band holders from risk associated with other non-
regulated Anglian Water Group companies outside of the ring fence.

This makes us an attractive investment prospect for bond holders, which means we're able to keep financing
costs lower, ultimataly bencfiting our customers in the form of lower bills.

Anglian Water Services UK Parent Co timited is a second holding company in the ring-fenced structure, also
providing protection for customers and investars from the risks of other non-regulated Group companies. All
companies within the AWSFG are UK-registered and UK tax resident companies.

Anglian Water Services Limited is the regutated entity that trades as Anglian Water, managing our water and
water recycling network and serving almost seven million customers. 1t is the part of the business that most
peopie think of as ‘Anglian Water’.

AWS has reduced its gearing with the funds received as equity investments under the Group's enhanced
financing structure.

Anglian Water Services Financing Plc is the financing company that raises money on behalf of Anglian Water
Services Limited. We need a plc to raise debt in the UK public bond market. Funds raised by this Company

underpin cur investment in the region’s water and water recycling services.
Details of the consortium of investors that owns AWG are shown below:

+ (anada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPP Investments™} {ownership: 32.9%) is a professional
investment management organisation that manages the Fund in the best interest of the more than 2C
million contributors and beneficiaries of the Canada Pension Plan.

« IFM Global Infrastructure Fund {ownership: 19.8%} is a fund advised by IFM Investors. IFM investars is
a global institutional fund manager owned by 17 profit-to-member Australian pension funds.,
specialising in infrastructure, private equity, debt and equity investments. JFM invests on behaif of
approximately 120 million pensianers from around the world.

+  Camulodunum Investments {ownership: 15.0%}is a joint investment vehicle for Dalmore Capitai and
GLIL Infrastructure. GLIL Infrastructure is run by the pension funds of Greater Manchester, Merseyside,
West Yarkshire and Local Pension Partnership investments. Dalmore has more than 1.3m UK pension
holders invested directly in AWG,

» Igneao Infrastructure Partners {ownership: 15.6%) is an unlisted infrastructure asset management
business and is part of the First Sentier Investors Group (FSIG), a global asset management business.
FSIG has LUSS5148 billion assets under management (as at 31 March 2023) on behalf of institutional
investars, pension funds, wholesale distributors, investment platforms, financial advisers and their
clients waorldwide,

« infinity Investments S.A. (ownership: 16.7%) belongs to a group of entities ultmately wholly owned by
the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA) and facuses on infrastructure investments in Eurcpe.

12
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Beneficial ownership by investor type:

«  Pensions (CPP Investments, GLIL Infrastructure, Igneo Infrastructure Partners investors and The IFM
Globai tnfrastructure Fundj: 75.8%

«  Asset manager (Dalmore Capital): 7.5%

«  Sovereign wealth fund (Infinity Investmentis S.A): 16.7%
Our businass maodel
wWhat we do

Water is our business. We handle with care and we don’t cost the earth. We prowvide high-quality drinking
water and recycle it safely back to the environment, servicing almost seven million customers 1n the East of
England and Hartlepooi.

What drives us
Qur purpose

Qur purpese is to bring environmental and social prosperity to the region we serve through our cammitment
toc Love Every Drap.

Our stakeholders

Environment & planet

Customers & communities

» People & partners
*» Shareholders
= Investars, banks & ratings agencies
+  Regulators
+ National & local government
Qurlong term ambitions
Our ambitions respond to the pressures outlined in our 25-year Strategic Direction Statement.
*  Make the East of England resilient to the risks of drought and flocding
+ Enable sustainable economic and housing growth in the UK's fastest growing region

« By 2030, be a net zero carbon business and reduce the carbon in building and maintaining our assets
by 70%

«  Work with others 1o achieve significant improvement in ecological quality across our catchments

The UN Sustainable Development Goals influence our thinking and the work we do contributes towards therr
delivery. We work in the spirit of all 17 goals, but we have mapped our work to the 10 where we have the
most material impact.
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How we are creating value

Our goals for 2020-2025

L
2.

3.

4

To make life better for our customers, every single day
To deliver our 2020-2025 Final Determination
To deliver our identified business priorities

To creqte a sustainable future for our region

What will help us get there?

L

Skilled, trusted and customer-focused people who are happy, healthy and safe
Maximising opportunities from standardisation and centralisation

Smart use of information and technology

World-leading afliances, working as one team

Coliaberation inside and outside the organisation

How we make decisions

We balance our six capitals to shape investment decisions.

1.

Natural — The health of the natural systems and resources that we rely on and impact in our region
and beyond; the availability and guality of water in our rivers and aquifers; the protection of our soil
and biodiversity; and our impact on carban emissions.

Social — The value of our refationships with stakehotders, incluging customers, communities and other
arganisations; the impacts we have on people and society (both positive and negative} and the trust

they place in us as a result.

Financial — The financial heafth and resilience of the arganisation and our access to and use of

sustainable finance.

Manufacturing — The ability of our infrastructure to provide resilient services to meet the current and
future expectations of our customers.

People — The knowledge, skills and welibeing of cur people; the health, happiness and safety of our
working environment; and our organisational culture and ways of working.

Intellectual - The knowledge, systems, processes, data and information we hold, create and share
within our business and with our alllance partners.
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firancial performance

The financiat results have baen prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Alterative performance measuras (APMs) used in this repart have been defined in nate 32 to the financial
statements.

Segmental reporting

The key performance indicators of the Group’s individual busimesses are discussad in the "Anglian Warer
Angtian Venture Haidings, and Head Office and Other” sections below. This strategic repart shauld be read in
canjunction with the strategic report of Anglian Water Services Limited, which does not from part aof this
rapart, which can be found at https://www. anghianwater.co.uk/about-us/cur-reports/ and provides a more
detailed insight into the regulated business.

£BITOA is defined in note 32 as the profit from continuing operatians before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation. The segment result comprises operating profit. In addition, compliance with the Group’s
borrowing covenants is an additional key performance indicator for the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Anglian Head Inter-
Angltan Vemture Office segment
Water Holdings and Other eliminations Total
.. tm EMm _  Em  _fm Em
Revenue
External 1 494 9 544 0.3 - 1,549.8
Inter-segment - . S RS -
14949 833 03 (5.4 1595
Segment result
EBITDA 802.8 9.1 (119 - 300.0
Oepraciation and amartisation (379.0) 12.8) 0.2 - {381.7)
Share af joint venture's operating profit - 2.1 2.3
. w37 o B4 (11.3) I 420.4
Cash flows
Operating cash flow 7109 5.9 113.9) - 702.5
Capital expenditure (660.04 (0.3} 0. - {65%.9)
Net debt excluding derivative financiat
instruments (624791 (L7} (25873) (8937.1)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue
External
inter-segrnant

Segment result

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation

Share nf joint venture's gperating loss
inter-segment

Cash flows

Operating cash flow

Capital expenditure

Net debt excluding derivative financial
instruments

Anghan
Water
£m

788.5
(347.7)

. Mos

7499
{318.2)

Anghan
Venture
Holdings
£&m

103
2.9
{0.4)

7.0
127

0.9

3.3

read
Offica

anag Other
Erm

Intar-
sagment
ehiminanons Trral
Em £m
- 14523
B35, 0 .-
(32.5) 1,452.3
- 7873
- (351.1)
- {04
(9.5) ,
{5.5) ) 4363
- 7433
- {518 8)
- {8.307.3)
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ANGLIAM WATER FINAMCIAL RESULTS

Pages 17-25 below set out the financial performance of Anghan Water, the principal business in the Group.

followed by that of Anglian Venture Holdings (AVH) and Head Office and Other on pages 25-26.

Anglian Water's financial rosults are summarised in the rable below:

Revenue (excluding grants and contributionsj
Grants and contributions

Operating costs

Charge for bad and doubtful debts

Other aperating income

EBITDAL

Depreciation and amortisation

Qperating profit
finance income
Finance cosis’

Adjusted loss hefare tax!

Finance costs - fair value gains/(losses) on financial denvatives’

Profit/{loss) befare tax on a statutory basis

Tax

2023 2022
Total Toral

£m Em

1,388.9 1.295 7

106.0 190 1

{673.0) (612.5)

{30.3) N1y

16.0 123

802.8 7885

{379.1) (347 7)

- 4237 1a0a
20.6 13

{731.1) (160 1)

1286.8) (175}

£45.3 {115.1]

353.5 (132 5]

(90.2) (310.2)

268.3 (442.8)

Profit/(Joss) after tax

a3 defined 1n note 32 Financial measures or metncs Jsed 0 this report that s3r2 nol defineo Dy are alternatve performance weasuras The Sraup Lses
1 a5 defineg te 32 Fi | h n t defineo IFRS It +; Th

such maasures for performance analysis because they provide additional useful imformanon an rhe perfarmancs and agsiion 2f the Sroud Since e Graup

qefimas 1ts own alternative perfarmance measuras. these might nort be direcily camparalie m Jtner Zomodnies alternative oerfarmance Measures Thes2

measures are not ntanded to be a substitute for. or superior 1o IFRS measurements and 1ave ge8n Ioasistently 3ooied athm 2ach /237 Jresenfed .n ihase

fGrancial staterrents

2in order to angw pre-tax pertormance Jasacd 2n MAnagerment’s aaw 1T Ar Jrderyyng G355 772 "2 J3u8 33105 3nd (033285 30 7NatLidl 1303t es 13ye

seen shown separately ' the table hHedause tnesa jre valatde non-Cash MGu2MEnrs Tmgt NSTem ~hg 30 A1 uedarlying 2C3nCaiC 32 rmadr?

L7
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Revenue

Revenue, excluding grants and contributions, for the year was £1,388.9 nullion {2022: £1,299.7 million), an
increase of £89.2 million (6.9%) on last year. The increase in revenue is as a result of the following factors:

¢« The price increase for customers following the regulatory pricing formula, £87.7 miliion increase.

+ Anetdecrease in demand of £13.4 million. Househol!d consumption is down £21.8 million and non-
household consumption up £8.4 million as we move back towards pre-Covid 19 ievels of consumption.

= Increase in revenue of £8.4m as a resuit of increase in customer numbers.

+ Dther increases in revenue of £6.5 million.

Grants and contributions represent the cash and asset contributions made priccipally by property developers and
local authorities for cannecting new property developments to the water and sewerage network, and for waork on
existing infrastructure needed to accommodate development. Quer the year, these have increased by £5.9 million
to £106.0 million. This is driven by the strong housing market and construction sector in pur region.

Ofwat's price setting process, set out in our Final Determinatian, sets the level of customer bills and therefore how

much is available to invest in our services.
Other operating income

Other operating income comprises primarily external income from power generation, bio-solid sales to farms,
rents received and various other non-core activities; this was consistent with prior years.

18



Osprey Holdco Limited

Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Qperating costs (inciuding charge for bad and doubtful debts)

Operating costs including charges far bad and doubtful debt for the year increased by £84.3 million (13.6

£708.1 million. This increase is explained in the table helow:

Prior period

Funded by Final Determination {FD)

inflation

Capitalisation of replacement infrastructure assets
Weather related

Invastment in leakage to recover from hot weather and freeze-thaw
Bad debt provision

increase in base bad debt charge

Priar year reassessment af provision

Prior year change in macroeconomic outiook
Power

Benefit of proactive hedging

Other significant items

Fuel in excess of inflation

Chemicals in excess of inflation

Businass rates

Other

Total increase

ivtarch 2023

Inflation

Total
Em

623 6

332
19.1)

6.3
5.0
5.6

37
9.4
(101}
3.3
845
708.1

3
)

) ta

The inflationary increases in our casts base formed part of the Final Determination and are therefore funded

through the inflationary increases in revenues.

Caprtalisation of replacement infrastructure assets

in order to improve efficiency, there was a change in the way we deliver boundary box and external meter
chamber replacement in the second half of last year. As a result of the change in delivery, which has moved

from individua! jobs to a scheme of wark, the cost of the scheme 1s above our de-minimis threshold for

capitalisation, resulting in the costs being treated as caprtal expenditure rather than operational in additian,

this year we have also expanded this process to include manhale covers and network fittings.

Weather related

As a result of the hot summer, the Board agreed to \nvest £13.9 miifion with a view to maintamning our industry
leading leakage position as we sought to recover from a number of weather-related events throughout the

year.
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The first six months of the year saw very little rainfall and as a result we saw exceptionally dry ground
conditions. This was then compounded by two extremely cold spelis in winter both followed by a rapid rise in
temperatures. Fluctuations like this lead to ground mavements which affect infrastructure such as pipes and
valves, causing leaks, bursts and failure, resulting in additional costs to reparr.

Bad debt provisian

The increase in bad debt rharge is primarily a resull of three factors set out below but we continue to see
stable cash collection with our base bad debt charge aver the tang term reducing as a percentage of revenue.

1. Anincrease in our base bad debt charge of £6.3 miilion, partly a result of the increase in cur revenue
and partly due to a return to more typical levels after an exceptionally strong performance in the priar
year.

2. The prior year reassessment of provision in our debt over 48 months old, which resulted in a one off
£6.0 million provision release in the prior year, as a result of continued positive collection in
combhination with a change to our write-off poiicy in April 2020.

3. in addition, we estimate the impact of future macro-economic factors on our ccllection performance
as required by IFRS 9. In March 2022 we released £6.6 million of this provision as the projected impact
of Covid-19 on unemployment subsided, thus reducing the charge in that year. The latest forecasts for
unemployment are broadly the same as that at March 2022 and therafore we have maintained the
same overlay provision as at March 2022, thus having no impact on the income statement. Further
details can be found in note 2.

Power

Our Opex reconciliation above splits out the impact of inflation and as we operate a robust hedging strategy
our energy costs rose slower than inflation in the year thus presenting as a real terms reduction. This strategy
meant that we had locked in our energy prices prior to the start of the year and the war in Ukraine. As such
our weighted average hedged price for the year was £58/MWh compared to an average day ahead price for
the year of £187/MWh,

Other significant items

Other significant items primarily refate to costs that have risen above average inflation, such as fuel and
chemicals.

In addition, following a rates review we received a refund of £10.1 million in the year.
ZBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA} is defined in note 32 and is the profit
from continuing operations before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation. This has increased by 1.8% to
£802.8 million, which is consistent with the effect of the increases described above.

Depreciation and amcriisation

Depreciation and amortisation is up 9.0% to £379.1 million, primarnly as a resuit of higher fixed asset balances

as we construct and commission assets in line with our capitai investment programme.
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Operating profit

Operating profit has decreased by 3.9% to £423.7 muhon. Whilst there have been significant mflationary costs
pressures due to the mismatch in timing with revenue, our proactive anergy hedging policy protected the
business. in addition, the Board agreed to invest £13.9 million with a view to maintaming cur industry teading
leakage position as we sought to recover from a number of weather-related events throughout the year.

Financing costs and profit before tax

Adjusted net finance costs, which are finance income net of finance costs before fair value gains and losses on
financial instruments, as defined in nate 32, increased from £458.3 miilion in 2022 to £710.5 mullion in 2023,
This was primarily the result of the non-cash impact of higher inflation on index-linked debt which increased
by £306.4 million to £561.4 million. This increase was due to an increase in year-on-yaar average Retal Price
index {RPI} from 5.8% to 12.8% and year-an-year average Consumer Price index (CPI} fram 4.0% to 10.0%. We
have both RPl-linked debt and CPl-linked debt to hedge the Regulated Capital Value {RCV}. Finance income
was £16.0 million, up £14.6 million as we benefited from these higher interest rates on our cash balances.

There was a fair vatue gain of £645.3 million on derivative financial instruments in 2023, compared with a loss
af £115.1 miltion in 2022. The fair value gains in the current year are predommnantly non-cash in nature and
have no materiat effect on the underlying commercial aperations of the business and have anly partially
reversed fair value losses experienced in the past 10-years in a falling interest rate environment. The driving
factors for the gain in 2023 were primarily due to decreases in the average levels of forward inflation
expectations, in combination with the rise in forward interest rates (decreasing the discounted present value
of derivatives). During the period, forward inflation decreased by circa 90 basis points and forward interest
rates increased by 200 basis points across the curves.
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Taxation
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£m £m
Current tax:

in respect of the current periocd {25.4) [13.6}
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.7 {(5.1)
Total current tax credit o )Qifﬁik : hrTIS. 7)

Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 113.0 {25.9}
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 1.9 1.2
Increase in rorporation t4x rate - 3536
Total deferred tax charge 1149 328.9
Total tax charge on profit on continuing operations 90.2 310.2

We are one of the largest private investors in infrastructure in our regian, having invested over £1 billion in the
last two years. The Government actively encourages infrastructure investment and grants us capital
allowances, which defer some of our carporation tax liahilities until a later period. Qur customers diractiy
benefit from the deferral as it helps to keep their bills lower.

Total tax paid or collected in the year to 31 March 2023, other than corporation tax, amounted to £234 miilion
{2022: £231 miliion), of which £100 million was coltected on behalf of the authorities for value added tax (VAT)
and employee payroll taxes. All of our taxes are paid as they become due.

The current tax credit for the year was £24.7 million {2022: £18.7 million). The deferred tax charge has
decreased by £214.0 million fram £328.9 miliion in 2022 to £114.9 million this year.

The current tax credit for both years reflects receipts from other group companies for losses surrendered to
those group companies. The tax losses arise mainly because capital allowances exceed the depraciation
charged in the accounts, as well as some income not being taxable and the availabiiity of tax relief on pension
contributions paid in the year. This is offset by disallowable costs and interest. In the prior year there is aiso a
one-off credit arising an a change of accounting treatment.

The deferred tax charge for this year mainly reflects capita! allowances claimed in excess of the depreciation
charge, a charge on the fair value gains on derivatives, offset by a credit on losses carried forward to future
years. The prior year charge mainly reflects the effect of a corpaoration tax rate from 19% to 25% that comes
into effect on 1 April 2023 but was legistated for in Finance Bill 2021, capital allowances claimed in excess of
the depreciation charge in the accounts offset by a credit an lasses carried forward to future years.

The Finance Bill 2021 also introduced increased tax refief for capital expenditure incurred in the period up to 1
April 2023. This has increased the deferred tax charge in this year.
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The current and deferred tax adjustments in respect of previous periods for both years refate mainly to the
agreement of prior year tax computations.

The amounts included for tax liabilities in the financial statements include estimates and judgements. If the
camputations subsequently suhrnitted to HMRC include different amounts then these differences are
reflected as an adjustment in respect of prior years in the subsegquent financial statements.

in addition to the £30.2 miilion tax charge on the income statement, there 15 a credit of £35.5 miiian {(2022:
charge of £40.7 million) in the statement of other comprehensive inceme n retation to tax on actuarial
tosses/{gains) on pension schemes and fair value gains on cash flow hedges.

Continuing to deliver our AMP7 capital investment programme

2022/23 is the third year in the five-year AMP7 investment programme. Over the five years to 2025, we will
invest a record £3 billion through our capital investment programme. This spend will help us achieve our
Business Plan commitments and inctudes significant investments to ensure our region is resihent to the
impacts of drought, climate change and population growth, alongside our largest ever programme of schemes
delivering environmental protection.

Delivery against this investment programme remains strong with gross annual capital expenditure on an
accruals basis across the appointed business increasing from £635 miilion in 2021/22 to £725 miihon in
2022723 (£326 miflion on capital maintenance, £399 mulion on capital enhancement]. This s broadiy in line
with management expectations and is particularly pleasing given the significant increase in the size of the
programme compared to AMPGS in addition to the supply chain impacts from the war in Ukraine and other
macroeconomic factors.

This has resulted in a £436.1 million increase in Property, plant and equipment and intangibte assets, net of '
depreciation.

Financial needs and resaurces

During the year to March 2023, Anglian Water raised new debt of £740.8 million. This was comprised of the
following new issuances:

»  1D-year Canadian Maple Bond amounting to £5350.0 million which was swapped to a sterling
equivalent of £224.8 million;

»  £100m 18-year CPIH linked bond. This was the first CPIH linked issuance by Anglian Water.

«  F150m drawdown on NatWest facility; and

»  £266m US private placement

Repayments of £668.7 milhon were made in respect of matunng debt, which consisted of a2 £250 million
5.837% fixed rate debt and £15 millicn 1.37% index-linked private placement. and amortising payments on EIB
index-linked debt.
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At 31 March 2023, excluding derivatives, Anglian Water had borrowings net of cash of £6,247.9 million, an
increase of £626.6 mithion over the prior year. Net borrowings comprised a mixture of fixed, index-linked and
variable-rate debt of £6,845.1 millign, leases of £36.4 million and cash and deposits of £633.1 millicn. Net debt
increased as a result of indexation on debt as described above combined with our continuing capital
investment programme.

The increase in net borrowings, excluding the fair value of derivatives, primarily reflects the higher accretion

on index-linked deht,

At 31 March 2023, Anglian Water had a derivative financial instrument liability of £697.7 mithion {excluding
energy derivative assets of £0.7 million}, down from £1,162.0 million in 2022 {excluding energy derivative
assets of £73.4 million).

The business generated cash from operations of £710.8 mullion in the periad {2022: £749.9 miltion). The
decrease primarily reflects short-lerm timung differences on working capital maore than offsetting
improvements in EBITDA described above.

Liquidity

The Company’s objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access to
different markets and debt instruments. At 31 March 2023, Anglian Water held cash, deposits and current
asset investments of £633.1 million {(March 2022: £870.7 million). The decrease in cash amounts held is
reflective of the higher debt repayments than new debt issuances in the period, the payment of the March
2022 final dividend and also the net of operational and residual investing and financing cashflows.

As at March 2023 Anglian Water has access to £975.0 million of undrawn facilities (March 2022 £600.0
miltion}, to finance working capital and capital expenditure requirements. In addition, Anglian Water has
access ta a further £375.0 million of liguidity facilities (March 2022: £375.0 million), consisting of £244.0
million to finance debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and maintenance
capital expenditure in the event that the Company was in an Event of Default on its debt obligations and had
insufficient alternative sources of liquidity. See note 1 for further commentary aver the liquidity
requirements of the Group in relation to going concern.

All bank facilities and debt capital market issuance are issued pursuant to the Global Secured Medium Term
Note Programme dated 30 July 2002 between the Company, Anglian Water Services Financing Pic (AWSF) and
Deutsche Trustee Company Ltd (as agent and trustee for itself and each of the finance parties). This agreement
provides that any facilities drawn by AWSF will be passed directly on to the Company upon utilisation of the
facility.

inierest rates

The Company’s policy, as agreed by the Board, is to achieve a balanced mix of funding to inflation-linked. fixed
and floating rates of interest. At the year end, taking into account interest rate swaps, 66.6% (March 2022:
58.9%) of the Company’s borrowings were at rates indexed to inflation, 26.2% (March 2022: 25.1%) were at
fixed rates and 7.2% (March 2022: 6. 0%) were at fioating rates. At 31 March 2023, the proportion of inflation
debt to regulated capital value was 47.9% (2022: 51.4%).
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Peasion funding

At 31 March 2023, the closed defined benefit scheme had an {AS 19 accounting pension surpius (before
defarred tax) of £51.1 million, compared to £163.4 million at 31 March 2022, This decrease in surplus reflects a
decrease in the scheme’s liabilities resuiting from an increase 1n the corporate bond rate used to discount
those liabilites on an accounting basis compared to a greater decrease in our assets which are hedging giit-
based liabuities.

ANGUAN VENTURE HOLDINGS FINANCIAL RESULTS

Anglian Venture Holdings has its own Board, which consists of six Directors: Richard Boucher, Steven Buck,
Anthony Donnelly, Claire Russell, Peter Simpson and Wayne Young.

Financial performance

Year fear
ended andea
31 March 31 March
2023 2022

— fm _Em_
Revenue 63.8 609
Operating profit 6.3 73
Share of joint ventures operating loss 2.1 10.4)
Segment result 8.4 70
Operating cash flaw 5.5 14.7

Anglian Venture Holdings generated revenue of £63.8 million [2022: £60.9 million} and an operating profit of
£6.3million (2022: £7.4 mitlion} as set out below.

Revenue Operating profit/(lass)
2623 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m Em
Alpheus Envircnmental 11.7 3.1 1.0 1.0
Celtic Anglian Water 39.5 366 2.8 3.6
Tide Services 6.7 5.6 0.2 0.2
Anglign Venture Haldings 2.1 - 8.3 02
OHL Land Holdings 6.3 1.a
OHL Piper Ltd 1.9 14 1.3 1.4
Property t.9 1.9 {0.2)
AVH Sailar Ltd . - {0.3}
inter-segment eliminations - - - -
63.8 5Q0.9 5.3 74
Share of joint ventures operating loss
Wave 2.1 (04
Segment result 3.4 70
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Revenue for the year increased from £60.9 million to £63 .8 million, with aoperating profits of £6.3 million
compared to £7.4 million in 2022, In addition, the Group’s sha:e of the Wave joint venture’s operating profit
was £2.1 million compared to a loss of £0.4 million in the pricr year. The decrease tn operating profit excluding
Wave reflects lower profits in Celtic Anglian Water due to higher energy prices. In the year Wave improved its
operating margins with an increased focus on reducing margin feakage.

HEAD OFFICE AMD OTHER FINANCIAL RESUI TS

The decrease in revenue, EBITDA and operating cash flow outside of Anglian Water has been driven by the sale
of a number of properties to the wider AWG Group in the prior year. The properties were transferred at a far
value of £24.4 million. At the point of sale, the net back vaiue was £12.3 million with prepayments written off
of £2.8 million, generating a prior year profit in the Osprey Group of £3.3 million. The transfer of properties
was a one-off transaction in prior year and no such transaction occurred in 2022/23.

SECTION 172 STATEMEMNT

As the ultimate parent company of Anglian Water Services Limited, the Company has elected to disclose a
section 172 statement on a voluntary basis, outlining how the directors promaote the successes of the
Company.

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this relationship,
the Group’s values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services Limited and
therefore interested parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract ircm the Anglian Water
Services Limited annual integrated report (AIR). As such, all references below refer to Anglian Water Services
Limited.

Engaging with our stakeholders

In July 2019, with the approval of our Board and shareahaldears, we became the fiest major utility company to
amend our Articles of Association to enshrine, for the long term, the principles set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 and our leng-standing commitment to working in the public interest.

Section 172(2) states that, where the purposes of a company consist of purposes other than, or in addition to,
benefiting the Company’s shareholders, the section 172 duties will take effect as if the reference to promoting
the success of the Company for the benefit of shareholders were a reference to achieving those alternative
purposes. Anglian Water's purpose (as set out in its Articles of Assgciation} is to conduct its business and
operations far the benefit of members, while delivering long-term value for its customers, the region and the
communities it serves, seeking positive outcomes for the environment and society. it follows that the Directors
of Anglian Water have a duty to act in a way they consider would be most likely to promote the purpose of the
Company. The section 172 duties to which the Directors are subject must therefore be considered in the
context of this overarching purpose.

The disclosures set out demonstrate how the Board has had regard to the matters set out in Section 172(1} ta)
to (f), which are now enshrined in Anglian Water’s Articles of Association, and include cross-references to
ather sections of the report for further information.

I~
[ox}
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Making long-term decisions

The Company’s fong-term strategy is driven by our 25-year Strategic Directian Statement (505}, first published
in 2007 and refreshed in November 2017, when the Board reviewed and approved an updated version
covering 2020-2045. The four key ambitions within our 5DS are shown in cur business moedei on page 13. We
have a statutory obligation o produce a Water Resource Management Plan \WRMP). During the year, we
published our draft WRMP for the period 2025-2050 for consultation. This plan sets out how we will manage
the water suppthies in our regton to meet our future needs, ensuring our customars remain on resilient water
supplies and preventing deterioration to the environment. The Board oversaw and scrutinised the
development of the plan and provided assurance that the Company fias met its obligations in developing the
WRMP and that it is the best value plan, based on sound and robust ewvidence and costing processes.

Similarly, we're required to produce a Drainage ang Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP) to set out how
we will manage and recycle water in our region aver the next 25 years. The draft DWMP was published in June
2022 for consuitation. tn it, we address the triple challenge we face from our rapidiy changing climate, a fast-
growing population, and the need to protect our region’s precious chalk streams and rivers. Again, the Board
had oversight of the DWMP and gave assurance that the resulting plan 15 the best value plan for customers
and the environment and is based on robust evidence and costing processes.

During the year the 8oard also considerad the devaetopment of the Company’s Long-tarm Delivery Strategy
(LTDS), which wiil be aligned with cur existing strategic frameworks inciuding the WRMP, DWMP and our
Water industry National Environment Plan {WINEP) as weli as the Government’s fong-term objectives, in order
to create a coherent strategy to 2050.

Qur Board has also appraved aur long-term viability statement {included in the AWS prelinunary results
announcement) within which the Directors have assessed Anglian Water's prospects over the next ten years

Board engagement with stakeholders

QOur Board has set out to define discrete stakeholder groups, but it recognises that in many cases they have
complementary interests and shared priorities. On occasion, their concerns may even conflict with ane
another. The Board’s duty, in reviewing, challenging and shaping plans, and satting strategic diraction, 13 to
consider and balance the impact of its decisions on a wide range of stakeholders. More information on our
business model, including how we use six capitals thinking to shape decisions and measure outcomes, can be
found on pages 13-14 while information an our kay stakeholders can be found throughaout this strategic repart
and below.

We've developed an annual stakeholder engagement strategy, approved by the Board and designed both to
demonstrate how we're delivering on our purpcse and to increase the breadth and depth of understanding of
the value Anglian Water delivers. The Board regularly engages in the delivery of the stakehalder strategy.

There are some issues which are of such importance that the Board judges that it should engage directly with
relevant stakeholders. However, much of our engagement happens at an operatonal level.

Where the Board has not engaged directly with stakeholders, it receives regular reparts from management, so
that the Directors can understand and take account of the key1ssues to which they must have regard.

I~J
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Having regard to employees’ interests

The welfare and development of our employees, and the Company’s culture and vaiues. are key areas of focus
for the Board and its committees, and employee-related issues are covered at every Board meeting. Areas
considered by the Board range from health, safety and welibeing to inclusion, employee engagement and
succession planning. The Board meets with the Head of Safety on a quarterly basis, which enabies the Board to
monitor key safety trends and to challenge performance where agpropriate.

I11 September 2022, we conducted cur Love to Listen survey to seek and act on the views of our employees.
The results of the survey, together with plans to address its findings, are discussed by the Board. In line with
the Anglian Water Services Corporate Governance Code 2020, the Board has appointed John Barry as the Non-
Executive Director responsible for engaging with the workforce.

Anglian Water offers employees the opportunity to participate in the AWG Loyalty Savings Scheme. This
scheme enahles employees to save on a monthly basis and then potentially benefit from the financial
performance of the Company at the end of the three-year savings period.

During the year three ‘'market stalls’ events were held, which gave the Directors and employees the
opportunity to engage with each other and discuss in detail 2 variety of important matters effecting the
Company.

Fostering business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Engagement with customers and communities is fundamental to the development of our strategy and plans.
The Board oversaw all aspects of the planning process for our Business Plan for 2020-2025, inciuding the
custormer engagement strategy, and is already fully engaged with the planning process for the Business Plan
for 2025—-2030. During the year the Board approved certain actions to mitigate the increase in customer bills
incfuding concessionary tariffs, and instalment plans. The overall package of support totalled £135 millian.

Our most important supply chain relationships are with our alliance partners, who play a crucial role in the
delivery of aur infrastructure and services. The Board receives an update into the capital investment
programmes at each Board meeting. This update provides an opportunity for the Directors to review and
challenge progress across the different investment programmes.

In addition, under Anglian Water’s Scheme of Delegation, the Board must approve contracts with suppliers
above a certain value; this ensures that there is the appropriate level oversight of these key contracts. During
the year the Board approved procurement strategies for the renewable assets’ framework and polymers. Fach
year the Board also approves Anglian Water’'s Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement, which details
the steps that we have undertaken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking 1s not taking pface in any part
of the business or within Anglian Water's supply chain.
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The Board also engages with our different regulators including Ofwat, the Environment Agency and the
Drinking Water Inspectorate. In September 2022, the Board and members of Ofwat’s senior leadership team,
including Chief Executive, David Black attended an event at Gratham Water which gave attendees the
opportunity to engage with and discuss in detail issues relevant for planning for AMPS8.

Ancther important stakeholder group are our debt investors, banks and rating agencies. Engagement is key to
understand their requirements, demonstrate our iong-term sustainable vision and hetp them to understand
what makes Anglian Water a sound investment. We regularly engage with our debt investars through
dedicated investor events heid at least twice a year to coincide with the preliminary and internim results. in
September 2022, we also heid a Capital Markets Day at Milton Water Recycling Centre. Curing the day a
trading update was presented and delegates were given the opportunity to tour the site, so that they further
understood treatment processes and environmental water guality.

impact on community and environment

The environment is at the heart of our purpose, and our SOS is fully aligned with the government’s own 25-
year Environment Plan. In July 2021, we published our net zero strategy to 2030. This routemap, which was
fully supported by the Board, sets out how we aim to reach net zero carbon emissions by 2030. As referred to
above, the Board considered both the draft WRMP and BRMP during the year. The Board regularly considers
environmental matters, including abstraction, compiiance against the EA’s Environmental Performance
Assessment, the progress of our WINEP, the water resource position and pollution reduction schemes. During
the year, the Board considered updates on the water resources situation both at a regional and national leve)
and the proposed WINEP for the period 2025-2030.

Throughout the year the Board hias monitored the progress af both Ofwat's and the Environment Agency's
investigations into sewage treatment works compliance. The Board has also supported the continued focus on
reducing storm spills together with the deployment of smart technofogy and machine learning at pace to help
predict and prevent pollutions. Qur purpose requires us to consider the impact of our operations on aur
communities. The Board receives regular updates on stakeholder engagement activities. During the year the
Board authorised the submission of the Development Consent Order planning application to the Planning
inspectorate in the relation to the Cambridge Waste Water Treatment Plan Relocation Project.

Qur purpose requires us ta consider the impact of aur operatians on our communities. The Board recerves
regular updates an stakeholder engagement activities.

During the year the Board authorised the submission of the Development Consent Order planming application
to the Planning Inspectarate in the relation to the Cambridge Waste Water Treatment Plan Relocation Project.

Maintaining high standards of business conduct

We seek to maintain high standards in alf that we do as a business. We have robust risk management and
internal control praocesses, both of which are reviewed by the Board ar the refevant Board committee. Qur
code of conduct, ‘Doing the Right Thing’, applies to all employees and sets out what is expected from our
people in different situations.

Anglian Water aisa hatds itself to account against a set of Responsible Business Principles which are appraoved
by the Board.

29



Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Acting fairly between members

The Anglian Water Graup is owned by a consortium of five long-term investors representing millions of fong-
term peasion holders bath in the UK and overseas. These shareholders are represented on the Board of our
ultimate parent company Anglian Water Group Limited, There are also shareholder representatives an the

Anglian Water Board. In this way we ensure that we traat all sharehalders fairly and that their views are heard

whenr making key decisions. These directors bring with thein a broad range of skills and expéerience which 1s
extremely valuable during Board discussions. Our sharenolders have made a long-term commitment to our
organisation and have a shared interest in and responsibility for its success. It’s vital, therefore, that we
engage them in strategic planning and share our progress and results with them.

Bill Impact mtitigation

We know that the cost of fiving crisis is making life more difficult for our customers than ever before. During
the year under review, our Board considered its impact on our most vulnerable customers and what the
business could do to support them with their water bill.
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Emplavyees

Osprey Holdco Limited

Strategic report {continued)

for the year ended 31 March

2023

NON-FINANCIAL REPORTING STATEMENT

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business is predominantly managed by employees of Anghian Water Services Limited. Due to this relationship,
the Group’'s values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Servicas Limited and

therefore interested parties should read the disclosure befow, which is an extract from the Anglian Water
Services Limited annual integrated report (AR} www anglianwater.co.uk/about-us/our-reports. As such, ait
references below refer to Anglian Water Services Limited.

Our Articles of Association requires us o publish rhe information contained in a non-financial information
statement {as defined in sections 414CB of the Companies Act 2008). We integrate this informanion
throughout this report and so the table beiow is designed to help you find key elements on non-financial
matters. Links to palicies, standards and retevant documents can be found at

https://www.anglianwater co.uk/about-us/our-purpase/eavironmental-sacial-and-corporate-governance/.

Reporting requirement ‘

Policies and standards which
gavern our approach

Current activities and risk
management {AIR reference}

Environmental matters

Our commitment ta protecting
and enhancing our environment
is enshrined in the Articles of
Association of Anglian Water
through our stated purpase: Ta
bring environmental and social
prosperity to the region we serve
through our commitment to Love
Every Drop.

Our approach to our empioyees
is guided by the values that drive
Qur continued progress: ‘
Together, we build trust; we do !
the right thing; we are always :
explaring.

Anglian Water Articles of
Assaciation

Love Every Orop outcomes

Anglian Water Strategic Direction
Statermnent

Anglian Water Resources
Management Plan

Anglian Water Drought Plan

Anglian Water Recychng Long
Term Plan

Anglian Water Climate Change
Adaptation Report

Anglian Water Drainage and
Wastewater Management Plan
Pollution Incident Response Plan

Values framewaork

Doing the right thing — code of

behaviour

. Diversity and inciuston plan

Health and safety policy

- Dignity at work code of conduct

Ralationships at work pohcy
Gender pay gap repart

. Whistleblowing policy

+ Chair's welcome pages 4-5 |

b Chief Executive’s statement

pages 6-8 |

~ Anglian Water: Year in context:
pages 10-16

+ Qur strategic ambitions, page
17

« Respansible financing: ‘
Sustainable finance, pages 22-25
» Holding ourselves to account
pages 13-19

+ Our stakeholders: our
environment & the planet, pages
40-486

+ Section 172 statement, pages

. 56-69

» Climate-related financal
disclosures, pages 72-84

» Principal risks, pages 85-97

- Chairman's welcome pages +-5

© o Chief Executive’s statemeant

pages 6-8
- Jur stakeholders: our people &

partners, pages 54-65

- Section 172 statement, pages
56-69

- Corporate Governance Report
pages 108-117

- Audit Committee Repurt pages
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Reporting requirement

Poiicies and standards which
govern our approach

i

|
|

Current activities and risk

! management {AIR reference}

Ethnicity pay gap report

\
|
\
R
|
|
\
|
|
\
|
|
l
|
w
\
\
|
1

I
|
1
|

" Human rights

I Qur policies and processes are

i underpinned by our values; in

! particular: we do the right thing.

% Doing the right thing — code ot
behaviour
Dignity at work code of conduct
' Data protection policy
1‘ Information retention policy
‘ Privacy policy
Modern slavery statement

Human Rights Policy

« Our stakeholders: 40-65

- Nomination Committee Report
pages 125-128

118-124 _T

i = Remuneration Committee i
Report pages 129-154 :

I

Social matters

Our commitment to serving our
customers and gur communities
is enshrined in the Articles of
Association of Anglian Water

I through our stated purpose: To
i bring environmental and social

prosperity to the region we serve
through our commitment to Love

i Every Drop.

{ Anglian Water Articles of
| Assaciation
Public Interest Commitment

| Social contract

Employee volunteering guideiines

- love to help

Anglian Water Strategic Direction
Statement

t
\
]
|
f
I
|
|
i
|
|
|
i
l
|
i
|
|
[
(
|
|
|
|
|
i
|
[
|
[
|
|
|
|
}
!

+ Chait’s welcome pages 4-5

+ Chief Executive’s statement
pages 6-8

+ Anglian Water in context:
challenges and cpportunities
pages 10-16

« Qur strategic ambitions, page
i7

* Halding ourselves to account
pages 18-19

- Qur stakeholders: our
customers & community, pages
4753

- Section 172 statement, pages
66-69

— G

Anti-corruption and bribery
Cur policies and processes are
underpinned by our values; in
particular: we do the right thing.

Doing the right thing — code aof
behaviour

Anti-bribery policy

Whistleblowing palicy

Description of grincipal risks and
impact of business activity

Description of the business
model

Anglian Water year in review 10-
1

o

{
W
|
|
|
|

+ Principal risks: nc. 13: Legal
page 95-97

< Audit Committee Report pages
118-124

* Risk management, pages 85-88
* Principal risks pages 89-97

* Business long-term viability
statement pages 98-101

)

l

]fiorporate hospitality policy
|

|

&

. QOur business model, page 9
|

|

|

!
i
|
%
i

+ Board statement of Company
direction and performance,
Annual Performance Report
tavailable at

www.anghanwater co.uk/about-

| us/our-reports)

|
|
|
i
i
|
|
|

|
1
I
'

|
v

Mon-financizl key performance

I'Non-financial performance

T . .
+ Delivering our cutcaomes:
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Policies and standards which

| Reporting requirement
" govern our approach

? Current activities and risk !
| management (AIR reference)

U ——

measurad against a set of ; performance commitments
commitments agreed with Ofwat  dashboard, pages 32-39

—_— —_
! indicators ‘
i
|
1’ Health and safety measures and
targets

|
[
}
‘; - Delivering our outcomaes:
j perfarmance in context, pages
|
Environmenta! perfornmance 1 33-39
assassment i = Gur stakehaiders: our people &
|
:

partners, pages 54-65

A copy of our code of conduct {'Doing the right thing'), together with our Whistleblowing policy, our Anti-
bribery paolicy and our current Stavery and Human Trafficking Statement can be found on our website at
httos://www.anglianwater.co.uk/about-us/wha-we-are/our-suppliers/. Our customer privacy notice can be
found at https://www . anglianwater.co uk/about-us/legal/privacy-notice/.

GENDER AND ETHNICITY PAY GAP REPORTING

Gender pay gap reporting legislation came into force in April 2017 and requires all UK employers with 250 or
more employees to publish annual information illustrating pay differences between male and female
employees. As such, all references below refer to Anghan Water Services Limited and it should be read in
conjunction with the full disciosure within the AWS Annual Integrated Report.

Gender pay gap

At Anglian Water we want everyone 1o feel included, regardless of their background. This apples to all areas
across our inciusion agenda, not only gender.

As reported in detail in our full Gender Pay Gap Report 2022, our workforce compasition as of Apnif 2022 was
32 per cent women and 68 per cent men. Qur mean gender pay gap far the period was 9.5 per cent, while
our median gender pay gap was 16.4 per cent, showing a slightincrease on our 2021 figures.

Like other companies in our sector, we have a3 very low attrition rate, with many male employees spending
their entire working career with us. This impacts the oppartunity for a significant change in the headline
campasition of aur peaple in the short term, and it also continues to impact our gender pay gap. The wncraase
this year was also affected by nationwide challengas throughout 2021722 such as the shortage of Large Goods
Vehicle (LGV) Drivers, for whom we reviewed our offering and increased pay to retain peogle in these critical
roles -- 93 per cent are filled by men.

Despite recruiting a higher number of women {42 per cent in 2022, verses 35 per cent in 2021). many of those
new appointments were in mare junior (or part-time} positiens. And while around 1,600 of cur employees are
in technical rales with skills-linked pay progression, just 17 per cent of women fill these posts

We're working to address our gender pay gap in a range of ways:

+  Setting shart {(annual) and mid-term {to 2025) targets to improve gender equity across the Jusiness
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- For 2023 we are targeting 36 per cent of new hires to be women, and 36 per cent of senior manager
positions to be held by women. By the end of 2025, buth targets raise to 38 per cent.

» Addressing gender bias {unconscious or otherwise) in each stage of recruitment across the business,
including placement and presentation of advertising, imagery, wording of job descriptians and
encouraging a mix of genders for interview panels

«  Ensuring we are an attractive employer for women, with supportive policies and procedires such as
enhanced maternity leave, shared parental leave, Hexible working and part-time working

»  Activety encouraging young women to apply for our apprenticeship and graduate programmes
through dedicated outreach and recruitment drives with schools, coileges and universities

« Ensuring pay and reward processes are transparent and free from bias. Our reward team maonitors pay
according to gender, investigating any gaps in excess of 5 per cent

As a result of our efforts we’re seeing more women hired across the business. In 2022;

+ 43 per cent of new hires were women

« 46 per cent of senior hires were women, which will help improve our gender pay gap figures in 2023

« 13 per cent of women whe joined our business are in STEM-relatad roles

« We have seen an increase in the overail number of women graduates joining our business, from 33 per
centin 2021 to 71 per cent in 2022, helping grow our future senior talent pool

»  The number of women apprentices increased from 10 per cent in 2021 to 24 per cent in 2022,

» In 2022, 71 per cent of our graduates were women and 18 per cent of our apprentices

We are pleased to see the focus and initiatives to improve the gender halance of our business have been
recognised externafly, with Anglian Water named as one of the Tirmmes Top 50 Employers for Gender Equality
2023.

Ethnicity pay gap

Although not yet a statutory requirement, we published our first-ever Ethnicity Pay Gap report, in February
2023 as part of cur commitment to transparency and improvement.

Unlike gender pay gap reporting, ethnicity pay gap reporting is completed on a voluntary basis and therefore
there is limited data available to ailow us to compare curselves ta other organisations. Similarly, due to the
self-reparting of ethnicity, the employee data we have avaiable to report on only accounts for 70 per cent
who have voluntarily disclosed their ethnicity. In 2022/23 the mean ethnicity pay gap was 6.1 per cent and the
median is 4.6 per cent.

We continue to engage with our people and encourage them to share their ethnic identity so we can have
greater clarity on the demographic of our workforce in future years. Accordingly, the true figures for the
median and mean ethnicity pay gap may differ siightly.

in calculating our ethnicity pay gap, we have used the same principles that are applied to statutory gender pay
gap reporting. The ethnicity pay gap shows the difference in the average pay between people from Ethnically
Diverse Communities (EDC), which includes people who are Black, Asian and Mixed Race, cempared to White
employees (including those that identify as White Other).
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Steps we're taking to close the ethnicity pay gap

We want to close qur ethnicity pay gap and increase the diversity of our employees at Anglian Water, so we
are taking the following action in 2023/24:

«  Actively recruiting for a diverse workforce and setting diversity hire targets
« Making changes to our recruitment advertising strategy, such as:
=~ Changing where we advertise to ensure our rolas are seen by a range of potental candidates
> Ensuring our imagery represents people from a varety of backgrounds.
5 Using web accessibility and translation software {Recite me) to ensure our careers site is
accessible.

« Directing hiring managers to underiake unconscious bias training as part of our Recruitment and
Interviewing Skills training course and requesting that wherever possibie interview panels include a
diverse mix of ethnicities and genders.

+  (losely monitoring the ethnicity split at application as well as at various stages within the assessment
and salection pipeline (particularty far early careers) to ensure we are attracting from as wide a taient
pool as passible.

+  Publishing key policies on aur careers website, such as our flexible working policy, parental leave
policy and transgender and transition policy.

ANGLIAN WATER PERFROMAMCE COMMITMENTS DASHBOARD

Ofwat uses a subset of performance commitments, referred to as Outceme Delivery Incentives ({QODIs) to
measure our progress through the Asset Management Plan (AMP] period. These performance commitments
are summarised bejow, with information on how we monitor our progress, how wea've performed this yaar,
and whether rewards or penalties are attached to each™.

QOperations were significantly impacted by the extreme weathar gver the year leading to record soil maisture
deficits. This principally affected three ODIs - Burst Mains, Interruptions to Supply and Leakage - and
accounied for the majority of the total penalty.

Against some measures, such as pollutions, we have not met the high standards we set for ourselves. in
others, iike leakage, we find ourselves in the situation of being at the forefront of our sector but still in penalty,
when other poorer perfarmers with higher levels of l[eakage may not be in the same position.

Overali, we have performed well in a number of areas that are of utmost importance to our custemers, such as
water quality (ERi and customer acceptabifity), water efficiency (PCC}, leakage, environmental protection
{abstraction, bathing water quality and WINEP delivery}, carbon reduction, and helping the most vulnerabte,
keeping bulls affordable and prowiding good value for money [including Totex).

* Please note, the rotal is calculated in 2017/18 prices and does not match the sum of the individual
performance.
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Resilient business

| wWhat are we How are we measuring it? Prior year Current year | Current | Reward or ;
| measuring? performance performance | year target % penaity |
= | (2021/22)  (2022/23) | (2022/23) | outcome for
| | | : | 2022/23
I Risk of severe 3 The percentage of i 5.2% 5.2% ' 22.0% ! N/A
| restrictions in ! properties at risk of service ] 1. ’
| drought restrictions in the event of a | | . ‘
\ 1-in-200-year drought. I \ : |
ﬁisk of sewer | The percentage of 0.75% 0.74% ‘ 3.75% " N/A ‘
\ flooding in a properties that we serve | ‘ ! ‘
\' starm that are at risk of sewer l ‘
i flooding during an extreme ] J ‘
| wet weather event. % | |
] Percentage of f Percentage of popuiation i 22.7% 22.3% .[ 21.8% ; £0
1 population ] served by a stngle suppiy l‘ :
| supplied by system. Qur goal is to | l :
[ single supply reduce the number of [ |
| system properties served by a single ! 1
; supply system, so that if ‘ : 1
I something goes wrong at : 5
| one works, our : j |
l customers’ water supplies . ! !
are protected.. | | [

. Cyber security | Percentage of risks Ongoing Ongoing [ 100% by 1{ N/A
} mitigated against the cyber i 2025
} threat to operational } | ‘
i‘ technology (OT) and to i . ]
‘ l comply with the network | j
} l and information systems } ! ;
‘ (N1S) regulations. ] i |

| { i |

Risk of severe restrictions in drought: Our twin-track strategy to balance supply and demand, plus decades of
investment in resilience, was evidenced this year when we did not need a temporary usage ban (commonly
referred to as a hosepipe ban) during the drought. Our progress in building a more integrated and resilient
network is clear, given the record soil moisture deficits and peak temperatures seen in this region through the
year. See also ‘Supply meets demand’ performance commitments.

Risk of sewer flooding in a storm: This measure is based on modelling that predicts the likelihood of flocding
In our netwark in a 1-in-50 year storm. Targeted investment such as £100 million for storm tanks at water

recycling centres and sustainahle drainage solutions {between 2020 and 2025) has also helped increasad starm
capacity (More in Flourishing Environment).
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Percentage of population supplied by a single supply system: This measure is linked to the delivery of our
strategic interconnector grid (more in supply meets demand), which on completion will grovide maere than
80% of customers with a dual supply system. We have reprofiled delivery based on supply chain issues earlier
in the AMP, but the project remains on track for completion in 2025.

Cyber security: We operate a robust cyber security function that delivers protective security services across all
of its information technology and operational technology services using o hybrig delivery model of inhouse
cyber professionals combined with an outsourced 24/7 Managed Security Services, managed by Airbus. We
operate a programme of continual improvement and risk reduction with the oversight of the Risk and Audit

Committee.

A Smaller fooiprint

\ what are we How are we measuring it? Prior year | Current | Current | Reward or j\
| measuring? performance | year | year target | penalty !
! (2021/272) i performance | {2022/23) ‘l outcome for

' {2022/232) | 2022/23 ‘
i Operational Percentage reduction in 3.4% 6% ' 6% T N/A

to-day operations compared
to a 2019/20 baseline.

| |
1 | L
Capital carbaon 1 Percentage reduction in 63.1% 63.2% 53.0% i N/A
carbon emissions from
construction activity
measured in fonnes of CO;
equivalent compared to a

|
|
! 2010 baseline. , \
L | il

carbon carbon emissions from day- % |
i
I
J

We continued our work to reduce operational and capital carbon, in line with our ambition tc be a net zero
carbon business by 2030, and in line with our Purpose to deliver environmental prosperity in our region. Find

out mare in our TCFD report on pages 49-66.
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Supply meets demand

- N H i ' ] —I
! what are we ~ How are we measuring it? i Prior year Current | Current ' Reward or .
| measuring? ( verformance . year | year farget : penalty '
| J : {2021/22) ~ performance : {2022/23) | outcome for

} (2022/23) | | 2022/23

i T - - - o T ———
, Leakage | A percentage reductionin f 6.1% | 75% 8.5% -£1.33 miltion
i | the amount of water lost to

leakage across the region in

|
| reduction | reduction J caduction
5 | 1
megalitres per day (Mi/d). j | ‘
|
|

1
i
. ;

| |

! ]
i |

[

I

One megalitra is a mithan | | |

htres. | '

. Per capita

I

| |

} j A percentage reductionin | 3.4% j 2.5% [ 32% f N/A

| consumption | the average water { increase | increase® | reduction r
; (PCC) | consumption per househoid | 1 ; f ;
! } per day for properties in our } | i J
] [ region. { | | J 1
L | f | .
| Smart F The number of smart water | 310,321 ' 543,686 | 657.838 N/A !
1 metering ; meters that are instailed at ; , J, | !
‘ delivery j customer properties. J‘ 1 ,
| internal | The number of megalitres | 1.5Ml/d ;o BSML/d oMlI/d | N/A !
: intercannector ' per day extra capacity ’ | ‘ !
delivery | detivered to ensure that ! : . ;
} | customers in the region ! ! !‘
| { have sufficient water in the l ‘ ! J '
| [ future. ] | i J :
‘ & L ! : !

Leakage: For the first time since 2010, we missed our regulated leakage target, owing o the weather impacts
both in summer and winter. At 179.5 M}/d. our three year rolling leakage continues to improve and is now
7.5% below 2019/20 leveais and builds on our industry leading leakage performance last year. This year we find
ocurselves in an ODI penalty while also being sector-leading.

Smart inztering delivery: We are rolling out smart meters at a rapid rate - an average of 4,500 installations
avery week. Since the start of the AMP, we've installed more than 543,000 smart meters, 233,365 this year
alone. Smart metars improve accuracy, allowing us to assess leaks using real, measurad data. This leads to
mare robust reporting and mare efficient targeting of feak detection activities, as current leakage calculation
methods rely an assumptions and allowances for customer night usage. The installation programme has been
affected slightly by issues with microprocessor avaitability, which has detayed defiveries of smart meters and
caused us to miss the in-year target. We remain on course to complete instaffations in one million homes by
2Q25.
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Per capita consumption: Provisional PCC* figures show a reduction of around 5% an a single-year basis,

showing a reduction to 129.3 fitres down from 136 {itres in 2021/22. This is a significant reduction on the 146.9

litres in 2020/21, when the Covid pandemic saw water usage increase as a result of more hand-washing and

people staying at home. This is our best-ever annual score on the single-year measure since it was introduced

by Ofwat in 2017/18. The three-year rolling average which we have to repart on for this performance

commitment is still impacted by higher usage following the Covid pandemic. Customers have been sippnrtad

to use less water through behaviouidl change campaigns, smart metering and our associated ‘My Account’

app. In addition, smart meters have helped pinpoint 93,000 customer-side leaks, saving customers water and

money.

Internal interconnector delivery: Delivered through our partners that make up the Strategic Pipeline Alliance,

our new interconnector pipeline will bring water from areas where there is a natural surplus, leaving mare

water in environmentally sensitive areas. Efforts to overcome supply chain challenges mean we are now 100%

purchased on steel and have planning permission granted for about two-thirds of the route, giving us

confidence of delivery.

Flourishing environment

Programme (WINEP)

schemes in a timely manner.

What are we How are we measuring it? Prior year Cusirent Current year | Reward or :
measuring? performance year target penalty ‘
(2021/22) - performance | (2022/23) outcome for
{2022/23) 2022/23

Pollution Mumber of pollution 33.75 3336 23.0C -£4.61 miliion

incidents incidents due to escapes ﬁ !

from our sewerage network !
per 10,000 km of sewer 1
network. i

Bathing Number of recognised 32 32 34 N/A

waters bathing waters in our region

attaining rated 'Excellent’ (based on .

'Excellent’ standards set by the J

status European Bathing Water 1

Directive). 1‘
1

Abstraction An incentive to reduce the -376 M 17 o1 ! -87 M| -£0.05 million

Incentive water we take from !

Mechanism | sensitive rivers or wetlands ‘
| | during very dry periads. ‘ %
I I
| WINEP The progress of the 1,184 ‘ 1399 . 1126 +£2.24 million |
i Company in delivering its ‘ l |
i WINEP algr‘—fEd Water Industry Met | Notmet |  Met N/A ‘
| delivery Mational Environment i
\ ‘
|
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|
J
|
|

| What are we | How are we measuring it? Jr Prior year " Current | Current year "' Reward or i

measuring? l ’ performance ' year ‘ target i penalty I

[ (2021/22} performance | {2022/23) | outcome for J

[ | {2022/23) | _r222/23

Natural capital i This measures progress Fatl Fail ; On track N/A {

| towards meeting l | | J

: improvemeants in natural l J‘ | |

i capitat within gur region. | : E :

Regianal } This measures progress { On track Ontrack °  Ontrack ! N/A !

- collaboration l towards the development of | J j
| aregional approach to | i i

l assessing and cansidering Il j c 1:

l natural capital. ‘ ’ |

)rSludge This measures progress 0% : 0% ] 100% by | N/A !

} treatment towards delivering I ! 2025 ! :

( capacity additional sludge treatment j : |

capacity. ! ! ‘

I ;

Paliution incidents: Serious paliutions reduced this year from 14.1n 2021/22 to 11, but we remain significantly
off target. While classified as ‘serious’, none of the pollution incidents in the period resulted in the death of
fish. Following close review, we know the very narrow watercourses, owing to the heavily drained nature of
our region, create an increased vulnerability for serious pollutions. This is something we are looking to
address. Qur Category 1-3 pollutions per 10,000km sewer totalled at 33.36. In 2021/22, the total was similar at
33.75. Qur performance remains aff target and improving aur pollutions performance is an absolute priority.
This year, our self-reporting has continued to improve. The progress we are making on our Pollution Incident
Reduction Plan will give us greater insight on asset heaith, but it wiil take time for the cumulative benefit to
feed through to our resuits

Bathing waters attaining ‘Excellent’ status: 94% of our coastai bathing waters were rated as "Excellent” or
'Good’: 32 were rated as ‘Fxcellent’, eligible for Blue Flag status, 13 were rated as good, two as sufficient, and
one poor. investigations at the poor site have ruled out our assets as the cause. Despite being a strong resuit
equal to last year, a deciine in Norfalk bathing water quality has caused us to miss the in-year target. A recent
'Source Apportionment’ study found our assets are not the primary cause for this decline

Water Indusiiy Mational Environment Programme (WINEP): Our WINEP is one of the higgest environmental
nvestment programme in the sector, worth £811 milhon between 2020-2025. So far more than 300 schemes
have been delivered early. We have worked hard again this year to deliver another significant tranche of
obligations ahead of schedule. This includes our work to investigate and remediate storm spills, and, delver
nine flow-to-full-treatment [FFT) schemes this year, four of which were delivered early
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Abstraction Incentive Mechanism: The Abstraction incentive Mechanism exists to encourage additional.
tempaorary reduction in abstraction at four particular sites and in dry conditions, when this is operationally
feasible. This year we were able to make reductions at twao sites, with no change at a third site. At a fourth
site we did not have an opportunity to reduce abstraction as a neighbouring source was out of service and
we therefore missed our target this year. This measure is unrelated to our 100% compliance on annual
abstraction licences, which, cited elsewhere in the report, was impartant to safeguard the envirpnment
throngh the drought. At the saime time we are proceeding at pace with our strategic pipeline. which will
enable us to reduce abstraction by 31,025 Ml per year, the largest commitment on abstraction reduction in
the industry, as outlined in our Water Resources Management Plan.

Matural Capital: This performance commitment captures improvements made through four sub-measures:
water quantity, ground water quality, surface water quality and biodiversity. We must be on track across all
four to be on target. This year, our progress against sub-measures for biodiversily net gain and surface water
guality were ahead of target, and we were on target for ground water guality. However, the water quantity
sub-measure, which tracks the rolling three-year average for the total volume of water put into supply in
relation to our regional poepulation, was higher than the target, owed to househald water use being higher
than predicted, although we are now seeing that reduce.

Delighted customers

what are we How are we Prior year Current vear | Current year Reward or penalty
measuring? measuring it? ! performance | performance target outcome for 2022/23 -
‘ - (2021/22) {2022/23) {2022/23)
i Customer Customer survey 80.4/100, 78.8/100, Thisis a -£0.29 million
' Measure of conducted for Ofwat putting putting comparative
- Experience called CMeX which us in 9th us in 10th measure — we
: [CMeX) assesses place place aim to perform
' the experience the in
Company provides | ' the top 25% of |
to residential i ‘ companies {4th |
customers. ! | position or
\ | higher)
. Developer Survey conducted | 87.54/100, | 87.3/100, This is a £0
' Measure of for Ofwat called ‘ putting putting comparative
. Experience DMeX which ! us in 7th us in 9th place | measure — we ‘
{DMeX) assesses the ! ptace J aim to perform
experience the ! | n :
i Company provides | 1‘ | the top 25% of :
to developer j | companies (4th {
services customers ‘ 1‘ position or ;
who build new : ! ! higher}
i ]

homes.
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what are we
measuring?

Properties at risk
of

persistent low
pressure

How are we
measuring it?

Number of
properties that are
affected by
persistent low
pressure. Persistent
low water pressure
is an angoing low
pressure problem
rather than short-
term low pressure
caused by a water
mains burst or
unusual peak in

demand for water.

Internal sewer
flooding

The number of
times that
properties are
flooded internally
per 10,000
customer
cannections to the
sewer.

| Prior year

' {2021/22)

58

| Current year ;Current year
: performance | performance

! (2022/23)

I

53

I target
' (2022/23)

| Reward or penalty

i
I

l 150
|
|

External sewar
flooding

The number of
times that
properties are
flooded externally.

Naon-household
- retailer
satisfaction

This measure
assesses the service
provided by the
Company to non-
household
retailers.

Water supply
interruptions

I S e e

Average length of
supply interruptions
per property (for
interruptions over 3
hours).

i

1.73

4,181

4,673

+ £0.6 million

. outcome for 2022/23 |

90.2

86.7

9m 47s

14m 355

5m 455

J

n/a

-£10.13 million

Customer Measure of Experience {CMeX): Disappointingly, we have slipped to 10th place in the CMeX ranking

this year, which is just below the average position far the industry. This means we will incur a penalty of

around £0.3 million. Customers preferences are changing, with 2 growing desire to interact and transact

digitally. To deliver this, we have consciously allowed our digital channels to grow. making the experiences a5

effartless for customers as possible. Due to the varying survey and contact channels used and the known

differences in satisfaction rates, the current CMeX methadology favours nan-digital cantacts, such as a phane

call. Due to the range of digital channels we offar, more than 60% of our contacts are now via a digital channel,
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As a result our CMeX score is disproporticnately lower than if the volume of our digital contacts was less. We
stand by our decision to respond to customer feedback and act un what they have told us is important. We are
pieased to be working with the industry and Ofwat to identify what changes may be needed for CMeX to adapt
to the changing customer demand.

Developer Measure of Experience {DMeX): We are 2 median company {3") this year, Meaning we receive no

penalty or reward.

Internal Sewer flooding: The self-cleansing nature of sewer pipes means a dry year can also lead to more
blockages and flooding. The drought, coupled with the scale and features of our sewer network, created the
perfect conditions for blockages to accumulate in many locations. As a result, we did not meet our target and
will incur a penalty. We are working on combatting this by enhancing our jetting programme and through our

Dynamic Sewer Visualisation programme.

\Water supply interruptions: A significant proportion of our total penalty this year is a result of our
interruptions to supply. Almost half of the score for the year was incurred during the summer heatwave and
drought period. As customers are on water 99.99% of the time, their willingness to invest bill money in this
area has been and remains low.

Properties at persistent risk of low pressure: We have continued to reduce the number of properties at risk of
persistent low pressure, removing five properties from our iow pressure register this year. A combination of
investment and aperational investigations means we are ahead of target for 2022/23.

Fair charges, fair returns

occupied and should be |
charged by the Company. i
|
|

What are we How are we measuring it? Prior year w Current year | Current year | Reward or i
rmeasuring? performance ' performance | target penalty :’
(2021/22) | (2022/23 (2022/23) | outcome for |

i | 2022/23 |
: Managing void | The percentage of 0.12 0.10 0.35 +£1.18 millicn ‘
properties properties that are falsely reward w
identified as void ‘

properties. |

This means that they are ;

|

Value for A survey of customers by 77% agree 81% agree | Bl% agree n/a
money the Consumer Council for we provide we i we provide
Water about the value good value ! provicde : good \
for money orovided by the for money . valuefor | value for ‘
Company. money money l
|

Valuzs for money: We regularly engage with our customers on key issues such as value for money. This year.
we reinstated our customer Board, which facilitates two-way conversations on our perfoermance, where we
have explained how we are maximising billpayers’ money to deliver environmental and social benefits within

the region.
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The average Anglian Water customer bill is £1.35 per day, pegged down by our efforts to keep bills low. Since
privatisation, our hills have risen little mare than 10% (excluding inflation), against an industry average
increase of 40%. Where we have needed to increase charges, we have matched this with a strong package of
support for vulnerable customers. We maintain the fairest way to bill our custemers s fo charge for what rhay

use, and 83% of customers do so, based on meter readings, aiding water efficiency.

Safe, clean water

Reward or
| performance " performance ! target penalty
| (2021/22) - (2022/23) | (2022/23) | outcome for

|

What are we I How are we measuring it? Prior year " Current year | Current year
measuring?

|
Water quality ; This is the key measure used I -£1.1 million
{Compliance | by the Drinking Water

Risk index} Inspectorate to determine

stringent regulatory drinking
water standards.

103 1.01

I
1'
our overall compliance with |
f
i

; ‘ 2022/23 '
4.04 292+ .00 '

Water guality The number of complaints 0.93 I -EQ.2 milhion
% contacts from customers about i
; water quality per thousand |
! people served. ; J\
j Event Risk This assessment looks at the 0.872 277* ‘ 15 w n/a i
! index Company’s approach to risk k ! ; |
: mitigation of water ( ‘ !
quatity events. { | !
l B

*Qur current year performance is subject to finalisation

Compliance Risk Index: This year our Compliance Risk Index score is 2.92. Whilst we missed our target and we
aren’t where we want to be, our 2022/23 score reflects a 29% mprovement on 2021/22. furthermore, our
score is well ahead of the 2022/23 provisional industry average of 5. This reflects the success of aur
improvement programmes targeted in the areas of coliform and E.coli detections at Water Treatment Works’
finals and starage points, and taste and odour detections at customers’ taps.

Event Risk index: Qur provisional scare for 2022/23 of 7.77 1s well within our target significantly beicw the
provisionat industry average. it reflects our robust processes to mimimise impact on customers during planned
work and our reactive response.

Water quaiity contacts: This is our best-ever result. Although we have narrowly missed the ODI, in the face of
the operational challenges this year, to receive such a low level of compliaints demaonstrates our robust
processes o minimise customer impact,
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Positive impact on communities

| What are we l How are we measuring ii? i Prior year Current year | Curreni vear | Reward or
l measuring? | performance . performance | target i‘ penaity |
‘ / | (2021/22) ' (2022/23) ‘ (2022/23) | outcome for |
! | [ 2022/23 |
! Priority The percentage of ©9.4% reach 11.4% reach 5.1% reach n/a |
| services for customers recorded as ‘ 62.2% actual : 62.4% actual | 35% actual |
! customers in requiring priority services ] contact contact . contact :
| vulnerabie due to being 100% 100% | 30% '
i circumstances | in vulnerable circumstances _ attempted attempted ] attempted \
‘ and the percentage of | contact contact | contact ;
\ people contacted to ensure [ :
I‘ records are kept up to date. ‘ t |
| il | |
I Customers Percentage of customers 52.5% 61.8% \ 56.5% n/a !
! aware of the | made aware of our Priority |
l PSR Services Register {PSR) \ f
! and how they can benefit ’ '
‘! from being on it. | ‘
| |
i Helping those | The number of customers 324,750 344 483 ‘ 292,577 n/a ‘—‘
1 struggling to who are struggling to pay ] !
pay their water bill and who I \
receive l %
‘ financial support through I |
| ane of the Company's 3 |
| financial support schemes. .
J Community The percentage increase in 137.5% 104% 2.0% n/a |
i investment community investment ;
| programmes through which }
‘ the Company adds social i ‘
‘ value to its communities }
! (compared to 2020/21}. {
‘ Customer The improvement in 0.34 0.09 0.02 n/a
| trust Company score for a survey
of customers by the !
? Consumer Council for Water ‘ |
about the trust that ‘ 3
! customers place in the \ |
i Company. 1
" BSI Standard | To maintain certification for Maintained Maintained Maintained n/a

+ far Inclusive
| Service
|

the British Standard for
Inclusive Service Provision

(BS 18477).
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I'what are we How are we measuriag it? Prior year Current year | Current year | Reward or :
| measuring? performance ' performance | target ! penalty
| (2621/22) - (2022/23) | (2022/23) | outcome for
| o ia022/23 ﬁiﬁ
: Partnership Investments delivered 35 49 ; 92 by 2025 n/a I
[ working on working in partnership with ’ i ‘
r’ pluvial and other organisations to ‘ r '
’ tHuwvial flood protect infrastructure from i

! risk Jf flooding 1 :

Priority services for customers in vulnerable circumstances: We are significantly ahead of target on all areas
refating to our support for vulnerable customers, including, most notably, take-up of our Priority Services
Register, which has already met the full AMP target. Now, 11.4% of customers are signed-up to the PSR agamnst
a national average of 5%.

Helping those struggling to pay: We supported in excess of 330,000 customers with a £65 million cost-of-living
package, and announced £135 million in support for 2023/24

Community lnvestment: In our pursult to bring social prospenty to our region, in 2022/23, we directly reachead
or supported an estimated 58,267 people through our community invesiment activities, delivered by aurselves
and through our Alliance partners. Qur OD! target is 2%, we outperformed, achieving 104%.

Partnership working on nluvial and fluvial fiood risk: Our flocod partnership approach has resulted in 45
outputs being achieved coflaboratively so far this AMP. One example is our continued engagement through
the Norfolk Strategic Flood Alliance, supporting a catchment-based approach to protect Norfolk communities
and infrastructure against the risks of inland and coasta! flooding, as well as drought. Dur work 1S one part of
the puzzie to deliver an ambitious multi-agency approach that reduces risk, rather than focusing on response.
QOur partnership match-funding and outputs delivered increasea sharply in years four and five of this AMP. so
we are confident we remain on track to deliver oaur commitment of 92 outputs.
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Investing for tomorrow

mains bursts

that are identified and
reported by a customer or
third party before

they are identified by the
Company.

What are we How are we measuring ii? Prior year Current year | Current " Reward or
measuring? performance ' performance | year target | penalty

(2021/22) ' {2022/23) {2022/23) outcome for T
| | 2022/23 |
Mains repairs Number of repairs made o 122.2 : 173.2 136.2 -£4.4 million |
water mains per Ludo km i
of total water mains. : ;
Unplanned Percentage of maximum 1.72% 1.91% 2.324% Met (penalty |
i outage water treatment works | applied I '
‘ output unavailable during ‘ unmet) !
the year. ‘ |
Sewer Number of sewer cotlapses 5.44 5.2% ' 5.50 Met (penalty ‘
collapses per 1,000 km of sewers. , 5 applied if ‘
unmet) i
Treatment Percentage of water and 98.22% ' 98.57% 100% -0.6million ?
works sawage treatment works I :
compliance meeting permits for the '
gquality of water :
discharged to the . f i
environment. : !
Reactive Reactive bursts are those 3,322 5,140 3,063 n/a :

*Q0ur current year performance is subject to finalisation.

Main repairs (and reactive mains bursts): Climate-related events in both summer and winter impacted burst

mains performance. In our heavily drained region with clay and other soil types, underground assets are

particularly susceptible te ground movement, especially in dramatically changing environments experienced

this year. Qur teams worked hard to minimise the impact on customers, and deploying our Anglian Water
Force incident teams where needed. in Ely, the only community that was significantly impacted through the
whole period, we were praised by customers for our quick response. Qur recards show that December 2022

saw our highest ever burst main repairs recarded since 2011/12.

Treatment works compliance: Our compliance improved from 98.2% (2021) to 58.6% in 2022 and we

recorded fewer failing treatment works. This continues to be a significant area of focus.

Sewer coliapses: Sewer collapses is a measure of the health of gur water recycling network. We have

delivered an improved level of performance this year by focussing our investment on our highest nisk sewers

and rising mains.

Unglanned outages: Unplanned outages are a measure of the health of our water treatment assets. It is the

percentage of capacity {peak week production capacity) unavailable throughout the year. We have maintained

a low level of outage this year.
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

As Anglian Water Services Limited is the only company within the Group with over 500 employees and with
turnover greater than £500 million it is the scle Company required to report under Task Force for Climate-
Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). As such, all references below refer to Anglian Water Services Limited and
it should be read in conjunction with the fuil disclosure within the AWS Annual integrated Report (AIR},

Making information about climate-related risks and opportunities available to our stakeholders is key to how
we operate.

That is why, since 2017, we've made disclosures under the recommendations of the Task Force for Climate-
Refated Financial Disclosures (TCFD), adopting them well ahead of their mandatory introduction.

We continue to improve our climate-refated disclosures year on year as we keep abreast of the latest
requirements and best practice. We believe that our approach is consistent with 10 of the 11 TCFD
recommendations.

The area we will contimue ta work on for 2023/24 15: Strategy, Part B - Describe the impact of ciimate-related
risks and opportunities on the organisation’s businesses, strategy, and financial planming. This s specifically
around our plans for transitioning to a low-carbon economy and the guantification of future financial impacts.

introduction

Sustainability is at the heart of everything we da — our Company purpose ‘is to bring environmental and social
prosperity ta the region we serve through aur commitment to Lave Every Drap’ — and we fundamentally

understand the links between the provision of water supply and water recycling services and the environment.

This understanding that the health of the environment both influences, and is impacted by, our operauons has
driven our successful adoption of a host of climate-related commitments and targets over many years. Qur
approach is set out throughout this section of the repart.

Our annual report complies with the requirement of LR 3.8.6R by including climate-related financial
disclosures.

Highlights

+  Named by the Financial Times and Statista as a European Climate Leader

+ £4380.8 million green bonds raised in the year, and a total of £2.6 billion of sustainable financing since
2017

+  Ontrack to achieve net zero operational carbon emissians by 2030

« Ontrack to achieve a 70 per cent reduction in capital carbon by 2030

+ Platinum certified by Achilles Carbon Reduce (formerly CEMARS), signalling 10+ consecutive years of
carbon reductions
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Governance

Disclose the organisation’s governance around ciimate-related risks and opportunities

Page Further references

pages + See grganisational structure on page 51
51-54 » See cimate-related governanre on page 51
Straiegy

Disclose the actual and potential impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s
businesses, strategy, and financial planning where such information 15 material

Page Further references
pages = See climate-related strategy on page 54
54-62 +« Water Resources Management Plan

«  Water Recycling Long-Term Plan

» Sustainable Finance impact Report 2023 (due for update in July 2023)
«  Strategic Direction Statement

» Climate Change Adaptation Report

» Net Zero Carbon Routemap

« See CReDo on page 60

Risk management

Disciose how the organisation identifies, assesses and manages climate-related risks

Page Further references
page » See climate-related risk management aon page 63
63-69 « See gur approach to risk on page 68

»  See our principal risks on page 69
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Metrics & targeis

Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevant chmate-related risks and opportunities
where such information 1s material

Page Further references
pages »  See our climate-related metncs and targets on page 64-65
54-65 »  See our greenhouse gas performance on page 64-65

+  NetZero Carbon 2030 Routemap
+«  (limate Change Adaptation Report

Climate-related governance
Where we manage climate risks and opportunities

+  Board of Directors

*  Remuneration Committee - Remuneration policy linked to ESG
= Audit Committee — Review the Company’s top-tier risks
»  Management Board

«  Chmate Change and Carbon Steering Group

»  Resilience Steering Graup

»+  Six Capitals Steering Group

« Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group

+ Finance Climate Group

= Sustainability Team

« Carbon Neutrality and Climate Change Team

+  Sustainability Community

Board oversight

The Anglian Water Services (AWS) Board retains overall oversight of climate-reiated risks and opportunities. (n
the course of its meetings, the Board discussed climate-related issues when relevant, for example reviewing
the draft Water Resaurces Management Plan and dealing with demand i1ssues during the dry, hot summer.
Climate-related risks are included within the Company’s top-tier nsk register and managed through risk
management and internal control systems. The Board led the business to be one of the first uplities ro raise

finance through a Green Band, in 2017, which the business was able to do due o the governance structura we
have in place as an arganisation.

in December 2020, Anglian Water published its latest Climate Change Adaptation Report, which was driven
and overseen by the Board. The Board has also driven and supported the commitment for the Company to be
net zero carbon by 2030; indeed, aur Chief Executive Peter Simpsaon was co-sponsar of the sectar-wide Water
UK commitment {www.water.org.uk/routemap2o39/}.
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This net zero 2030 commitment covers our Scope 1 and 2 emissions, together with those Scope 3 emissions
we’'re reguired to report. The beard monitors progress through review of performance commitments, as do

the committees noted below.

tn addition, we've also committed to reducing our capital carbon emissions — those Scope 3 emissions arising
as a consequence of building and maintaining our assets — by 70 per cent against a 2010 baseline by 2030.
We're currently developing our strategy to further reduce Lhese emissions post 2030.

Peter Simpson is co-chair of the UK Corporate Leaders Group {CLG UK}, part of the University of Cambridge
Institute for Sustainability Leadership, while our Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, Dame Polly
Courtice, is the Institute’s Founding Director and now Emeritus Director. CLG UK provides a strong veice to
support UK leadership an climate change and draws together business leaders from a wide range of sectors.
Many AWS Board members sit on external bodies such as Business in the Community {BITC), where Peter
Simpson chairs the kast of Engiand Leadership Team. In May 2022 Peter Simpson was included in the ENDS
Report power fist of the 10C most influential environmental professionals in the UK.

The role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a key role in monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting,
reviewing the material financial judgements and assessing the internal control environment. The Committee
nrovides effective aversight of both financial and non-financial disclosures, including climate-related financial
disclosures. The Committee receives presentations or papers from senior management, including the Group
Risk manager, regarding the management of key risks, including the overall review of the top-tier risk register,
which is formally presented bi-annuaily. The Committee aiso approves our annual internat audit plan and
therefore can drive the areas of focus.

The role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee plays a key role in ensuring that climate change, and the ESG agenda in general,
are given appropriate focus right at the top of the organisation.

A portion of variable executive remuneration is already aligned to our purpose, as embodied by ESG measures.
For 2022/23 the Committee has decided to go further, increasing the overall weighting given specifically to
environmental and social measures. These measures include our perfermance as a business in aoperational and

embpedded carbon.
The role of management

During the year we have appointed our first Chief Sustainability Officer role. This new role will work with and

challenge our Board, ensuring decisions are guided by our purpose framewaork.

In general, the Management Board meets three times each month and discusses issues impacting chmate
change —indeed, these meetings are often shaped by the agendas and outcomes of the groups specified
below. The Management Board consists of our CEO and CFO, along with key decision makers wrthin the
organisation, who chair many of the groups discussed below.
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These groups are made up of key subject matter experts and representatives are drawn from across the
business. There is membership overlap on the groups in order to ensure effective coardination and
cooperation. The members have annual objectives which directly or indirectly relate to climate change. These
groups are chaired by a member of the Managemeant Board; through them, targets are set and action plans
developed to ensure climate-related risks and carbon are measured, managed and reduced.

The Climate and Carbon Steering Group has been created by combining the Carbon Neutrality Steering Group
and the Climate Change Steering Group. By creating a singfe group all employees responsible for climate
change mitigation and adaptation are present. We believe that this group will better deliver insight into and
progress against climate change mitigation and adaptation. This new group meets monthly with time s&t aside
in each meating for ‘deep dives’ into specific themes, such as electric vehicle strategy, process emissions
reductions, etc chosen to most appropriately address chimate-related risks. The Group i1s chaired by a member
of the management board and 2 other management beard members attend ensuring that this group is
integrated with the overall strategy of the business. Pertadic updates are provided to management board
when required, for example our Net Zero Carbaon 2030 performance update.

Strategy documents are currently being developed in line with our net zera 2030 targets. These will be
reviewed by this group to ensure consistency in approach and measurement against plans.

This group will be integral to the development of our climate adaptation investment plans for the next AMP
periad, as well as the preparation of our next Climate Change Adaptation Report to be submitted to
government and progress against our 2030 carbon commitments to the Management and AWS Boards

The Resilience Steering Group, chaired by the CEQ, is responsible for assessing and improving Anglian Water's
resilience to shocks and stresses (e.g. acute and chronic risks). Anglian Water has introduced six capitals
thinking {see ‘Business model’, pages 13-14} and integrated them in the governance pracess for alt praoject
appraisals in the organisation, so that alf six capitals — natural, financial. social, manufacturing, people and
intellectual — are considered when making decisions between available options.

In addition to the groups above, which take the principal role in managing climate-related risk, other groups
also play an impartant role in developing climate-related approaches.

The Six Capitais Steering Group has developed a methodology to assign values to measures across each of the
six capitals and their contributing factors allowing for project appraisals to consider value in the broadest
possible sense.

Anglian Water has developed a methodology for capturing and reporting on this data allowing for reports on
performance against the six capitals to be \ncluded in a wider purpose dashboard that can/will be reported to
the Board on a regular basis.
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The Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group also plays an important role in managing transition risks and
opportunities and is chaired by Steve Buck, Chief Financia! Officer (CFO). Through this group, optiens are
discussed around raising sustainabie finance and potential projects aimed at generating cur own energy {such
as a recent solar initiative at Grafham, which went an to be approved by the Board). The group’s members
include the CFOQ, the Group Treasurer, other Management Board Directors and the Head of Carbon Neutrality.

The purpose of the Finance Climate Group is to create a central team within finance to coordinate, collate and
share best practice on firancial planning and reporting with regards to sustainahility, carbor and climate-
change issues. The Group has improved the link between finance functions, and those delivering climate
solutions around the business, through ensuring appropriate representation dacrass the differant areas.

The Group prioritises the finance sustainability projects to enable finance and the husiness to achieve 1ts grals.
Our CFO is invited to attend once a year to update to progress and prioritisation.

Anglian Water has alsa faunched a Sustainability Community where all Anglian Water employees and alliance
partners can post sustainability-related activities, ask questions and seek feedback from experts on ideas and
initiatives. This community ensures engagement with and input into the climate change, carbon and
sustainability agenda is open to all; white we have a structure in ptace for managing and manitoring climate-
related issues we're aware that ideas to address these issues can come from a host of sources. This community
aims to harness these ideas and the widespread commitment to sustainability across Anglian Water and our
partriers, so that the collective knowledge of our whole arganisation is maximised.

Following the success of the Sustainability Community, which is open to all our peopie, in the current year we
launched the Sustainability Centre of Excellence. This is a consultative and cottaborative forum for those
leading on sustainability and purpose through the organisation ta identity synergies, maximise impact and

increase transparency,
Climate-related strategy
Climate-related risis, opportunities and impact

As stated in our fatast Adaptation Repart {(published in 2020}, climate change in our regian will tead to less
rainfall in summer and mare in winter. Drier summers and a limited capacity to store an increase in winter
rainfalt means that there will be less water available through the year. Climate change is also likely to increase
the demand for water amang hoth household and non-hausehold customers in a drier, warmear climate. Left
unmanaged, this combination of reducing supply and increasing demand results in one of gur most significant
climate-related risks. We have been assessing the impact of climate change on water resources since the
1990s. We have seen more extremes in weather conditions aver the recent years and this s a trend we expect
to cantinue. Our next adaption report is due to be published in 2024,

Our governance structure has attowed us to identify climate-related gpportunities in vanous forums across the
organisation. These are centralised and reviewed within the Climate and Carbon Steering Group.
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Key risk

Drivers

Potential impact

Response to risk

Negative impact on our
supply/demand balance
and our ability to serve

customers

Short, medium and long
term

Hotter, drier
summers
increasing
drought
severity and
frequency
combined
with forecast
population
growth

On customaers:

«  increase mnnterruplticns
to sunply

«  Low water-pressure 1ssues

«  Drought restrictions mare
commanplace

On business:

«  Impact onour financial
penalty/reward position

« increase n operating
costs to deal with periads
of drought

<« Increase in capttal
investment reguired

We maintain a 25-year Water
Resources Management Plan
{WRMP} which quantifies the
nead and recommends

investment to maintain the
supply/demand balance ta avoid
water shortages 1in the context of
drought and population growth
This 25-year plan is refreshed
every five years to incorporate
short, medium and long term
actions, the next is due for
publication later tn 2023, This
approach therefare delivers over
a short, medium and long-term

timaframe.

We have recently completed a
study into climate vulnerable
mains — that is mains vulnerable
to bursts as a consequence of
drought induced soil shrinkage
and will be developing an

investment program accordingly.

We are just embarking an a study
investigating the impact of
extreme summer temperatures
an our assets o develop

resiitence strategies

Megative impact on our
customers and the
environment caused by
failure to cope with
impact of increased

nrecipiation

Increased
frequency of
periods of
heavy rainfall
combined
with wetter,

warmer

On customers:

« Internal and external
sewer flooding and impact
on customers’ nomes

+increase ininterruptions
to supply

We maintain a 25-year Watar
Recycling Lang-Term Plan
(WWRLTP) which assesses the risks
to our water recyching

infrastructure and promotes the
use of sustainable and wnnovative
solutions. This 25-year plan s
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Key risk Drivers

Potential impaci

Response to risk

Short, medium and feng  winters

term

On business:

+ Impact on our financial
penalty /reward position
as well as environmental
penalties

+  Increase in operating
costs to deal with heavy
rainfali and associated
flooding

« Increase in capitai
Investrnent required.

refreshed every five years, the
next is due for publication fater in
2023. This approach therefore
delivers aver a short, medium

and long-term timeframe.

One-off events which Increased

impact ahility to severity and
operate frequency of

storms
Shart, medium and long

term

On customers:

* Increase ininterruptions
to supply

+ Impact on leakage due to
freeze-thaw process

On business:

+  Physical damage to assets
and infrastructure
impacting abitity to
operate in an area

+ Increase in aperating
costs during and after the
event

+ Increase in capital
investment following the
event

We manage these risks with
business continuity and
meticulous emergency response
planning. We have well-
rehearsed paolicies, plans and
procedures to ensure we
minimise any risk to customers
and the envirenment. This aliows
us to react to incidents in the
short term while we plan for the
medium and longer-term

timeframes.
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Key apportunity

Drivers

Impact on business

Strategy to realise opnoctunity

Energy consumption
reduction programme

Short and medium term

increased .
cost of .

energy

Reduced operating costs
Reduction in operational
and capital carbon
Reduced enargy
consumption

Reduced reliance on grid
power thus increasing grid
resilience

We have a dedicated initiative to
identify appartunities ta reduce
energy, carbon and cost.
funding 1s made available for
this initiative, providing it pays
Back i five years or tewer, We
alsg consider investments which
may pay back over a longer
periog of time.

Correlation of reducing,
carbon reduces cost

Short and medium term

Need to .
reduce
carbon
footprint and
alignment
with aur net

zero targets,

Reduced captital investment
reqguired on projects
Reduction in operational
and capital carbon

Qur strategy 1s consistent with
the international standard for
capital carbon management, PAS
2080, with which we assisted BSI
in1ts development. PAS 2080
aims to achieve a systematic
aracess for infrastructure
delivery in which carbon
management under the direct
control of the value chamn is the

main focus.

Uptake of renewable
energy

Short, medium and long
term

The rising ‘.
cast of grid .
pawer and
the :
increasing

appetite for
renewable

power

Reduced operating costs
Increase in grean enargy
consumption

Reduction in energy
required to be imported
and oppartunities tg export

lnvestment 1n the aptimisation
of our combined heat and power
{CHP) programme, biomethane
programme and sotar
photovoltaic instaliations af our

sites.

Our investment periods cover five years and have therefore used a five year horizon to define short term. The

development of these five-year investment plans is undertaken in the context of 2 much longer timeframe. For

example, the WRMP is a 25-year plan and our net zero carbon commitment published 1n 2021 15 to 2030,

therefare 5-25 years has been used to define medium term with anything longer than this defined as lang

term.

Impacts are variabte acrass the geography of our region and therefore approaches are developed in this

contaxt. For examaupie, our Strategic Pipeiline Alliance (SPA]j Project was develoged to transport water from the

north of the Angiian Water region where there are Water Resource Zones (WRZ) in surplus, to the south where

there are WRZ in deficit thus delivering water resihence to the whole region.
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We also consider customer meter penetration and leakage rates as opportunities to drive reduced water

consumption.
Financial Impact

During the year, climate related weather events have led te a negative financial impact on the business. The
Board agreed to invest £13.9 million with a virw tn maintaining vur industry leadimyg leakage position as we
sought to recover from a number of weather-related events throughout the year. The first six months of the
year saw very little rainfail and as a result we saw exceptionally dry ground conditions. This was then
compounded by two freezing cold spells in winter, followed by a rapid rise In temperatures. Rapid freeze-thaw
conditions led to ground movements that interfere with our infrastructure.

These weather events alsc negatively impacted our performance commitments. The overall penalty in the year
totalled £22 miliion, the adverse wedlher experienced within the year largely contributed to this. See more in
our Performance Commitments Dashboard, pages 35 to 48, which discusses our Cfwat targeted performance
cammitments.

Organisational resilience and scenario planning

Anglian Water’s overall resilience to climate-related risk is addressed in a host of ways. but most specifically
through our Water Resources Management Plan [WRMP), Water Recycting Long-Term Plan {WRLTP} and
Strategic Direction Statement. The forthcoming Drainage and Waste Water Management Plan, to be published
later in 2023, will provide further key strategic input.

Woe also publish a Climate Change Adaptation Report (CCAR}, have developed and published a Net Zero Carbon
2030 Routemap, and have developed robust and long-standing partnerships with our supply chain to address
climate resilience and low carbon delivery. For the detailed scenario analysis, refer to the linked documents.

For detaifed analysis and conclusion, refer to the long-term viability statement on pages 98-101 in the AIR.
Water Resources Management Plan {WRMNP)

In preparing our current 25-year WRMP we used climate-related scenario analysis. The approach is consistent
with the Environment Agency’s 2017 methodology for ‘Estimating impacts of climate change on water supply”.
in praducing our supply forecast we used the 11 Spatially Coherent Projections {SCPs) in UK Climate Projection
0% (UKCPOY) far each high, medium and tow scenaric. Our next WRMP is due for publication later in 2023,

The results of the climate change scenario analysis identified that two of our 28 Water Resource Zones [\WRZ)
were particularly vulnerable to climate change, and that there would be a material impact on the
supply/demand balance in another five WRZs due to climate change. These supply/demand impacts were
combined with the impacts due to growth and other drivers to understand the total impact on the
supply/demand balance in each WRZ and therefore to better deveiop resilience strategies for the WRZs,
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Water Recycling Long-Term Plan {\WRLTP)

As described in our current 25-year WRLTP, climate change scenarios form part of our hydraulic modelling
standards for assessing growth risk to service fram aur water recycling infrastructure. We used UKCPQ9 high
emission scenarios for 2025, 2045 and 2065 to support the assessment of climate risk i our investment
programme, which included up to a 20 per cent increase in rainfall. These time horizons were chosen to allow
engineers to align climate change with the design hfe of the solution. For example, a pumping station may only
be viable for 20 years, while a pipeline will typically have a much longer design life.

The WRLTP describes how the inherent uncertainties in planmng for growth and chmate change necessitated
the use of scenario ptanning. In response, we've taken a risk-based approach to developing an appropriate
investment strategy at Anglian Water. We've followed a Branze, Silver, Gold risk-based process to assess risk
of detriment and to prioritise investment for over a thousand catchments and Water Recycling Centres
(WRCs), to give us an integrated long-term strategy.

This approach gives an understanding of the level of risk climate change may present and solutions were
costed and benefit-assessed at high level, including natural capital assessment of sustainable urban dramage
solutions [SuDs). The solution of greatest cost benefit was promoted for investrmant in the penod 2020-2025
These solutions help us deliver against our long-term goals, including the ambitions to make the East of

tngland resilient to the impacts of flooding and ta enable sustainable ecanamic and hausing growth.
Adopting cost-effective, resilient solutions

Two of the lowest cost solutions to build climate resilience in a particufar catchment, which had features
including XYZ, included investment in SuDS and upsizing of the catchment. The SuDS project included the
creation of tree pits, bioretention, swales to carry away starm water, and attenuating rain gardens, combined
with an attenuation pond, a green or ‘living’ roof, rain gardens and soakaway.

The upsizing soiution involved upsizing assets including a gravity sewer, three pumping stations and
associated rising mains, together with the sealing of 15 manholes. The second salution proposed, which
factored in a 20 per cent increase in rainfall, only differed in a handful of areas: it recommended a slightly
iarger upsizing of the sewer (1,853m as opposed to 1,777m}, marginally larger offiine storage (358m2Z vs
1,036m2) and an increased sluice opening height. Therefore option one was sefected, as it offered almost the

same degree of resilience but at lower cost.
Addressing cimate-related supply challenges

South Essex was one of the Water Resource Zones identified as being at risk of water supply and demand
issues, as a resuit of climate change Anglian Water has started to build a new network of hundreds of
kilometres of vast interconnected pipelines. This huge infrastructure project — our biggest to date — will, by
2025, enable us ta transfer water from areas where there is surplus (Lincolnshire] to the South Essex WRZ and
other areas where deficits have been identified.
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Strategic Direction Statement

Our Strategic Direction Statement (5DS), first published in 2007 and refreshed in 2017, sets out our long-term
goals ‘to be a net zero carbon business by 2030° and to make the East of England resilient to the risks of
drought and flooding’ (our biggest climate-rejated risks).

Our annual Greenhouse Gas Report charts the deciine in intensity factor s used to indicate the decarbonisation
of our services. Our strategy is doscribed in more detail in the SDS, and our Climate Change Adaptation Report
desiribes how climate change is embedded into everything we do. We're also lgading the way mn green

financing, having issued more than £1 billion-worth of Green Bonds since we became the first European utility

company to issue a sterling Green Bond in 2017,

The investiments made through the Green Bonds issued to date are expected to support 3 63% reduction from
the Company’s 2010 capital carbon baseline.

Engoging with our value chain

Our engagement with our supply chain on climate change was launched back in 2007 when we invited our key
partrers to HRH The Prince of Wales's first Mayday Summit. Since then we've worked with our design and
construction partners to reduce capital carbon by more than 63 per cent.

in February 2023 we brought our value chain together to discuss climate change resilience, climate change
adaptation and our journey ta net zero carban. Qur ‘Climate for Change’ evant had gver 100 attendees with
Chris Stark, Chief Executive of the Committee for Climate Change, kicking off the day with a ‘call tc arms’. As a
result of the event, a number af collaborative workstreams will be taken forward. Collaboration is an enabler

to the complexities of adapting to climate change.

An exampie of vaiue chain collaboration is our Ofwat-funded research project to better understand whole life
carbon - that is the carbon associated with constructing, operating, maintaining and the end of life of cur
assets. Whole Life Carbon will integrate carbon and cost models into a singie digital approach, enabling users
to consider options to aveid constructing new assets through re-using existing infrastructure ar selecting lower
carbon materials. The project has already identified future opportunities to combine carbon and climate
resiliance, .This is just ane example aut of five that we are leading an, as part of Ofwat’s Water Breakthrough
Challenge, where we have secured £17 3million in Ofwat Innovation funding to create sclutions to our

industry’s biggest challenges.

in 2016 we became the first organisation to be verified against PAS2080, which is the worid's first standard for
managing carbon in infrastructure. Designed to drive best practice in managing carbon across the supply chamn,
in 2023 PAS2080 was revised. We aim to be verified against this revised standard later this year.

Fartnering cn the Climate Resilience Demoistrator {CReDo)

We understand that our assets operate in an inter-related infrastructure system — we are reliant on the power
rnetwork for electricity, the telecoms network for communications and the road systern for access. In turn, the
power and telecams network are in some cases reliant on the water network, A failure in one of these
elements of the system can iead to cascade failure, where other elements of this linked infrastructure network
fail as a consequence. Extreme weather events can cause this fallure.
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In 2021 the Climate Change Committee assessed infrastructure inter-dependencies as having a low-guality
ptan and that infrastructure owanears were making slower pragress than needed to manage risk.

in an effort to better understand these inter-gependencies in the context of a changing chimate, we
participated in the ground-breaking Climate Resilience Demonstrater (CReDo) project with a number of
organisations including the Centre for Digital Built Britain, the National Digital Twin Programme, the
Cannected Places Catapult, UK Paower Networks and BT.

Showcased at COP26, the project involved asset owners sharing asset data which was then synthesised with
geoagraphic information system (GIS) data to understand how assets are linked in 3 geographic area. A flooding
scenarto was then run to understand failures within the system.

The CReDo project gave important insight into how inter-related assets fail and how organisations can
effectively share data and co-operate to develop holistic climate rasilience solutions at an infrastructure
system level. Ofwat and Ofgem funding has been secured to develop the next phase of CReDao. We are teading
a project to understand the impacts of extreme and prolanged heat on the resilience of our assets which will
enable effective planning in adapting to the future

More detart an this project can be found here: What ts CReDo? ~ DT Hub Commumnity (digitaltwinhub.co.uk).

Engaging with our customers

We regularly engage with custormners through a vanety of channels to seek their views on our approach o
addressing climate change. Customer channels include:

«  The Customer Engagement Forum (CEF). Set upin 2011, the CEF has an ongoing role in challenging us
oh how we engage with customers and monitoring how we perform on commitments. 1fs members
come from a wide range of backgrounds to represent the interests of household and business
customers, cammunities, the environment and the ecanomy;

Our online cammunity of 500 customers, whase views we seek weekly an a wide range of topics; ang
Our Customer Board, which comprises a representative selection of members from the online
community to provide further guidance and directly feed in customers’ views.

QOur Business Plan for 2020-2025 saw us engaged with ¢.500,000 customers; the majonty of which told us they
want us to invest in resilience to climate change now, rather than in the future.

We also issue key climate-related plans, including our Drought Plan, Water Resources Management Plan,
Climate Change Adaptation Report and Drainage and Waste Water Management Plan, for public consultation,
incorporating and reflecting their feedback before plans are formally published.

an
—
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innovating to reduce carban emissions

We have recently rearganised how we deliver innovatian through our business The Innovation Discovery Team
ieads much of our research and development work. Reporting to cur Chief Engineer, it invests about £2.5
mitlion per year into ground-breaking research and projects. . One of the team’s current projects is the Ofwat-
funded Triple Carbon Reduction project exploring how to reduce process emissions which, afrer electricity, is
our biggest saurces of emissions,, alongside reduring crneigy consumpticn in water recycling and producing
hydrogen. Hyrrogen putentially represents a large scale opportunity for carbon reductions going forward but
currently there is much uncertainty round how this new modef may waork. This project will increase

undersianding of how Hydrogen could play a role in the future.

Generating renewable energy

The vast majority of our operational emissions are associated with the electricity used to pump, treat and
recycle water. Onc of the opportunities for reducing our emissions — and our costs - i5 to generate renewable
energy from our sewage sfudge, and to generate renewable power on our sites from wind and solar. Not only
does generating renewable energy reduce our impact on the environment, it also mitigates the transition risk
associated with changes in policy and cost linked to decarbonising the UK's electriaity.

In 2004 we had only two sites with combined heat and power engines (CHP) producing less than 8GWh per
annum. We now have 10 sites producing more than 113GWh per annum. in 2012 we installed our first wind
turbines and in 20156 we installed our first solar arrays.

We're now committed to increasing the renewable energy we produce to 40 per cent of our consumption by
2025.

Energy efficiency

As well as generating our awn renewable energy, we're alsa pursuing other oppartunities to reduce our
carbon emissions and reduce costs. This includes an energy efficiency 'spend-to-save’ programme, designing
carban out of the new assets we build and reducing travel emussions. This programme was launched in 2006
and delivered savings of mare than £10 million within four years. We have now embarked on our 20GwH

challenge — attempting to generate energy cansumption savings across the business

Warking in pactnership

To reduce the climate-related risks we face from drought and flooding we're partnering with ather
stakeholders to better manage our limited water and financial resources. For exampie, we've identified
opportunities to enter into funding partnerships to deitver a single cost-effective flooding scheme to protect

the assets of multiple stakeholders.

Every five years we publish a statutory WRMP and 3 Drought Plan to set out the investment and interventions
required to minimise the risk of a drought. We also prepare investment plans for flooding every five years
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By 2025, we expect aur investment and interventions to have reduced the risk of severe restrictions in a L-in-
200-year drought so that it 1s approaching zero, and to have reached a position where fewer than 10 per cent
of our customers are at risk of sewer flooding in a storm {1-1n-50-year storm). By 2025, we expect our
investment and interventions to have reduced the risk of severe restrictions i a 1-in-200-year drought so that
it is approaching zero, and to have reached a position where fewer than 10 per cent of our customers are at
risk of sewer floading in a storm {1-in-50-year starm).

Climate-related risk management
identifying and assessing climate-related risks

We have 13 principal risks, as discussed on page 69. Climate change is a consideration of each of these.
identification of current and emerging climate risks, inciuding risks presented through impiementation of
change, is undertaken as part of our embedded risk processes utilising expert judgement, historical data,
external data and forward- locking analysis. We use scenanas to inform aur future direction. The development
of adaptive planning, which is part of cur PR24 planning pracess, will define a number of climate scenarnios
with altermative and adaptive pathways which can be adopted as the ciimate changes. Through monitoring of

performance against a pre-defined set of decision points, tipping points and thresholds, our adaptive plan
becomes dynamic and iterative.

The assessment and management of climate-related risks 15 consistent with the approach usad to manage risk
throughout the business. Climate-related risks were identified and assessed during the production of our latest
Climate Change Adaptation Report. Climate risks are also identified and managed through the preparation of
tong-term plans and the delivery of individual investmants. We review the current risk level and how our
controls provide confidence ang assurance around our management of that risk.

Managing climate-related risks

The management of climate related risks is consistent with our approach to manage risk throughout the
business.

In preparing the WRMP, the impact of climate change was identified, and then customers and stakeholders
were consulted an our proposals for adaptation. Most respondents shared our view that investment it cimate

change should not be delayed. Our latest WRwWIP is currently under review following a similar stakeholder
engagement strategy.

in addition, we're also undertaking research into customer views of climate change adaptation approaches as
part of our PR24 {2025--2030) investment process.

tntegrating climate-related risk into overal! risk strategy
Qur approach to climate-related risks are fully intagrated within our overall risk strategy.

Within this system we define what constitutes substantial financial and strategic impact to the business. A
significant impact on cash at Anglian Water is defined in the risk register as being greater than £25 milhon,
white a major impact s between £10 miltian and £25 mullion.
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We've developed a process to assess, manage and mitigate the climate resiience of individual investments.
Climate resilience is included within the Six Capitals Framewaork, which includes both resilience to changing
weather patierns as a consequence of climate change and carbon impacts. These carbon impacts are

operational and capital.

A monetised cost benefit analysis is also carried cut on these investments, using mir wel -estabhshed Risk,
Oppartunity and Value {ROV) process. Investments are theén assessed for climate resilience, aperational carban

performance and Lapital carbon performance through each design gateway as the design nerates,

Anglian Water has previousiy used an internal price of carbon to mmvestigate how this might advance carbon
reduction. This proved of limited value. Hence, we transformed the thinking of the organisation to recognise
that reducing carbon does reduce cost. Setting this expectation alongside ambitious carban targets (65 per
cent capital carbon reduction target by 2025 and 70 per cent by 2030 against a baseline of 2010} and a
rigorous pracess verified to PAS 2080 has proven much maore effective.

The recognition that reducing carbon reduces costs is used to drive behaviour change and deliver financial
efficiencies throughout the organisation. This is most clearly seen in the delivery of the five- yearly capital
investment programme, worth c. £2 biflion, in accordance with PAS 2080.

The data collected on our carbon versus cost saving can be used to estimate an impticit financial value for a

tonne of carbon.

The Performance Commitments section contains the metrics and targets we are using to understand progress
against climate related risk. Performance against these metrics (s set out annually in our APR return. Qur
current Climate Change Adapiation report alsc includes discussion on key metrics, our updated Climate

Change Adaptation Report will be published in 2024.
Scope 1, Scope ? and refevant Scope 3 Greenhouse Gas Emissions {GHG)

Metrics and torgets

This table meets the requirements of the Streambined Energy and Carlron Reporting (SECR) regulations.

Units 2021722 2022/23 Inclusions
Energy cansumption  kWh 1,047,019,565 1.073,538,743 Electricity, gas, fuels combusted an
used to catculate site (fossi fuels and biogas), transport
emissions kWwh {company cars, fleet vehicles, personal

and hire cars on business use) plus

liquid fuels consumed on site

SCOPE 1~ Gas and Tonnes CO2e 11,936 10,541  Fossit fuel combusted, natural gas and
fuel o consumption biogas

SCOPE 1 - Pracess Tonnes CO2e 81,601 85,859 ‘Water and waste water treatment.
and fugitive
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Units 2021/22 2022/23 inclusions
amissians brogas
SCOPE 1 —~ Owned Tonnes COZ2e 20,854 21,804 Fleet vehlidles and Company cars
transport
SCOPE 1 - Tolat Tunnes C02e 114,350 118,304
SCOPE 2 —Purchased Tonnes COZJe 134,894 121,994  Grid efectricity — location-based
efectricity alectric for vehicles
SCOPE 2 — Total Tonnes CQ2e 134,854 121,994
SCOPE 3 — Business Tonnes CO2e 306 621 Private cars, public transport
travel
SCOPE 3 ~ Tannes CO2e 12,834 13,144 Qutsourced tankars
Qutsourced
transport
SCOPE 3 —Purchased Tonnes COZe 11,837 11,154  Transmission & distribution
electricity
SCOPE 3 ~Total Tonnes CO2e 25,077 24,920 We have notincluded commuting,
significant capital carbon and emissions from use
of water in customers” homes.
TOTAL ANNUAL Tonnes CO2e 274,362 265,219
GROSS EMISSIONS
Exported renewables  Tonnes CO2e -4,94p6 -6,334  Exported renewables REGO certified
Green tariff Tannes CO2e 0 0
TOTAL ANNUAL NET  Tonnes CO2e 269,416 258,884
EMISSIONS
INTENSITY RATIO — Kg CQ2e per 203.73 192 48
water treated vt
INTENSITY RATIO —~ Kg CO2e per 425.20 409 54
recycled water hul
INTENSITY RATIO - Kg CO2e per 23261 22779 Full flow ta treatment
recycled water el




Osprey Holdce Limited

Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Methaodalogy:

Emissions have been calculated using Carbon Accounting Workbook v17 (2023) an industry standard reporting
tool. We have followed the 2620 UK Government environmental reporting guidance. We have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting standard (revised edition) and emission factors from the UK
Government’s GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2023 to calculate the above disclosures. There
have been no methodological changes in the way emissions have been calculated in financial year 2022-2023
agamst 2021-22.

The reporting houndary covers the emissions within the regulated activity of Anglian Water Services Ltd where
we have operational controf i.e. All Scope 1 emissions, ail scope 2 emissions and scope 3 emissions of
outsourced transport, business travel and transmission and distribution losses.

The numbers reparted have been verified by Achilles Carbon Reduce (formerly CEMARS]) as being measurad,
managed and reduced in accordance with iSO 14064-1. This verification process has been folowed since 2011.

We aim to be a net zero carbon business by 2030, This is defined as net zero emissions where we have

operational cantrol as set out in our Net Zero Carbon Routemap 2030.

Energy consumption has increased slightly in 2022-23 over 2021-22 primarily because of an increased
population and consequent water supplied. This nas ied to an increase in wastewater treated and the
subsequent process and fugitive emissions. Emissions from electricity purchased have reduced whilst further
emissions reductions have been achieved through increased export of renewables. Consequently, gross
emissions have reduced 3.90% in 2022-23 against 2021-22.

Organisational targets to manage climate-related risks and opportunities

Our key short- to medium-term climate-related targets are as set out below. We are currently implementing
changes to the way we structure and document our position against the net zerc commitment to ensure we
have the appropriate processes in place to manage the achievement of these targets. These are in addition our
performance commitments.

+ Be anet zero carbon business by 2030 {emissions where we have operational control and as set out in
our Net Zero Carbon 2030 Routemap);

«  Deliver a 65 per cent reduction in capital carban by 2025 against cur 2010 baseline;

+  Deliver a 70 per cent reduction in capital carbon by 2030 against our 2010 baseline;

+ Deliver a 10 per cent reduction in operational carbon by 2025 against a 2020 baseline;

«  Between 2020 and 2025 ensure that a climate change resilience assessment is completed for all
relevant investments.

Operational carbon is the carbon emitted as a conseguence of the day to day operations of cur business -
energy use, process emissions from the water recycling process, emissions from our vehicle tleet, etc. Capital
carbon is the carbon emitted as consequence of the manufacture and installation of assets we construct — a

new pipeline, new treatment facilities, etc.

[sn]
ai



Osprey Hoidco Limited

Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

From 2022/23, a proportion of senior leader remuneration is linked to performance against these climate-
related targets: 2.5 per cent of senior leaders’ banus is linked fo the achievement of our annual net zero

carbon performance target and 2.5 per cent linked to the achievement of our annual capital carbon
performance target.

Qurlanger-term climate-related targets are as folfows:

+  Make the East of England resilient to drought and flooding;

Work with others to achieve a significant improvement in ecological quality across our catchments;
Enable sustainable economic and housing growth in the UK’'s fastest-growing region,

Develop 2 strategy to further reduce our capital carbon beyond 70 per cent post 2030, with an
ambition ta be net zero carbon well before the national target of 2050;

Deavelop a hydrogen strategy to best understand how we could generate hydrogen, use any oxygen
generated from hydrolysis and understand how our HGV fleat could be powered using hydrogen.

We are currently progressing in these areas and below set out the actions underway. Our Water Resources
Management Plan {(WRMP} and Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan {(DWMP} which are both neanng
completion following consultation, develop our approach to dealing with both drought and flooding over the
next 25 years in our region, to better enable sustaimable economic and housing growth in our region and the
protection of ecological quality. in addition, our Strategic Pipeline Alliance (SPA} project brings water from the

north of cur region, where it is in surplus, to the south where there is a deficit.

We are also participating in the Climate Resilience Demonstrator (CReDo) project where asset data from
Anglian Water, UK Power Networks and British Telecom have been synthesised using a digital twin approach
1o understand how these assels are connected. For a speafic area a flocding scenario has been run to best
understand asset failure in the context of an inter-connect and inter-dependent infrastructure netwaork.

nttps://digitaltwinhub co.uk/creda/creda/This project has demanstrated that the validity of this approach and
CReDo is maving forward with two workstreams: increasing the geagraphical area and asset types within the
digital twin and using an extreme prolonged heat scenario to understand asset fadure,

We have a target to reduce capital carbon by 70% by 2030 against our 2010 baseline. We are currently
developing our approach to delivering further reductions post 2030, including our approach to increased
uptake of low carbon concretes and will publish our approach over the coming years

We are currently engaged in an Triple Carbon Reductian” innavation project which uses renewable energy
powered hydrolysis to produce hydrogen and axygen from water, The hydrogen s collected to be used as a
fuel whilst the oxygen is used to replace traditional aeration detivering effictency gains. The results of this tnal
will feed into the development of our hydrogen strategy over the coming years.
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Strategic report (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Managing risk in fine with our sirategy

Qur management team, with aversight from the Anglian Water Services {AWS) Board, 15 responsible for
developing our strategy. Qur strategic planning process aims to ensure we have developed clear obiectives
and targets, and identified the actions needed to deliver on our commitments, including the management of

risk.
Risk management approach

We have an established Risk Management process in place. During 2022 into 2023 we have updated our
Principal Risk Areas and reviewed and updated our risk appetite statements. Our top tier and business stream
risks are aligned to our Principal Risk areas and are enabled by our risk management process and

supporting activities.

Qur risk management framework enables the identification, assessment and effective management of
business risks, both individually and in aggregation. The consequences and likelihood of these risks are
determined and ranked using a scoring matrix aligned to our risk appetite. This ensures that a consistent
approach is taken when assessing overall impact to Anglian Water and our customers,

Risk appetite

Risk appetite defines the opportunities and associated risks which Anglian Water is wihing 1o acceptin the
pursuit of achieving its strategic objectives. These statements are used to drnive nsk-aware decision-making by

key business stakeholders.

We consider risks aligned to our Principal Risk Areas and strategic prorities. Underpinning each statement is a
series of Risk Appetite thresholds which during 2023 are beipg refined. These assist in providing a view as to
whether we are operating within our appetite, or whether additional risk mitigation may be required.

Anglian Water is exposed to a variety of uncertainties that could have a material adverse effect or impact an
our financial condition, our operational performance, our business resilience, and our reputation.

We have a structured approach to risk assessment, with the Board reviewing and challenging managemant’s
assessment of risk, together with the mitigation measures in place to manage principal risks in the confext of
our obligations to keep employees safe and provide an essential and efficient service to customers. The
Board’s assessment of risk determines what level of risk it is willing te accept, which helps senior management
to understand the mitigating activities required to control risk hikelthcod and impact to acceptable levels.

For principal risks, we review the current risk level and how our controfs provide confidence and assurance
around our management of that risk. Where a gap exists between our current position and our mitigated

aspiration, we instigate new or revised actions to close or reduce any risk gap.

Peer review and discussion at the Board or Management Board form the basis for establishing our overall
principal risk status. There may be occasions when a higher level of risk is acceptable, but this is generally in
cases where the risks are well understood and can be demonstrably managed. The Board regularly reviews

Anglian Water's internal controls and risk management processes to sugport its decision making.
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Principal risks

The Board has a responsibility to disclose ‘significant fatlings and weaknesses or areas of concern that have not
been resolved by year end’. The Board’s interpretation of this requirement is that there s a need to disclose
any control falure or amission that, if unchecked, has the potential to result in significant financial,
operational, or reputational damage to the business.

We carefully assess the principal risks facing us. These risks cenire around the criticality of our infrastructurg;
the importance of our customers and our people, climate change and the environment, health and safety
aur service delivery, cyber security, and gur ability to finance our business appropriately, and are reported
regutarly to the Board, as set out below.

tn addition to the principat risks, we also actively manage several low-level business stream risks which feed

into our principat risks. Principal risks are assessed considering a cambination of factors including emerging
risks and external threats.
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Further details of the principal risks can be found in the Risk section of the Anglian Water strategic report.
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Emerging risks

We define emerging risks as a new risk, or a famiiiar risk in a new or unfamiliar context {re-emerging) which is

changing in nature, and where the likefihood and impact is not widely understood. These risks are more likely

to have a longer-term impact; however, there is potential for the velocity to significantly increase within a

sharter time frame and affect our performance.

ENERGY COSTS

Gas and electricity prices have continued to rise rapidiy through 2022 into
early 2023, with consumer prices due to increase again by 20% in April 2023.
Energy costs continue to put immense pressures on households and
businesses. Whilst wholesale energy prices have now fallen from their
summer 2022 peaks there is a substantial lag before these feed through to

consumers with the energy crisis expected to last until at least 2024,

: L. - ‘76‘}1"*?!‘;?4

Customer proposition

People
Financial
Business resilience

Commercial and third-
party

+ COST OF UVING
 The UK remains in the grip of a cost-of-living crisis that is putting significant

strain on household wallets. Low-income families have already been hit the
hardest by soaring energy bills and food prices and are the most likely to
have seen both their financial circumstances and their health deteriorate.
Local cost pressures and supply chalienges are not set to ease anytime soon
with a lot of pressure still on the economy.

Customer proposition
People
Financial

Business resilience

CYBER ATTACZK
As businesses move their data and infrastructure to the cloud and increase
reliance on third-party software applications and service provides, they are

| significantly increasing the risk of cyber-attacks and breaches from third
| parties.

Water quaiity and supply
Technology
Financial
Business resilience

Commercial and third-

party
CYBER ATTACK OM CRITICAL MATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE Technalogy
The war in Ukraine and wider geopolitical tensions are shaping the Financial

tandscape, heightening the risk of a large-scale cyber-attack. The war has
brought the existential threat of attacks on vital services such as water
supply systems, energy companies and transport networks into stark reality
as Russian-affiliated groups set their sights on the CNI of Ukraine and its
allies.

Business resilience

EMPLOYEE WELLBEIMG
Many employees are seeing their bills rising, real pay falling and their health
worsening. The year ahead will be marred by recession, the cost of living

2.5 million workers out of the labour force due te long term sickness which
will mean employers will continue to face challenges during 2023. The cost
of living crisis may see empioyees not turning on the heating, ignoring
health issues or being unable to afford to travel to medical appointments,
this will ultimately impact their health. The threat to financial security will
provoke direct feelings of anxiety and worsening mental health.

|
|
I
crisis, labour strikes and the war in Ukraine. According ta ONS there are over |

People
Financial

Business resilience
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[ESCWR R FRIERS CT i i

| DISRUPTIONS IN GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAINS

f The recent macro-economic turmoil and the war in Ukraine has increased

{ vulnerability, triggering shortages and prices increases in energy, food, and
| certain raw materials. The conflict has added further pressures to supply

. chains already struggling with post pandemic disruption, such as shortages
i in semiconductors, which have yet to fuily recover. Oisruption to supply

. chain operations are set to stay in 2023,

' CLIMATE ACTION FAILUERE

_ We face the reputational impact of not being seen to contribute towards the

; mitigation of climate change via achievement of net zero
i
|

Financial

Business resilience

Commercial and third-
party

Environment

emissions by 2030. Financial

Strategic execution

Water quality and supply |

| CHEMICAL RESILIENCE

. The chemical industry has been a major contributor to businesses and global

. trade growth for decades. The industry has been hit hard by recent trade
barriers, increased leveis of protectionism and the Covid-19 pandemic. The

i

|

| .

| need for a resilient supply chain in the chemical industry has never been
i

|

Environment

Water quality and
support

Business resilience

greater. Commercial and third-

party

Approvai of the Strategic Report
This Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 13 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

e

Claire Russell
Company Secretary
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes
4 Revenue
5 Other operating income
& Operating costs
Operating costs before depreciation, amartisation and charge for bad and
doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Charge for bad and doubtful debts
Total operating costs
Operating profit
7 Finance income
7 Finance costs, including fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
Net finance costs
Share of loss of joint ventures
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
Loss before fair value losses on derivative financial instrumentis !
7 Fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments
Profit/{loss) before tax from continuing operations
8 Tax charge

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations

L As defined in note 32

Notes 11to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Year faar
anded =nied
31 March 31 Mlarcn
2023 2020
£rm £ET
1,549.6 145238
16.0 123
(735.4) (666.2)
(381.7} {351.1,
{30.2} __.(ll_l}_
{1,147.3) {1,028.4)
418.3 4357
43.8 178
{193.5) (660.4)
{149.7) (642 5!
(0.4} (2.6
(3771 (934
545.3 (llS.B _
Taes2  oss)
{64.5} (289 1)
L2037 (497 6}



Osprey Holdco Limited
Group statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes

26
26
26

Profit/(loss} for the year
Cther comprehensive income/{expense}

Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
Actuarial {losses)/gains on retirement benefit defict
Income tax credit/(charge) on items that will not be reclassified

Items that may be reclassified subsequentiy to income statement
Gains on cash flow hedges recognised in eguity

Gains/(losses) on cost of hedging recognised in equity
Lossas/{gains) on cash flaw hadges transferrad to income statement
Currancy translation differences

Income tax credit/{charge) on items that may be reclassified

Other comprehensive {expense}/income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/{expense} for the year

Year
ended
31 March
2023

£m

203.7

{206.5)
_51.7

(154.8)

27.9
1.8
{31.1}
0.7
0.2
{0.5)

{155.3)

{erar
2pdad
31 Narzh
2522

_Em

(197 &)
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group balance sheet
as at 31 March 2023

Notes

MNon-current assetis
11 Goodwill
12 Other intangible assets
13 Froperty, plant and equipment
14 Investmant puperties
15 Investments in joint ventures
21 Derivative financial instruments
24 Retirement benefit surplus

Current assets

16 inventaries

17 Trade and cther receivables

15 tnvestments - cash deposits

18 Cash and cash eguivalents

21 Derivative financial instruments

Tatal assets

Current liabilities

19 Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

20 Borrowings

21 Derivative financial instruments

22 Pravisians

Met current {liabitities)/assets

Mon-current liabilities

20 Barrowings

21 Derivative financial instruments
23 Deferred tax liabilities

23 Retirement benefit deficit

22 Provisions

Total liabilities

et assets

At
21 March
2023

Em

445.8
259.3
10,706.2
3.6

12.2
194.4
...B3.0
11,7185

27.8

593.9

315.7

518.0

55.8
sz

13,227.7

{700.4)
{0.1)
(1,713.0}
{53.4)

(5.8)

@Ay
{955.5}
18,058.8)
1893.8)

{1,405.0}
(33.0)

{12,268.3)

(10396.2)

{

388

4
3L March
2022

Em

425.8
2255
10.305.9
3.6

126
578
269.1
11,3203

13.011.8

(610.6)
{1.065.4)
{10.1)
(3.7)

(1589.8)

1.8

{8,286.0)
11,192 .8}
11.393.1)
{11.8)
{6.2)

110.919.9)

12.609.7}

022
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Group balance sheet {continued)
as at 31 March 2023

Notes
Capital and reserves
25 Share capitat
Retained earnings
28 Hedging reserve
A= Cost of hedging resarve

Transiation reserve
Total equity

Notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of these finanaal statements.

At

31 March
2023
_Em

3015
35.8
17.8

1.7

2.0

3588

Ar
31 March
1522

)

3015
737
204

03
13
1022

The finanaal statements were approved by the Board of Dwectors on 13 july 2023 and signed on 1ts behalf by:

e =
@5—4 S\VT_ /Q% |

S
Peter Simpson Steven Buck
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officar

Company number: 05915869
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QOsprey Holdco Limited

Company balance sheet

as at 31 March 2023

Nates
Non-current assets
15 Other investrnents

Current assets
17 Trade and other receivabies
18 Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
19 Trade and other payables
20 Borrowings

Met current liabilities

Man-current liabilities
20 Borrowings

Totatl fiabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
25 Share capital

Retained earnings
Total equity

Notes 1 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statemeants.

The profit in the year of the Company was £96.4 million [2022: loss of £4.0 million).

At At
31 wviarch 31 Macech
2023 2322
Em Lm
16789 LosU7
1,678.9 ﬁ_}é,GSO.?
0.7 g3
) 17.6 11lg
18.3 11.9
1,687.2 1.692.6
{1.6) {16}
{1,029.2) - {(567.2}
{1,030.8) {568.8)
{1,012.5) {336.9)
o - {4620}’
- {462.0)
{1,030.8) {1.030.8)
666.4 661.3
3015 3015
364.5 360.3
666.4 6618

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 July 2023 and signed on 1ts behalf by:

b S

Peter Simpson
Chief Executive
Company number: 05915869

Sieven Buck
Chief Financial Officer
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group statement of changes in

for the year ended 31 March 2023

MNates

24

26

26

2b

25

At 1 Aprii 2021
Loss for the year

Othear compreheansive income/{expense)
Actuanal gain on retirement benefit
obbgations
Income tax charge on tems that will
not be reciassified
Gains on cash flow hedges
Losses on cast of hedging
Amounts on hedging reserves
transferred to incame statement
Deferred tax movement on hedging
reserves
Currancy transiation differences

Total comprehensive (expensej/income
Capital reduction
At 31 March 2022
Prafit for the year

Gther comprehensive (expense)/income
Actuariai losses on retirement
nenefit obligations
income tax credit on items that wili
not be reclassified
Gains on cash flow hedges
Gains on cost of hedging
Amounts an hedging reserves
transferred to income statement
Deferred tax movement on hedging
reserves
Currency transiation differences

Total comprehensive incameyf{expense)

Drvidends
At 31 miarch 2023

equity
Cost of
Stated Retained Hedging  hedging Transiation Total
capital  garnings reserve reserve raserve equity
£m £m £m £m £m tm
548.2 166.1 (374 2.4 0.9 580.2
(4376} {497.6)
203.8 203.8
{40 33 : {40.3)
393 59.3
(2.6) {2.6}
1.0 14.0
113.5) 05 {15.0}
04 0.4
1835 37 8 [2.1} [0 219.6
(334.1} 57 8 {2.1] 0.4 {278.0}
{246 7§ 2467
3015 78.7 20 4 0.3 1.3 402.2
203.7 203.7
1206.3) {206.5}
31.7 51.7
279 27.9
18 1.8
(3115 {31.1}
- 0.5 (0.4 0.2
0.7 a.7
1134 3) 12.6) 14 07 {1553}
13.9 2.6} 14 0.7 43.4
91.8) - - - {91.8}
301.5 25.8 i7.8 1.7 2.0 358.8

The hedging resarve represents the cumulative effective porton of gains and losses arising on the change in

fair value of hedging instruments excluding thase fair value movements identified as costs of hedging within
the specific hedge relationship. The cost of hedging reserve captures the movement in the far vatue of the
cost of hedging compeonent (see note 26).

77



Osprey Holdco Limited

Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Stated Retained Fotal

capital earnings equity

£Fm Em £m

Notes At 1l Aprl 2021 548.2 117.6 £65.8
10 Loss for the year - 1.0) {4.0}
Total comprehensive expense - {1.0) {4.0}

Capital reduction (2467} 246.7 -

At 31 March 2022 301.5 360.3 661.8

10 Profit for the year - 96.4 96.4
Total comprehensive income - 36.4 96.4

25 Dividends - (91.8) {91.8}

At 31 March 2023 301.5 364.9 666.4




Osprey Holdco Limited
Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes

13

QOperating activities
Operating profit/{lass)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Assats gdapted for Lnid consideration

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
Difference between pension charge and cash
contributions

Net movement in provisions

Waorking capital:

Increase N inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Repayment of loans by subsidiaries

Leans to subsidiaries

Repayment of loans joint ventures
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egquipimant

Interest received

Decrease/{increase) in short-term bank deposits
Dividends received from subsidiaries

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Debt issue costs paid

Interest paid on leases

Proceeds from amounis borrowed
Repayment of amaounts horrowed

Receipt of principal on derivatives
Repayment of principal on leases
Dividends paid ta non-controlling interasts
Net cash {used in)

Met increase/{decrease} in cash and cash squivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivaients at 31 Miarch

ended
31 March
2023
£m

418.3

381.7
{46.0)
(3.9)

{28.9)
1.5

{4.0)
{46.1)

299

702.5
{0.6}
701.9

14.4
{588.5)
{75.8)
a4
241
114.0

(507.4)

{300.5}
{2.4)
{0.8)

1,117.8

{1,005.8)

(6.4)
(91.8)
{289.9)
{95.4}

613.4

518.0

Year

31 March
2022

£m

436.7

(2.2)
115 3)
470
7434
0.3)
7426

1281.9)
(287
L2
2,040.5
{1,338 4
759

113 1)

1331
3401
2733

o134

Year
ended
31 March
2023

m

(0.5)

{91.8}
(117.2)
5.0

11.6

17.6

_ Company

Year
snged
31 March
2022

£m

0.1}

177
{27.7)

02



Osprey Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

a)

b}

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been consistently applied to ail of the years
presented.

Basis of accounting

The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared (in accordance with section 474(1) of
the Companies Act 2006) under international accounting standards which are adopted for use within
the United Kingdom by virtue of Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 2 of the International Accounting Standards and
Eurapean Public Limited-Liability Company (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. The Group
financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Regorting
Standards as issued by the IASB and the Company financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by financial assets and financial liabilities {including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit and foss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with {FRS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the raported amounts of assets and liahilities at the date of the finparncial
staternents and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reparting period. Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, avent or actions, actual resulits
may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Adjusted profit before tax excludes the fair value gains and losses arising on derivative financial
instruments and energy derivatives that the Group holds as economic hedges. Thase introduce volatility
into the accounts due to the present value of future cash flows, which management believes is not
representative of the underlying operational performance of the business.

Basis of preparation

The Group and Company financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings at 31 March. The results of companies acquired or
disposed of are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition or to the effective date of disposal.
Inter-company sales and profit are eliminated fully on consaolidatian.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acguisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the fair values, as at the acguisition date, of assets transferrad by the Group and liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree in exchange for contro! of the acquiree
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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b)

Accounting policies {continued)
Basis of preparation {continued)}

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or frablitres
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration 1s measured at its
fair value, as at the acquisition date, and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business

combination. Changes in fair vaiue of the contingent consideration that quahify as meaasurement period

adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwil

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that anse from additionai information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ {which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date} about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previousiy-held interests in the
acquired entity is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain ar lass, if any. 15
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive incame are reciassified to profit or loss,
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were dispased of.

Going concern

The Directors have undertaken a detailed review to assess the liquidity requirements of the group
compared against the cash and facilities avarlable to the Group, as detalled below

The review inciuded a range of downside outcomas as a result of the macra-econamic environment. Key
updates since the previaus assessment are as follows:

.

There continues to be considerable marker volatility particularly in terms of energy, interest rates
and infiation.

+  Higher inflation is improving gearing relative to RCV.
These updates along with Company specific changes have been incorporated into our latest forecast
which was approved by the Board. This forecast forms our base going concern assessment which looks
at liguidity, profitability and debt covenants.

Anglian Water Services Limited has a single debt platform (sometimes known as a “commen terms” or
“CTA" debt platform]) that has been structured so as to align with, and enhance, the regulatory
protections contained in the Water [ndustry Act 1991 and Anglian Water’s Licence (an “Aligned Debt
Programme”). Alignad Debt Programmes operate on asingle covenant package and shared security and
intercreditor arrangement that binds all debt providers.

In addition, Osprey Acquisitions Limired also has a common terms debt platferm similar to that at
Anglian Water Services Limited and operates a singfe set of covenants that applies to all debt rarsed at
this level of the Group.

The CTA introduces two terms, a Trigger Event and an Event of Default. The intention of a Trigger Event
ts that it 1s an early warning event designed to reinforce credit worthiness and to protect the Company
and its finance creditors from an Event of Default occurring and consequentty (t is not considered to be a
going concern avent. it does not enaple creditors to destabilise the Company through enforcing therr
security.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Accouanting policies (continued)
b} Basis of preparation {continued}

We have identified three stretching scenarios to stress test our base forecast. These scenarios, low,
medium and severe focus on the impact of the cost-of-living crisis and higher unemployment, the
impacts of kigher inflation and interest rates, as well as specific risks Lo the business, such as our ability
to meet our stretching renewnble cnergy generation targets. in addition, this year the scenarios
consider the impact on our cash collection as a result of a cyher-attack.

in assessing Gaing Cancern the Directars have considered a number of parspectives, including liquidity,
profitability and debt covenants and tested these against both the base scenario and the three
downside scenarios.

« liguidity — The Group holds sufficient liquidity to cover the going concern period even ynder the

most severe downside scenario. Between the balance sheet date and the date of signing these
accounts the Company refinanced debt of £462 million that fell due.

« Profitability — The revenues of the business are underpinned by the regulatory model and the
husiness has a detailed plan in place to deliver in line with the CAMA FD. Qur most sevare scenario
represents an 10 per cent reduction in EBITDA.

« Debt covenants - The business has significant headreoom against Default Events {where class A
interest cover ratio is less than 1.6:1) under its securitised covenants with no plausible scenario
identified that would cause an Event of Default.

While both the medium and severe scenarias indicate the potential far a Trigger Event, the Directars do
not consider this possibility to constitute 3 material uncertainty related to going concern. As noted, a
Trigger Event is not considered a going concern event and whilst it would resukt in dividend lock-up and
prevent the business from raising new debt we have sufficient liquidity during the going concern period
in this event even when including planned debt repayments.

Based on the above, the Directors believe that the business has sufficient hgquidity to meet its liabilities
as they fall due.

For these reasons, the Directors befieve it appropnate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective or adopted
The following standards and amendments are effective in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:
« FRIC guidance clarification on treatment of configuration and customisation costs in a cloud
compuling arrangement
+  Amendments to ‘Insurance contracts’ — deferral of IFRS3; and
« Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leasas’ Covid-19 related rent concessions heyond 30 lune 2021,

t  (FRIC guidance clarification on treatment of configuration and customisation costs in g cloud camputing
arrangement
In April 2021, the [FRS Interpretations Committee {iFRIC’) agenda decision on the treatment of
configuration and custormisation Costs in 3 cloud computing arrangement was ratified by the
Internaticnal Accaunting Standards Board.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

b) Basis of preparation (continued)

The gutdance clarified that in grder for an intangible asset to be capitalised in relation to custormisation

and configuration costs in a software-as-a-service (5aas) arrangement, it s necessary for there to be a
separate intangible asset which meets the definition in 1A5 38 intangible Assets. The Group’s previous
policy wos to capitalise such customisation and configuration costs, The Group has therefore changead its
accounting in the year that ended 31 March 2022 to align to the agenda decision. The Group continues
to apply the change in accounting policy.

it Other amendments

Other amendments effective during the reporting pertod did not have any significant impact on
adoption.

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early adopted
The fotlowing standards and amendmants have naot been adooted in the Group’s consalidated finanaal

statements as they are not yet effective. These wilt all be adopted at the beginning of the penad they
become mandatary:

IFRS 17 ‘insurance contracts’ (effective from 1 Apnil 2023, not yet endorsed in the EU or the UK},

Amendments to {FRS 10 and 1AS 28 'Sate or contribution of assets between an invastor and its
associate or joint venture’ {effective date not yet set)

Amendments ta 1AS 1 ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’ (effective from 1
January 2023, not yet endorsed in the EU or the UK);

Amendments to {AS 16 'Property, plant and equipment - proceeds before intended use’
leffactive from 1 january 2022, not yet endorsed in the £U or the UK);

Annual Impravements 2018-2020 Cycte — amendments to RS 1, IFRS 9 and tAS 41 {effectva
from 1 January 2022, not yet endarsed i the EU ar the UK},

Amendmaents to IFRS 3 ‘References to the Conceptual Framework’ (effective from 1 January
2022, not yet endorsed in the £U or the UKj;

Amendments to IAS 37 'Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract’ (effective 1 january
2022, not yet endorsed in the EU or the UK,

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 'Disclosure of accounting policies’ (effective
from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed in the EU ar the UK);

Amendments to 1AS 8 ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ effective from 1 January 2023, not
yvetendorsed in the EU or the UK}, and

Amendments to JAS 12 ‘Deferrad tax related to assets and liabilities ansing from single
transaction’.

The Group dees not expect the future application of these amendments to have any significant impact
on the consolidated financal statements.
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£)

c)

d)

Accounting policies {continued)

Foreign currencies

The Groug’s consalidated financial statements are presented in British pound sterling, which is also the
parent company’s functional currency. Individual transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into iocal currency at the actual exchange rates ruiing at the dates of Uie transactions.
Monetary assets and fiabilities dennminatod i foreign currencies are translated into local currency at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Profits and losses on both individual foreign currency
transactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the income
statermnent except for transactions where hedge accounting has been applied in accordance with IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’.

On consolidation, the income statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period and the balance sheets at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The exchange differences arising as a result of translating income statements at average rates and
restating opening net assets at closing rates are taken to the translation reserve.

Segmental repoiting

QOperating segments are reported in a manner cansistent with the internal reporting praovided ta the
chief operating decision maker, The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for aliocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Beard of

Directors.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recagnised ta reflect the transfer of goads or services te custemers at an amount that
refiects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitied to in exchange for those goods or

services.

Principol source of income
The Group's principal source of income is from customers in respect of the provision of water and water

recycling services within Anglian Water, the Group’s regulated water and sewerage comgpany, at a price
determined annually by its reguiatory tariffs.

The majority of Anglian Water's household customers have meters, but there are a significant number
who are not metered. This is relevant to how the Group recognises the income over the year, since the
unmeasured customers are billed at a flat rate based on the rateable vaiue of the praoperty, which
reflects their right to an ongoing supply of water, while measured customers are billed in line with thewr
usage, which tends to be seasonal.

Under IFRS 15, the performance abligation for measured customers has been assessed as the provision
of water and sewerage services, and the performance obligation 1s met as water is supplied to the
property. Accardingly, for the variable element, revenue is recognised as water is supplied, based on
volumes supplied at the relevant reparting date.

Related non-volumetric, or standing, charges reflect our obligation to stand-ready to deiiver water. as is
the case with unmeasured supply (see belaw], and is accounted far accordingly
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e)

Accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition {continued)

In respect of unmeasured customers, the perfarmance obligation has been assessed as standing ready
to provide water and sewerage services when required by our customers, and accordingly revenue is
recognised under {FRS 15 as the stand-ready obligation is fulfiied over time. Accordingly. revenue from
unmeasured customers is recognised on a time basis undear I[FRS 15

Non-household revenue 1s charged and recognised on the basis of volumes supplied, based on data
submitted by the market operator.

Secondory source of income

A secondary source of income for Anglian Water s from grants and contributions m respect of new
connections for water and/or sewerage services. Judgement is required when applying i1FRS 15 ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ in determining the customer and the performance obligatians to that
custamer. Specifically, judgement is required as to whether the income is in relation ta the proviswan of
the connaction to the Group’s infrastructure, allowing the completion of the construction of the
property and it to be approved for sale, or to facilitate the ongoing provision of water and wastewater
services to the properties in question. Please see note 2 for further detads.

The significant components of grants and contributions, and their treatment, are as follows:

I New connection charges

The Group considers the performance obligation to be satisfied on making the connection. income

for new connection charges is therefore recognised as the connection is completed.

it Self-lay, requisitions and adoption fees

Revenie recognition is consistent with new connection charges {sae {1} above}.

it Fair value of assets odopted for £nil consideration
These are principally sewers and pumping stations that a developer has constructed and then
contributed to the Group, on a £ail cansideration basts, in exchange for being relieved of any future
liability. Income is recognised on adoption based on the fair value of the asset adopted.

v Infrastructure charges
tnfrastructure charges are a developer's contribution to fund network reinforcement by the Group.
While these charges are a contribution to reinforcement of the network, they have to be paid by the
developer as a condition of obtaining connection to the network and, as such, the Group's

performance obligation is satisfiad by making the ceanection. As such, the income is racogrused as
the connection is made.

v Diversions
Diversions arise where a highways agency, or other authority, retmburses the Graup for the majority
of the costs incurred i diverting assets that represent an obstruction Lo the construction or upgrade

of roads and rallway hnes. There 1s no perfarmance obligation to the agency/authornty beyond
completing the diversion, therefore incame is recognised immediately on comptetion.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

e} Revenue recognition (continued)

f)

£)

Non-appointed activities

The Group also provides additianal services which are not categorised as a regulatory appainted
activity. These relate to non-water / wastewater serviras and fu Use of iand for water supply
beyond dutirc imposed Ly regulation. Activities targely reiate to the provision of property searches,
referrals for connecting customers 1o insurance providers, processing of septic tank waste from
househotds not connected to main sewers and from the use of our reservoirs for recreational
activity. Revenue is recognised in fine with the detivery of each performance obligation which s at a
point in time as there is no ongoing obligation past the transaction date.

Other saurces of revenue

i Other operating incame
The principal saurces of other operating income are from the generation of power, the sale of
biasolids to farms, rents received and ather munor income associated with operating activities.

il Service contracts
Revenue from service contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion, as measured
by reference to services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

M Property development
Revenue from sale of deveiopment properties, which are not heid for the long-term, is recorded
when a legally binding contract for the sale of the development has been entered into and legal
completion has taken place before the period-end. Revenue includes sales of directly held workn
progress and interests in special purpose subsidiaries and joint ventures if the substance of the
transaction is the saie of the underlying property.

Research and development

Research expenditure is charged to profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
relating to development projects is capitalised as equipment or intangible assets and is written off over
the expected useful life of the asset.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are one-off items that individually or, if of a similar type. in aggregate need (o be
disclosed by virtue of their size or nature to enable a reader of the financial statements to understand

the results for a particular period.
Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging operationa! expenses but before finance income and finance
costs.

Taxation

Current intome tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be
paid {or recoverad) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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i

k}

Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued}

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the tiattity method, on temparary differeaces anising
between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. The deferred income tax is not accounted far if it arises from tnitial recognition of an asset
or fiahility in a transaction, other than a business combmation, that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nar taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax 15 determined using tax rates enactad
ar substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and that are expected to apaly when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deterred income tax hability 1s settjed.

Deferrad income tax assets are recognisad opty ta the extent that it is prabable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and reduced to the extent thatits no langer
prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to tems that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and defarred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax ar deferred tax arises from the initial accaunting for a business combination, the tax effect s
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved or committed. A
corresponding amount is recagnised directly in equity.

Intangible assets

i Goodwill

On the acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, or business combination, fair values are attnbuted to
the net identifiable asseats or tabilities acquired. Goadwitl represants the difference between the fair
value of the purchase consideration and the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

It Right to operate intangible assets
The 'right to operate’ intangible assets arose on acquisition of 3 subsidiary undertaking, raprasenting
the fair vajue of the contracts acguired, and are shown at cost tess subseguent amartisatian and any
impairmeant. Amortisation s calculated on a straight line basis over the length of the individual
contracts to which the intangible assets relate.

i Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets represent camputer software and internally generated assets which mainly
comprise capitalised development expenditure.

Other intangible assets are shown at cost less subsequent amentisation and any impairment.
Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which are primarily three to 10 years.
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1

Accounting palicies {continued)

k) Intangible assets {continued)

software-as-a-Service (Saa$) arrangements

Saas arrangements are service contracts providing the Group with the right to access the cloud
provider’s application software over the contract period nste incurrcd tu conflgure or customisa, and
the unguing fees to obtain access to the cloud provider’s application software, are recognised as
aperating expenses when the services are received.

Some of the costs incurred relate to the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or
creates additional capability to, existing on-premise systems and meets the definition of, and the
recognition criteria for, an intangible asset.

These costs are recognised as intangiole software assets and amortised over the useful life of the
software on a straight-line basis. The useful lives of these assets are reviewed at least at the end of each
financial year, and any change accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises:

< Land and buiidings — comprising land and nor-operational buildings.

+ Infrastructure assets — comprising a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, sludge pipelines and sea outfall,

+  Operational assets — comprising structures at sites used for water and wastewater treatment,
pumping or storage, where not classed as infrastructure, along with associated fixed plant.
Vehicles, mabile plant and equipment.

«  Assets under construction.

All property, plant and equipment is shown at cost less subsequent depreciation and any impairment.
Cost includes expenditure directly attributable ta the acquisition or construction of the items.

Borrowing costs incurred for the censtruction of qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
axpensed,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance casts
are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Freehold iand is not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction until commissioned.
Depreciation of other assets is calculated at rates expected to write off the cost less the estimated
residual value of the relevant assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which are

primarily as follows:

Non-operational buildings 15 - 80 years
Infrastructure assets — water 50 - 120 years
Infrastructure assets —water recycling 50 - 160 years
Operational assets 30 - 80 years
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m)

nj

Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Fixed plant, including meters 12 - 40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and equipment 3 - 10 years

items of property, plant and equipment that have no further operational use are treated as having been
decommissioned and arve written off immediately to profit or loss. in adgdition, property, plant and
equipment is assessed for impairment, in accordance with |AS 36 'Impairment of Assets’, if avents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverable.

Investment properties

investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, buildings are depreciated over their
useful life and land is held at cost and not depreciated.

Leased assets

The Group assesses whether a cantract is, or contains a lease, at inception of the cantract. The Group
recognisas a right-of-use asset and a correspanding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
in which it is the lassee, except for short-term leases {(defined as leases with a lease tarm of 12 months
ar less) and leases of tow value assets (defined as leases for individual assets with a value of less than
£5,000).

For these leases, the Group recagnises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which econamic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subseguently measured by increasing the carrying amoeunt to reflect interest on the
lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the ralated rght-of-
use asset) whenever:

« the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the probability in exercise of
a purchase optian, 1n which case the lease liability s remeasured by discounting the revised iease
paymeants using a revised discount rate

+  the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate, or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which case the lease hability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change 15 due
to a change in a floating interest rate, 'n which case a revised discount rate is used)
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i.

Accounting policies {continued}

n} Leased asseis (continued)

ol

« alease contract is modified and the lease modification 1s not accounted for as a separate lease, In
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

The Group recognises 1ight-of-use assets at the commencement date of the Jease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiitties. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Inyestments
Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment, if there
are any indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Investments in subsidiarries are
eliminated on consolidation for the Group financial statements.

Joint ventures

loint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has the ability to exercise jcint control,
established by contractuaf agreement. The Group’s interests in jointly controlled enterprises are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initizally recognised at cost.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the tetal recognised income and
expense of the jointly controlled enterprises on an equity accounting basis, from the date that joint
control commences until the date that joint control ceases.

To the extent that joint ventures have net kabilities and a contractua! commitment exists for the Group
to settle those net liabilities, the aggregate amount is added back to investments and offset firstly
against loans and trading balances with the joint venture, with any excess transferred to provisians.

Investments — cash deposits

After initial recognition at fair value, financial investments are held at amortised cost. This is based on
the business’ practice of acquiring financiai assets tao collect their contractual cash flows and the simple
nature of the investments made, which consist solely of principle payments and interest on the principle
outstanding.

lnventories

Raw materials are stated at cost less any provision recassary to recognise damage and oosolescence
Wark in progress is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisabie value is the estimated sefling price in the ardinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of compietion and seliing expenses.
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q)

r}

Accounting policies (continued}
Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially classified as at fair
value through profit and lass; fair value through other comprehensive income or amortised cost
depending on the Group's intention in regard to the collection of contractual cash flows {or sale) and
whether the financial assets cash flows ralate solely to the payment of principal and interest

The Expected Credit Loss {ECL} mode! requires the Group to account for expected credit lasses and
changes in these expected credit losses at each reporting date to refiect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial assets; therefore, this1s ne longer dependent on the Group first
identifying a credit loss event. This requires consideration of a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasanable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash Hlows of
the instrument.

In applying this ferward-looking approach, a distinction ts made between:

»  where credit risk is low or has net increased significantly since recognition {'Stage 1'};
« where credit risk is not low ar has increased significantly since mitial recognition {'Stage 2'); and
- where the financial asset is credit impaired (Stage 3).
‘12-month expected credit losses” are recoghised for Stage 1 whde ‘lifetime expected cradit losses’ are
recognised for Stage 2.

Expected credit losses are defined as the weighted average of credit lasses with the respective risk of
default occurring as the weights.

Aloss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument f the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Far all other financial
instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

The Group manages credit risk expasures through a comprehensive counterparty credit risk paticy. See
the financial instruments disclosures for further detarls.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at their transaction price. If there 13 objective evidence that the
amount receivable is impaired it is written down to its recoverable amount, with the irrecaoverable
amount heing recognised as an expense in gperating costs.

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other recewables and records
the lass allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, cansidering the potential for default at any point during the life of the trade recewvable.

'n calculating the expected loss, the Group applies expected recovery rates, based on actual histonical
cash performance and forward-lacking information.

The Group assesses impairment of trade recevables on a collective basis and where they possess sharad
credit risk characteristics they have been grouped; these groups are residential, non-household and
develaper services, and other customers.
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1.

r)

t)

Accounting policies {continued)

Trade receivables (continued)
In particular, existing or forecast adverse changes in financial or economic conditions that are expeciod
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to mest its debt ohligations Is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increasad significantly since initial recognition.
The write nff polivy has been consistently applied throughout 2022/23. Debt s only written off after atl
available economic options for collecting the debt have been exhausted and rthe debt has been deemed

to be uncollectable or is subject to a settlement agreement or forgiveness scheme. This may be because
it 1s, unrealistic, impractical, inefficient or uneconomic to collect the debt.

Situations where this may arise and where debt may be written off are as toltows:

Where the customer has absconded and attempts to trace the customers whereabouts prove

unsuccessful.
»  Where the customer has died withcut leaving an estate or has left an insufficiant estate on

which to levy execution.
+  Where the debt is subject to insolvency proceedings and there are msufficient funds to settle

the debt.
¢+ Where the vaiue and/or age of debt make it uneconomic to pursue.

+ ‘Where debt becomes statute barred.

We alsp write off debts following a settlement arrangement on an outstanding balance and for eligible
custorners an our debt forgiveness scheme (Back on Track) as part of payment matching.

Debt that is still subject to enforcement activity is not written off unless it becomes uneconomic to
pursue.
Cash and cash equivalents

n the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits hetd at cafl with
banks, other short-term highly Hquid investments with oniginal maturity dates of three months or less,
and outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other short-term deposits with a tenor of mere than three months are classified as investments — cash
deposits.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recagnised in the income statement over the period of the borrawings

using the effective interest method.
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u)

Accounting palicies {continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative instruments are used for hedging purposes mn line with the Group's risk management poticy
and no speculative trading in financial instruments is undertaken.

Derivatives are initially recogrused at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item heing hedged.

A derivative with a positive fair value s recogmsead as 3 financial asset whereas a dervative with a
negative fair value is recognised as a financial Hagitity. Derwvatives are not offset in the finanaal
staternents untess the Group has bath a tegally enfarceable right and intention to offset. The wpact of
the master netting agreements an the Group’s financial position is disclosed in note 21, A derivative is
presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability «f the remaining maturity of the instrument is

maore than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other dervatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

The Groug designates certain derivatives as either a fair value or cash flow hedge i accordance with
IFRS § ‘Financial Instruments’. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with how the hedge aligns
with the Group's risk management strategy. Furthermore, st the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes
in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the
hedging relationships meet all of the fotlowing hedge effectiveness requirements:

there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that aconomuc
relationship; and

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resufting from the quantity of
the hedged item that the Graup actually hedges and the guantity of the hedging instrument
that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged tem.

The Group rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedge ratio requirements
when necessary. in such cases discontinuation may apply to anly part of the hadging relationship. For
example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some of the volume of the hedged item is
no longer part of a hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting is tiscontinued only far the volume of
the hedged itemn that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.

in some hedge relationships, the Group excludes, from the designation, the currency basis spread of
cross currency hedging instruments. In such cases, the fair value change of the currency basis element of
the cross currency interest rate swap is recognised 1n other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the cost of hedging reserve, and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on a straght-line basis over the
term of the hedging relationship. The treatment for the currency basis element is apuionat and the
cgtion is applied on an individual bedge relationship basis
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u)

Accounting policies {continued)
Derijvative financial instruments {continued)

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is 3 component of a hybrid contract that also includes a non-derivative host
with tha offoct that some ol Lhe Lash flows ot the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alene derivative.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with a financial asset host within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and subseguently measured as either amortised cost
or fair value as appropriate.

Derjvatives embedded in hybrid contracts with hosts that are not financial assets within the scope of
IFRS 9 (e.g. financial iiabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

If the hybrid contract is a quoted financial liability, instead of separating the embedded derivative, the
Group generally designates the whole hybrid contract at FVTPL,

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 months
and is not expected {0 be realised or settled within 12 months.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting enly when the hedging reiationship (or a part thereof} ceases
to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrurnent expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for
prospectively.

I Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair vaiue of derivatives designated and qualifying as fair vaiue hedges are recorded
in the income statement within fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments’,
together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability attributable to the hedged
risk.

If a fair value hedge is discontinued, the hedged item is not adjusted for any subsequent movements
in the hedged risk. The cumulative amount of fair value adjustment an the hedge item at the point
of discontinuation is then amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the original hedge
based on a recalculated effective interest rate.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unameortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subseguent
cumuiative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk 1s
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued}
u) Derivative financial instruments [continued)

it Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dervatives designated and qualifying as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive iIncome and accumuiated in the cash flow hedge
reserve The gain ar loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the income

statement within ‘fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments’

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled 1n the income statement in the perniods when the
hedged item will affect profit or loss {(for example, in the periods when interest income or expense is
recognised, ar when the forecast hedged cost takes place).

when a cash flow hedge is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss existing In equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no {onger expected to occur, the cumulative gan
or laoss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

i Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments, principally index-linked swaps, do not qualify for hedgea accounting
Such derivatives are classified at fair value through profit and loss, and changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in the incame statement.

v} Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resultof a
past event for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amaount can be reliably estimated. If the effect of time value of maney is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refiects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the tiability. When discounting
is used the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Regarding onerous lease costs, a provision is made for the expected future costs associated to property
and ather leases, nat included in the calculation of the ROU asset. to the extent that these costs are no
expected to be of future benefit to the business, net of any recoveries from sub-leases.

w) Retirement benefit obligations

i Defined benefit schemes

For defined benefit schemes, pension scheme assets gre measured at far value and habilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at the
current rate of return on a high-guality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The current service cost, which 1s the increase in the present value of the liabilities of the
Group’s defined benaefit pensiaon schemes expected to arise from employee service in the penod, s
charged to operating costs. The net interest an the schemes’ net assets/{liabilities) 1s included in
other finance charges. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive

income.
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Accounting policies (continued)

w} Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

a}

Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or defials, are
recognised in full and presented on the face of the balance sheet.

it Defined contribution schemes
The cost of defined contributian schemes 1s charged to the income statement in the pertod in which

the contributions become payable.
Key sources of astimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

in preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Directors have made judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 1, and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to astimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, ar in tha
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods.

A key consideration, but not one which the Group views as representing a material estimation
uncertainty, is climate change. Climate change is a global challenge and an emerging risk not only to the
environment but markets, businesses and people throughout the world, Climate change is embedded
into everything we do and our {ong-term strategy effectively identifies, manages and mitigates these key
risks. Consideration has been given to the impact of climate-related risks on managernent’s judgements
and estimates, including the carrying value of our assets and their useful ecanomic tives (UEL) as 3 result

af our 2030 net zero route map.

Whilst the impact of climate-related risks on the consolidated financial statements for the year is not
material, we are aware of the ever-changing risks associated to climate change and will continue to
regularly assess these risks against judgements and estimates made in preparation of the Group’s

financial statements.

For further detail, see the strategic ambitions, risk and Taskfarce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures sections of the Annual Report.

Critical accounting judgements
The areas where the most critical judgements have been applied are as follows:

i Capitalised expenditure
Additions to intangible assets, and to property, plant and equipment, include £132.5 million (2022

£108.7 million) of own work capitalised. Judgement is made to ensure thase costs refate to relevant

assets and that future economic benefit will flow to the Group.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical actounting judgements {continued)

3} Critical accounting judgements (continued)

i3

i

Asset lives

The property, plant and equipment used in the Group is primarily the infrastructure and operational
assets of the regulated water business. Infrastructure and operational assets have esumated useful

tives of batween 30 and 160 years and the dapreciation charge 15 ciearby sensitive to the lives
allocated to the various types of asset.

Asset lives are reviewed regularly and changed where necessary to reflect the current view on therr

remaining Hves in light of technological change, prospective economic utiisatian and the physical
condition of the assets.

In assessing the impact of climate change we have considered not just the impact an our asset hase
as a result of no action but also the impact of our 2030 net zero route map has been incorporated
into our normal assessment of asset Useful Econaomic Lives {UEL). Nothing has been identified within
our net zero plan which has the potential to impact on our existing assets base ar their net book

valiues. We have also set out the risks posed by climate change and how we will address them in our
fatest Adaptation Report.

As a result of the impact of severe weather events there is the risk of imparment to our assats.
There have been no such adjustrnents in the current financial year therefore not indicating the need
to amend our UEL policy as a result of severe weather avents. This will be kept continuously under
review to ensure apprapriate treatment.

Recognition of grants and contributions

al Income from connections to the water and wastewater netwark

The Group receives income from developers for new connections to the water and wastewater

networks either in the form of cash ar infrastructure assets. The significant components are as
follows:

1} New connection charges £14.2 million {2022: £13.9 mullion} - developer request for the
provisian of new connections to the network.

2} infrastructure charges £18.6 (2022 £20.1 million} — developers’ contribution to offsite network
reinforcement as permitted by the Water Industry Act.

3} self-lay. requisitions and adoption fees £7.1 million (2022: £7 4 miltion) ~ providing the
developer with assistance in the construction of assets which enable the development to be
connected to the network.

4] Adopted assets at nil cansideration £46.0 mithon (2022 £39.2 mithon) — developer contributes
assets on a nil consideration basis that have been installed on a new development.
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements {continued)
a} Critical accounting judgements (continued}

judgement is required when applying iFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ in
determining the customer and the performanrce obligations to that customer. Specificaily,
judgement is required as to whether the income is in reintion to the provision of the connection te
the Group's infrastrucrure, allowing the completion of the construction of the property and it to be
approved for sale, ar to facilitate the ongoing provision of water and wastewater services to the
properties in question.

For 1 and 2 above, all communication is between the Group and the developer/site cwner and the
agreement is signed by said developer/site owner. The agreements set out components of the
charge and what is to be delivered. Qur conclusion is therefore Lhat the developer is the customer
and our obligation fto the developer is met when properties are connected to the network, and
therefore this is considerad the relevant trigger for income recognition. We believe the ongoing
cbligation to maintain the connection to the property is a separate contract with the property
owner (in most cases the househoid customer) and separate from the contract with the developer.

For 3 and 4 it is the developer who canstructs and transfers the asset, and therefore simiiar to the
above, the agreement is between ourselves and the developer. The occupants of the properties
sarved are unaware of the transaction and indifferent to whao is maintaining the asset, they receive

no benefit from the transaction.

QOur obligation is to inspect and adopt the assets. As such, the Group considers that the ongoing
obligation to maintain the assets is a separate contract with the property owner {in most cases the
household customer) and separate from the contract with the developer. Therefore, revenue from
these streams should be recognised at a point in time when the contract with the developeris
fulfitied; on connection, completion, or adoption.

Qur abligations to maintain and reinforce our infrastructure do not constitute performancea
obligations as these are imposed on us by the regulator. A performance obligation involves a
transter of control of benefit from the seller tc the customer; however, maintenance and
reinforcement of the infrastructure does not transfer any benefit outside of Anglian Water, because
the assets being maintained or reinforced are Anglian Water's own assets. The promise fo the
customer is to provide water/sewerage services, the promise to the developer is to provide a
connection and there is no performance obligation in respect of upkeep of the assets.

a) Diversions

The Group also receives income from various authorities which is reimbursing the cost of diverting
assets due to them presenting an obstruction to the canstruction or upgrade of infrastructure such
as roads or rail. Diversion income within the year amounted to £6.8 million {2022; £8.1 million).

A similar revenue recognition approach is taken with diversions. The cbligation here is that we divert
the sewer or water main at the request of the refevant authority or agency, and our obligation s fuliy
met aonce the diversion is compteted, and therefore the contribution is fully recognised as revenue at

that paint in time.
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2. Kevy sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements (continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncestainty

The key assumptions cancerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next firancial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumoptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstanceas and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
gue to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflacted in the assumptions when they occur.

The key areas involving estimation are outlined below.

t

Measured income accrual

For Anghan Water the measured income accrual is an estimation of the amount of main water and
wastewater charges unbilled at the year end. The accrualis estimated using a defined methadology
hased upon weighted average water consumption by tariff, which is calculated based upon historical
billing information. The calculation is sensitive to estimated consumption for measured domestic
customers, For 2022/23 the average consumption for measured household customers was 97 cubig
meters, a fall or rise of two cubic metres {2 per centj in avérage annual consumption will reduce or
increase revenue by approximately £12.2 million raspactively

Retirement benefit actuarial ossumptions

The Group operates a number of defined bhenefit schemes (which are closed to new members and
future accruals) as well as a defined contribution scheme and an unfunded arrangement for former
employees. Under 1A% 19 ‘Empioyee Benefits', the Group has recognised an actuarial loss of £711.3
million (2022: gain of £203 8 million) in respect of the defined benefit schemes which affects other
comprehensive income and net assets. The actuarial valuation of the scheme liabilities 15 reliant on
key assumptions which include: the discaunt rate, salary inflation and tife expectancy. The mamn
assumptions and associated sensitivities are set out in note 24 of the financial statements

] Cther area involving estimation

i

Expected credit loss on trade receivables

IFRS 9 requires that historical loss rates are adjusted as approgriate ta reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions.

The actual level of receivahles collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which
could impact operating results positively or negatwely,

Management apply judgement when determining impact of the wider economy on future cash

collectian {(macro-economic).

The extent ta which future cash callections will be impacted by macro-ecanomic treads 1s uncertain
Management have estimated the potential impact through scenario analysis considering the
carrelation between cash collection rates agawnst unemployment rates. Office of Mational Statistics
and Bank of England forecasts for these measures have then been ublised 10 forecast changes in
future cash collection rates.
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements (continued)

c} Other area involving estimation {continued)
The Bank of England forecast at February 2023 now predicts unempioyment to peak at 5% in the
medium term. Based on management’s calculations, this is consistent with predictions at March
2022 the additional provision required against bills raised to the balance sheet date has remained
broadly the same, at £6.2m.

Between the August and February publications, forecast unemployment feil significantly, should it
return £o the August levels, which showed a peak of 6.2%, or fall by a similar amount again it would
increase / decrease the bad debt provision by £6.0 million.

3. Segmental information
By class of business for the year ended 31 Narch 2023

The Directors consider the Board to be the Group's chief operating decision maker in relation te
segment reporting in accordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’.

At 31 March 2023 the Group was organised into the following main businesses:

- Anglian Water — regulated water and water recycling services provider to customers in the East of
England and Hartlepoal.
- Anglian Venture Holdings — comprising:
< Alpheus Environmental Limited — operates industrial and commercial wastewater treatment
works in the UK,
o Celtic Anglian Water Limited — operates water and wastewater treatment works in the
Republic of ireland,

O

Tide Services Limited — cperates property conveyancing, residential insurances and the
provision of web hosted information services for utilities on behalf of other group companies.

9]

Wave Ltd —a 50:50 joint venture with Narthumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water
services to non-household customers in the UK,
OHL Property Holdings Limited - oversees the construction of a new water recycling centre,

0}

and
=~ OHL Piper Limited — a property rental business

+  Head Office and Other — comprises head office and other Group functions, including Property.

There has been no change in the basis of segmentation or in the measurement of segmental profit or
loss in the year.

No aperating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

The Directars consider the Board to be the Group’s chief operating decision maker in relation to
segment reporting in accordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’. Segmental performance is evaluated
based on both profit and loss and cash flows (see tzble below). Segmental assets and liabilities do not
form part of the Board’s performance assessment and, as such, are not included in the segmental
information.
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3. Segmental information {continued)

inter-segment revenues and profits are fully eliminated on consolidation and are shown separately in
the following tables. The segment result represents operating profit.

By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2023

Anglian Head Inter-

Anglian Venture Office segment
Water tHoldings and Other  eliminaticns Totai
£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue

External 1,434 9 4.4 Q0.3 - 1,543.6
Inter-segment . P £ B B
1,494.9 63.8 0.3 (9.4) 1,545.6

Segment result
EBITDA 302.8 91 119 - 800.0

Depreciation and amortisation (379.1) (2 3) 02 (381.7}

Share of joint venture's operating profit _ 7 - 21 - - 21
423.7 2.4 {11.7) - 420.4

Cash flows

Operating cash flow 710.9 33 {139) - 7025

Capital expenditure (060.0) (0.3} 0.4 {659.9)

Net debt excluding derivative financial

nstruments 6,247.9) 11.7)  {2,687.3) (8,337.1)
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3.

Segmental information {continued}

By class of business for the year ended 31 March 202z

Revenue
External
inter-segment

Segment result

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation

Share of jeint venture's cperating loss
Inter-segment

Cash flows

Operating cash fiow

Capital expenditure

Net debt excluding derivative financial
instruments

Anghan
Water

788.3
(347.7)

7459
{518.2)

{3.621.3}

Anglian
Venture
Holdings
___fm
53.0

79

60 9

10.3
(2.5
{0.4)

70

147
(0.5)

28

Heac
Office
and Other

£m

 2.,689.8)

inter-
segment
gliminatons

£m

'
|
(93]

Ui

w8
Ui

"o

Total

787.8
{351.1)
(0.4)

1363

7434
{318.8)

(8,307 .3
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3. Segmental information {continued)
3y geographical segment

The geographic information below analyses the Group’s revenue. segmant rasult and non-currant

assets by geographical location.

Year ‘23r
ended 2nced
31 March 3L March
2023 2322
£m ~ o m
Revenue
United Kingdom 1,510.1 1.416.3
Other countries 7 385 B 385
1549.6 L4528
Segment result
United Kingdam a17.7 4303
Other countries ) } 27 8D
420.4 4363
MNon-current assets
United Kingdom 11,7041 11.306.83
Other countries T - 135
_ 117105 113203

in presenting the above information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of

customers.
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3. Segmental information {continued)

Reconciliation of segmental information

Segment result

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of jpint ventures interest payable

Share of joint ventures tax

Profit/{loss} before tax from continuing operations

Total operating cash flow by segment
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangibie assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Capital expenditure spend by segment

{ash and cash equivalents

Cash depuosits

Borrawings due within ane year
Borrowings due after more than one year
Met debt by segment

Derivative financial instrurments
Net debt

L

Year
dinded
31 sarch
2023

Em

(588.5)
{75.8)
A4

53180
316.7
{1,713.0)
(8,058.8)
(8,937.1)
697.7)
(9,634.8)

(659.9)

TRar
anded
3l March
2022

5134

1307
11.065.4)
18,286.0]
{8.307.3)
11,162.0}
{9.469.3)

o Derivative financial instruments exclude the net asset of £0.7 million {2022: net asset of £73 .4
million) in respect of the fair value of energy hedges, as these are not classified as part cf net debt.
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4, Revenuz
Year Y2ar
ended angeq
31 March 3L March
2023 2022
Em tm
Water and water recycling services:
Anglian Water
Household - measured 858.8 3071
Housshold - unmeasured 223.7 2213
Non-household - measured 260.6 22883
Grants and contributions 106.0 100
Other LMz a2a
1,494.9 1.399.38
Anglian Venture Holdings 60.3 8.2
Inter-sagment eliminations R £ 5. I V1)
1,545.8 1,452.8
Property revenue .38
1,549.5 L4523

The Group derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services at 3
point in time in the above ravenue categories, with the exception of Househeld — unmeasured which 15

recorded on a straight-line basis throughout the year, see our accounting policy in note 1 far further
details.

Included in Grants and contributions are adepted assets of £46.0 million {2022: £35 2 million) which are
nan-cash.

Other inciudes £25.9 million (2022: £25.2 million) of revenue related to non-appointed business
activities.

The above analysis excludes other operating income see note 5 and finance mcoma see note 7.
The Group derives its revenue fram contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services at a
point in time in the above revenue categories, with the exception of Househeld ~ unmeasured which s

recorded on a straight-line basis throughout the year, see aur accounting policy in note 1 for further
details.
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4. Revenue (continued)

Revenue recognised which exceeds the amounis billed is recorded as contract asset while payments
received prior ta delivering the service is recorded as contract liability. Refer beiow for the movement in

contract assets and liabilities:

Contract asset

At 1 April

Amounts billed
Revenue recognised
At 31 March

Contract liability

At 1 April

Cash received in advance
Revenue recognised

At 31 March

5. Other operating income

_ _Group and {ampany

2023 2022
Em o Enm
310.0 2941
{1,099.0) {1,020 1)
1,120.5 1,036.0
3315 310.0

Group and Company

2023 2022

Em ) ~ Em
{338.3) 12838.8)
{1,090.3) {1.078.14
L0836 10234
(345.5)  [3383)

Other operating income comprises principally income from sustainable power generation, biosolid sales

and rents received.
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&. Operating costs
Year t2ar
ended 2ncdad
31 wvtarch 31 March
2023 2032
fm £
Raw materials and consumablas 401 28 0
Staff costs 303.1 2669
Research and development 7.8 7.7
Contribution to Anglian Water Assislance Fund 1.5 22
Short-term lgasa casts 3.2 23
Hired and contracted services 261.5 2330
Rates 59.1 66 9
Power 83.7 330
Regulatory fees 32.7 28.6
Insurance 10.8 119
Vehiclas and fuel 16.8 130
Other expenses 45.3 34.9
Own work capitatised {132.5} {108.7}
Profit on disposal of property, plant and aquipment ! T =5 N X ),
QOperating costs before depreciation, amortisation and charge for bad and
doubtful debts 7354 £66.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 332.8 300
Amortisation of intangible assets 43.9 110
Depraciatian of investment propearties L L O
Depreciation and amortisation 381.7 3511
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 30.2 1l
Operating costs 01,1473 10282

The profit an disposal of property, plant and equipmeant relates to various sales of surplus land and
assets.

During the year the Group obtained the following senvices from the Company’s Auditor:

Year f=ar
ended ancged
31 Niarch 31 Maren
2023 2022
_Emo o Em

Fees payable ta thae Company's Auditor for the audit of the consondated francial
statements 0.1 0l
Fees payvable to the Company's Auditor for the audit of tha subsidianes 0.5 a5

Fees payable to the Company 5 Auditar for other servicas

Audit-related assurance services 0.3 03
03 03
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6.

Operating Costs (continued)

The Company’s Auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was Delopitte LLP. Audit
related assurance services predominantly relate to regulatory reporting to Ofwat and the review of the

Group’'s half-year results.

Net finanre cosis

Finance income

Interestincome on short-term bank deposits
Other interest income

Amartisation of fair value adjustments
Defined benefit pension scheme interest

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank loans and cverdrafts

Interest expense an other loans including financing expenses
Indexation of loan stock

Amortisation of debt issue costs

Interest on leases

Total finance costs

Less: ameounts capitalised on qualifying assets

Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges '™

Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedges '
Amortisation of adjustment to debt (n fair value hedge
Derivative financial instruments not designated as hedges
Recycling of de-designated cash flow hedge relationship

Finance costs, including fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

tlet fimance costs

Year Y=ar
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
__fm__ fm
227 1.7
1.9 1.7

12.9 138

6.3 0.5
43.8 17.8
(25.5) {2.7)
{284.2) (290.2}
(561.4) {255.0}
(7.6) (12.9}
o8 1)
(879.5} {562.0)
407 16.7
{833.8} {545.3)
- g.5

0.3 0.4

- {0.1)

654.2 (104.1)
{9.2) {11.8)
B645.2 (115.1}
{193.5) (646.0)
- {149.7) (642.6)

Hedge ineffectiveness an cash flows hedges resuiis from instances where the movement in the fair

value of the derivative exceeds the movement in the hedged risk. See note 21 for details.

2' Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedges comprises fair value losses on hedging instruments of

£35.2 million (2022: loss of £67.6 million), offset by fair value gains of £35.5 million on hedged risks

(2022: gains of £67.8 million).
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8.

Taxation
Year f=2ar
ended snaed
31 wiarch 311 Niarch
2023 2022
_Em . . Em
Current tax:
In respeact of the current period Q}' 7 0.8
TJotal current tax charge ) 0.7 08
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 62.6 1584
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 1.2 108
increase in corporation tax rate - 3135
Total deferred tax charge B _ 63.8 B 288.3
Total tax charge on profit/{loss) from continuing sperations 7 54.5 o 2891

The current tax credit for both years reflects receipts fram other Group companies for [osses
surrendered to those Group companies. The tax 1osses anse mainly because capnal allowances exceed
the depreciation charged in the accounts, as well as some income not being taxable and the availability
of tax relief on pension contributians paid in the year. This s affset by disallowable costs and interest. In
the prior year there is alsa a one-off credit arising on a change of accounting treatment,

The deferred tax charge for this year mainly reflects capital allowances claimed in excess of the
depreciation charge on the fair value gains an derivatives, offset by credit an losses carried forward to
future years. The prior year charge mainly reflects the effect of a corparation tax rate change from 19%
to 25% that comes into effect on 1 Apnil 2023 but was legisiated for in the Finance Bill 2021, capital
allowances claimed in excess of the depreciation charge in the accounts, offset by losses carried forward
to future years.

The Finance Bill 2021 also introduced increased tax relief for capital expenditure incurred in the period
upteo 1 April 2023. This has increased the deferred tax charge in this year.

The defarred tax adjustments in respect of previous penods for both years refate mainly to the
agreement of prior year tax computations.

The amounts included far tax liabilities in the financial statements include estimates and judgements. if
the computations subsegquently submitted to HMRC inciude different amounts then these differences
are reflected as an adjustment in respect of priar years in the subsequent financial statements
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8. Taxation (continued)

The tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the notional amount calculated by applying the
rate of UK corporation tax of 19 per cent (2022: 19 per cent} to the profit/(lass) before tax from continuing
operations as foliows:

Yedl Yaar
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£m £m
Profit/{ioss) before tax from continuing operations 2882 (2085}
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations at the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% {2022 19%) 51.0 (33 6}
Cffects of recurring items:
items not deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation and losses on assets not eligible for tax renef 0.6 0.4
Disallowable expenditure 1.4 23
interest restriction 3.9 4.7
Differance in overseas tax rates {0.3) (0.4}
lgint ventures results reported net of tax %y D5
56.7 {32.1}
Effects of non-recurring items:
Effect of capital allowance super deduction {10.8) {7.6}
Increase in corporation tax rate - 3455
Effects of differances hetween rates of current and deferred tax 17.4 {15.9}
Adjustments in respect of prior periods iz (08
Tax charge for the year &5 2831

tn addition to the tax charged te the income statement, the following amounts of tax relating to
components of other comprehensive income were recognised:

Yaar Y2ar
anded endeg
31 March 3L March
2022 2022
o £m Em
Deferred tax:
Defined benefit pension schames {31.7) 51.9
Cash flow hedges 10.2) 176
Increase in corporation tax rate - pension - i11.6)
Increase in corporation tax rate - hedges S o 28]
Total deferred tax charge o {319} 353
Total tax charge recognised in other comprehensive income o 151.9) 333
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9. Employee information and Direciors’ emolumentis

a} Employee information

Year Yar
ended 2naed
31 March 31 Miarch
2023 2322
£m £m

Staff costs
Wages and safanes 2538 2246
Social security costs 26.8 226
Pansian costs - defined cantribution 223 194
Pension costs - defined benafit o 01 U3
303.1 255.9

Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2023 in the table above are shown inclusive of £101.2 million
(2022: £87.7 million) of costs that have been capitalised, as shown within ‘own work caprtalised’ in note

6.
Average monthly number of full-time equivalent persans {including Executive Directors) emploved by
the Group:
Year f2ar
ended anded
31 wlarch 31 March
oo %3 622
Anglian Water 5,295 5,129
Anglian Venture Holdings 131 183
Other &8 53
5,552 3,373
The Company

The Company has no employees [2022: none}.

b—
-
—
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9. Employee information and Directors’ emolumentis {continued)

b} Directors’ emoluments

Year ¥2ar
ended 2ndec

31 wiarch 31 Marrh
2023 023
£'000 27000

Aggregate emoluments 2,425 2,221
- 2

Pension costs - defined contribution R

Aggregate emoluments of the Directers comprise salaries, taxable benefits, cash payments in lieu of
company pension contributions and amounts payabie under annual bonus schemes. No retirement
benefits are accrued for Directors {2022: none) under a defined benelit pension scheme. Retirement
benefits are accruing to two Directors (2022 two Directors} under a defined contribution pension

scheme.

t}  Highest paid director

Year fear

ended andeg

31 March 31 March
2023 022

o _f£900 ____£000
1,391 1,304

Aggregate emoluments

10. Profit/(loss) of the parent company

The Company has not presented its own income statement as permitted by section 208 cf the
Companies Act 2006. The profit in the year of the Company was £96.4 mithion [2022: {oss of £4.0

miilion).
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11.

Goodwill
B Group
2023 2022
CEm Em_
Cost
At the beginning of the year 335.4 i 9354
At 31 wiarch 535.4 9354
At 1 April and 31 March . 9354 9354
Accumnulated impairment
At the begining of the year {489.6) ) 1189 8)
At 31 March - {48%.8) 14839
At 1 April and 31 March ___ta896)  1489.5)
et baok amount
Ar 31 March - 4458 34338

Alflocation of goodwill

Alf goodwill is ailocated to the Anglian Water business segment, the Group’s UK regulated water and
water recycling services provider.

impairment testing of goodwill atlocated to Anglian Water

The recoverable amount of the Anglian Watar segment 1s determined based on a fair value fess cost to
sell methodology.

This calculation uses a multiple of Regulatory Capitai Value (RCV) with reference to the recent
transactions that have taken olace in the sector and the market value of the fisted companies in the
sector. The basis applied has been deemead appropriate as it is consistent with the economic vaiue as
assessed by management and other market participants.

The current comparable fransactions in the sector indicate that current multiples are 1.25x, although
these have been between 1.2x and 1.7x RCV in recent years. The implied multiples for the hsted water

campanies are also around 1.1x to 1.2x on a non-controlling basis, based on current market
capitalisation.

Adopting a current market average RCV multiple of 1.25x at 31 March 2023 results in headroom of
£2,756 million (2022: 1.25x, £1,471 million}. The headroom at 31 March 2023 is eliminated at an RCV
multiple of 0.97x (2022 1.08x).

Goodwill is also assessed using forecast discounted cashflows which aiso demonstrates that there 15
headroom above the carrying value.
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12.

Other intangible assets

Cost

At 1 April 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2022
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2023

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April 2021

Charge for the year

Disposats

At 31 March 2022

Charge for the year

Disposal of subsidiary undertaking
At 31 March 2023

Met book amount
At 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

S - . Group
Computer Right to Internaliy
Software operate asset generated Total
£m £m £m ~Em
398.8 216 157.3 577.7
16.1 16.0 62.1
@s - : (2.5)
442.4 210 1733 637.3
54.3 284 82.7
- . 112.3) (12.3)
497 215 189.4 707.7
{260.7} {11.7) (100.3} (372.9}
{23.5) (2.3 (13.2) {41.0)
21 . - 2.1
{282.1) (14.0) (115.7} {411.8)
(14.8) [2.4) (3.7} {48.9)
. = S 2.3
296.9) (15.4) {135.1)  (448.4)
139.8 5.2 54.3 259.3
_ 1603 7.6 57.6 2255

The ‘right to operate’ asset arose on the acquisition of Celtic Anglian Water Limited in June 2016, whilst

the internally generated intangible assets mainly comprise capitalised development expenditure.

Included within additicns above is £6.4 million (2022; £3.1 million} of interest that has been capitalised

on qualifying assets, at an average rate of 8.6 per cent {2022: 4.8 per cent).

Intangible assets with a cost of £12.3 million and net book value of nil were disposed of during the year

{2022: £2.4 million cost and £0.6 million net book value).

Included within intangible assets above are assets under construction of £121 6 million (2022: £101.4

million). £43.5 million (2022: £24.2 million) of this relates to the SAP replacement project which 1s

expected to go live in 2024 Assets under construction are not subject to amortisation.

The Compgany

The Company has no intangible assets {2022: none).
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12.

Property, piant and equipment

Land and
buildings
tm

Cost
At 1 Aprit 2021 886
Additions .
Transfers an commissioning 6.4
Dispasals _{ro)
At 31 March 2022 94.0
Additions
Transfars on commissianing 1.9
Disposais _ . _(o.4)
At 31 March 2023 98.5
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 (17.0}
Charge for the year (3.8)
Disposals Q8
At 31 March 2022 {20.0)
Charge for the year {4.1)
Disposals 0.4
At 31 March 2023 {23.7)
Net book amount
At 31 March 2023 _ 7a3
At 31 March 2022 74.0

infra-
structure
assets

Em

T 1300.3)
(62 3)

{962.6)

64833

538138

Operaticnal
assets

£m
5,400. 3

1144
73
6.507 2

2337
(123)

6,728.2

(2491 1)
(1507
7.1

(36737

(202.9)
12.5
(3,865.1)
_2863.1

2,832.7

Vehicles,
mobile
plant and
squipment
£m

A46.7
0.z
128 0
2431
1.050.9
.2
1130
3251
1,131.5

Assets
under
construction
£m

136.2
3723
13713

8373
7334
(516.0)

8547

Group

Total

trm

15,0314
572.9

_ 1328)
15.571.7
7335
_{5.9)
16,259.4

{4,987.9)
{310.0)
321

5,265.8)

(332.8)
45.4
{5,553.2)
10,706.2

10,3059

Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2023 includes land of £30.2 million (2022: £28.6 miulion),
which is not subject to depreciation. included within additions above is £34.4 mitlion {2022: £13.56

million} of interest that has been capitalised on qualifying assets, at an average rate of 8.6 per cent

(2022: 4.8 per cent).
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13. Property, plani and equipment (continued)

Right-of-use asseis held under jeases

Included within the amounts shown above are the following amounts ; relaton to right-of-use assets

held under leases:

e i Group
Vehicles,
infra- mobile
Land and structure  Operational plant and
buildings assets assets equipment Total
£m £m £m ~ £m £m
At 31 March 2023
Opening net book vaiue 219 5.0 382 3.0 58.1
Additions 01 - - 6.0 5.1
Disposais - (0.2} {0.2}
Depreciation charge (3.0} - (1.3} (2.2} {6.5}
Depreciation an disposals - - B - N
Net book value i8¢ 30 39 BB &7
At 31 March 2022
Opening net book value 21.8 5.0 38.2 3.0 o8.1
Additions 3.8 - - 42 8.0
Disposals (0.8} - - {0.8} {1.8)
Depreciation charge {3.9) (0.1} {1.3) {1.5) {6.8)
Depreciation on disposals 0.8 - - 0.8 1.6
Net baok value /218 49 3%8 57 893
The Company
The Company has no property, plant and equipment {2022: none}.
14. Investment oroperties
o Group
2623 2022
Em Em
Cost
At 1 April 3.7 33
Additions - 0.4
At 31 March 3.7 3.7
Accurmulated depreciation
At 1 April (C.1} 102y
Charge for the year - 0.
Disposals i - 0.2
At 31 March o oy 10.1)
tlet book amount
At 31 March ] 3.0 36

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost model. i line with the accounting pohcy for
property, plant and equipment.

e
-
(93]
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14. investmeat properties [continued)
The fair value of investment graperties is not matenally different fram their book value.
Tihe Company

The Company has no investment properties (2022 none).

15. fnvestments
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ [l £m im
Naon-current
ot venturas 123 1295 - -
Substdiary undertakings i - - 1,678.9 1,680 7
122 126 ~1,678.9 ) 1,880.7
Current
Cash deposits 316.7 A30.7
216.7 130.7

Cash depasits disclosed within investments represent short-term pank deposits with maturities at the
point of deposit of three to six months.

n

—

joint veatures

T broup
2023 2022
£m £m
Ar 1 Apnl i2.6 15.2
Loss for the year {0.4) {2.65
At 31 March i2.2 120

The loss for the year comprises the Graup’s share of the results of its joint ventures as follows: operating
profit of £2 1 miltion {2022 loss of £0.4 mdiian}, an interest expense af £2.3 mulion {2022: £1.8 mithon),
and a tax charge of £0.2 million {2022: charge of £0.4 miliion},

The Graup's initial investment in the Wave joint vanture was £31.3 million, comprising an equity holding
of £15.6 million and a £15.7 million 5.5 per cent medium-term joan repayable on 31 August 2027 ar
such other date as mutually agreed between the parties. During the vear ended 31 March 2021, the
Group undertook a debt for equity swap of £5.0 milhion, resulting in an equity hatding of £20.6 milian
and a £10.7 million 5.5 per cent medium-term loan.

A full histing of the Groug's joint ventures can be found in note 34, none of which are material to the
Group.

Dsprey Holdeco Limited and Anglian Venture Holdings Limited are party to indemnities in respect of the
Wave [oint venture in relation to wholesale water charges payable to Anglian Water Senvices Limited for
£14.5 million and another wholesaier for £10.0 milbon. Additionaily, Anghian Venture Haoldings Limted s
party to an indemnity in respect of the Wave joint venture in relation to wholesale water charges
payable to ather whotesalers far £7.5 mullion.
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15.

a)

b)

Investments (continued)
Joint ventures (continued}

n addition, Anglian Venture Holdings Limited has undartaken to discharge any defined henefit pension

scheme liability arising on any of its employees, including those of Anglian Water Business {National)

Limited, transterring into the Wave joint venture.

The joint ventures have no significant contingent liabilities to which the Group is exposed.

Subsidiary undertakings

Cost

At 1 April 2021
Additions

Amounts written off
Repayments

At 31 March 2022
Repayments

At 31 March 2023

Provision for impairment
At 1 April 2021, at 31 March 2022 and at 31 March 2023

Net book amount
At 31 March 2023
Non-current asset investments

At 31 March 2022
Non-current asset investments

.. . __ kompany
Loans to sShares in
subsidiary subsidiary

undertakings undertakings Totai

Em £m £m

744.8 1,037.7 1.782.5

277 728.8 756.5

{728.8] (728.8)

O Y Bt U/

26.0 1,766.5 1,792.5

(1.8) (1.8}

242 1,7665 11,7907

- {111.8} {111.8)

242 1.654.7 __1,678.9

24.2 1,654.7 1,678.8

. 26.0 168547  16BO.7

26.0 _1634.7 1,680.7

The £24.2 million loan to Anglian Venture Holdings Limited carries interest at SONIA plus 3.03 per cent,

including the credit adjusted spread and is repayable on 1 December 2025.

The Directors are of the opinion that the value of the investments i1s supported by the underlying assets.

Subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 34.
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i6. Inventories
Group
2023 2022
fm £m
Raw matenals and consumables 20.7 170
Work in progress 7.1 5.3
27.8 23
Work in progress comprisaes the cost of properties held for development.
The Company
The Company has no inventories {2022: none).
L7. Trade and other receivaales
. Group . . Lompgany
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £rm £m £m
Trade recevaboles 443.0 1116 -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts . _{258.2y (23631 - -
Net trade receivables 184.8 175.1
Amounts receivable from group undertakings 2.1 01 8.7 J3
Loans receivable from jaint ventures 21.3 35.7 -
Other amounts receivable 41.3 116
Prepayments and accrued incomea 3514 3247 - -
598.9 567.2 0.7 03

Prepayments and accrued income as at 31 March 2023 includes water and water racyciing income not
yet bifled of £331.5 million (2022: £312.4 milhon). Of the trade receivables, £427.3 million (2022:
£398.4. million} relates to Anglian Water Services residential customers, £0.7 milhion (2022: £1.1 miilion)
relates to Anglian Water Services non-household retailer balances and the remaining balance relates to
developer services and other receivables. The majority of non-househoid customers are billed 1in arrears
and are therefore included within accrued income above.

Other amounts receivabie includes £15.4 miilion VAT debtor (2022: £16.0 million).

Loans receivabte from joint ventures at 31 March 2023 comprise the following amounts due from the
Wave [oint venture:
¢« AE16.7 million (2022: £16.7 mullion) loan at 12 month SONIA plus 2.75 per cent plus credit
adjusted spread (CAS) with no fixed repayment date {previously at LIBOR plus 2.75 per cent);
A E4.6 million (2022 £15.0 million) short-term working capital facility at one month SONIA
plus 2.75 per cent plus CAS {previously at LIBOR pius 2.75 per cent): and
Nil balance on the preference lcan after repayment of the fast instalment (2022 £4.0 mulion)
5.0 per cant preference loan for the original loan amount of £20.0 repayable in five annual
instaiments of £4 0 milhon from August 2018.
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17.

Trade and other receivables

In addition to loans receivable from joint ventures in the above table, the following additional amounts
due from joint ventures have been included:
+ accrued income of £8.3 miliion (2022: £4.9 million} and interest receivable af £1.7 mulliun (2u22:
£1.7 million), included within prepaymaents 4nd accrued income

The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair values.

The Group manages its risk from trading through the effective management of customer reiationships.
By far the most significant business unit of the Group is Anglian Water. which represents 96.5 per ¢cent
of the Group’s revenue and 96.3 per cent of its net trade receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to household trade receivables are limited due to the Anglian Water customer base cunsisting of
a large number of unrelated households. The Water Industry Act 1991 {as amended by the Water
Industry Act 1999) prohibits the disconnection of a water supply and the limiting of supply with the
intention of enforcing payment for certain premises including domestic dwellings. However, allowance
is made by the water regulator in the price Iimits at each price review for a proportion of debt deemed
to be irrecoverable. Considering the above, the Directors helieve there is no further credit risk provision
required in excess of the allowance for doubtful receivables.

Foliowing the introduction of market reform on 1 April 2017, the provision of water and wastewater
services to non-household customers was transferred to a relatively small number of licenced retailers.
Anglian Water bills the retailers an a monthly basis, and they are cantractually obliged ta gay in full
within one month and therefore the credit risk is iimited to one month’s revenue relating to non-

household customers.

The principal retailer that Anglian Water transacts with is Wave Ltd, with £nil receivables (2022: £nil)
and £8.3 million of income accrued at 31 March 2023 (2022 £4.9 million}.

The movement on the doubtful debts provision, all of which relates to trade receivables, was as follows:

Group

2023 2022

.. _Em, Em

At 1 Aprit 236.5 2337
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 30.2 11.1
Amaunts written off during the year {8.7) (8 8!
Amounts recoverad during the year 82 05
At 31 March =58.2 2385

There is no fixed payment date for amounts owed by Group undertakings and no interest is apphed.

Amounts are payable on demand.
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18. Analysis of net debt

AT 1 Aprii 2021

Cash flows
Interest paid
Issue casts paid
Receipt of premium aon borrowings
Interest on leasas
Increase in amounts harrowed
Rapayment of amounts borrowed
Principal settlement on denvatives
Repayment of principal on
derivatives
Repayment of principal on leases
Non-financing cash flows >

Movement in interest accrual on debt
New lease agreements

Amartisation of issue costs
Arnortisation of fair value adjustments
Indexation of borrowings and RP!
swaps

Fair value gains and losses and foreign
exchange

At 31 March 2022

wet cash
and cash
equivatents!!

£m
2733

{2819}
(287}

(1.2}
2.,040.5
(1.338.4)
75.9

{13 1)
{113.0}
3401

Current
asset
investments
- cash
depaosits

£m

88.5

3422
3422

B L

Liabilities

from finanaing activities _

Barrowings
£m
{8,554.3)

12,040.5}
1,338.4

131

(531 3)
(3.8}
(8.4)
{12.9)
138

(170 2)

20.5
LR S S

Darivative
financiaf
instruments '3
£m

{841.0)

30

(78 9}

. 18.469.3)

Group

Total
£m

{9,033.4}

{255.9)

{1.2)

229.2
{27.9)
18.8)
{8.4}
{12.9}
139

{255.0)

1136.8)
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18. Analysis of net debt (continued)

Group
Current Liabilities
assat from financing activities
Met cash investments Derivative
and cash - cash financiai
equivalentsi® deposits Borrowings instruments '3} Total
£m £m frm £m £m
Casn flows
Interest paid (300.5) - 276 {3.5) {276.4)
Issue costs paid 2.4 - 2.7 - 0.3
Interest on leases (0.8} - {0.8)
Increase in amaounts borrgwed 1,11/.8 - {1,117.8) - -
Repayment of amounts barrowed (1,005.8) - 1,005.8 - -
Repayment of principal on leases 16.4) - 6.4 - -
Non-financing cash flows ¥ 102.7 (114.0) - - {(11.3)
{95.4) {114.0) (753} (33 (2882
Movement in interest accrual on debt - - 2.2 - 2.2
New lease agreements - - (5.9} - {5.9}
Amortisation of issue costs - - (7.6} - {7.6)
Amortisation of fair value adjustments - - 12.9 - 12.9
Indexation of borrowings and RP!
SWaps - - (363.0) {198 1} (561.4)
Fair value gains and losses and foreign
exchange - - 16.3 666.2 682.5
At 31 March 2023 518.0 316.7 {9,771.8} {697.7} [9,634.8}
Net debt at 31 March 2023 camprises:
Non-current assets - - 182.9 132.9
Current assets 518.0 316.7 - 374 872.1
Current liabilities - - (1.713.0) (31.5) {1,744.5)
Non-current liabilities - - {8,058.8) ___|886.5) {8,945.3)
518.0 316.7 {9,771.8) {697.7) (9.634.8)

tncluded within cash and cash equivalents is £7.6 mitlion (2022: £8.5 million} of cash which is
ring fenced to be used to fund projects awarded by Ofwat in relation to their innovation fund.

21 Derivative financial instruments exclude the asset of £0.7 million {(2022: £73.4 million) in respect
of the fair value energy hedges, as these are not yet classified as part of the debt.

% Non-financing cash flows comprise: net cash flows from operating activities of £701.9 mullion
{2022: £742 .6 million}, less net cash used in investing of £507.4 million {2022: £855.5 million).
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.

Analysis of net debt (continued)

Energy hedges, excluded from net debt, are included within derivative financial instruments as follows:

2023 mare

£m Em

Non-current assets 11.5 273

Current assets 13.4 48.1
Current liabilities {21.9}

Non-current liabilities . (77._3) {(2.2)

o7 7

Current asset investments above comprise £316.7 mullion {2022: £430.5 million) of short-term cash
depasits with an ariginal maturity of more than three manths.

At 31 March 2023, £335.Imillion (2022: £475 8 millionj of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
£298.0 million {2022: £392.0 million) of the shcri-term deposits were held by Anglian Water and its
financing subsidiary. in order for these amounts to be made available to the rest of the Group, Anghan
Water Services Limited must satisfy certain covenants, which were put in place an 30 July 2002
following a financial restructuring, prior to declaring dividends. A further £0.2 million (2022: £0.2
millian} of the Group's cash and cash equivalents was held as coilateral for outstanding loan notes. in
addition, £0.8 million (2022: £0.4 miliion) of the Group s cash and cash equivalents and £3.5 million
(2022: £3.7 million) of the short-term deposits were held by Rutland Insurance Limited (the Group's

captive insurance company) in arder to maintain its reguired solvency ratio.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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13. Analysis of net debt {continued)

Company
Met cash Current
and cash asset
equivalents receivables Roweowings lotal
. LB _fm_ o Em_ fm
ac Ll apnl 2021 25.0 728.8 {1.029.2) {275.4)
Cash flows
nterest paid 13.2) - - {25.4)
Repayment of amounts borrowed - -
Non-financing cash flows '+ 12.0 - - 12.0
(13.4) - - {13.4)
Waiver of intercompany laan R -2 _ {728.8)
4t 31 March 2022 oo e o 4re282) {18178}
Cash flows
Interest paid (25.4) - - [25.4}
Nor-financing cash flows ' R 2 2 - .
6.0 - - 6.0
At 31 March 2023 s - (30292} (1,011.5)
Net debt at 31 March 2023 comprises:
Current assets 176 - - 17.6
Current liabilities - - {1,029.2) {567.2)
Non-current liabilities e e {4e2.0)
e o 1028z {1,011.8) _

Y Non-financing cash flows comprise of net cash flows used in operating activities of £0.5 million
[2022: £0.6 million) tess net cash from investing activities of £123.7 miilion {2022: £11.4 miltion).
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15.

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
. fm 0 tm  ___Em _im
Trade payables 32.5 130 -
Capital creditors and accruals 183.5 130.9 -
Receipts in advance 354.0 312.3
Amounts owed to group undertakings - la 1.0
Other taxes and social security 7.8 5.7
Accruals and deferred income 1014 79.3 B
Gther payables 15.2 77 -
700.4 6106 1.6 L6

Receipts in advance includes £301.7 milion (20227 £291.0 million) relating to amaounts recewved from
customers for water and sewerage charges in respect of bills that fall due in the following year.

Accruals and deferred income is made up of £30.0 million accruals (2022: £68.7 million} with the
remainder attributable to deferred incame.

Amaunts relating to capital creditors and accruals have been separately presented in the above table o
aid consistency with the presentation required by Ofwat in the Annual Performance Report of Anglian
Water Services Limited.

The Directors consider that the carrying vaiues of trade and other payables are not materally different
from their fair values.

There is no fixed payment date for amounts owed to group undertakings and no interest 1s applied.
Amounts are payable an demand.

[
]
u
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20. Loans and other borrowings

S . Group . R Company
2023 2022 2023 2022

__ fm __Em _ £m Em

£250 million 5.837% fixed rate 2022 - 2601 T

£200 million 6.875% fixad rate 2023 209.2 211.1 -

£200 mitlien 6.625% fixed rate 2029 210.2 2115 -

£246 million 6.293% fixed rate 2030 2621 266.5 -

E£75 million 3.666% index-linked 2024 151.2 1358 -

E200 million 3.07% index-tinked 2032 424.0 3825 -

£60 mibion 3.07% index-linked 2032 119.7 115.2 -

IFRS 16 leases 313 323 -

£432 million 2.4% index-linked 2035 505.8 681.1 -

£50 miblion 1.7% index-linked 2046 95.0 85.3 -

£50 million 1.7% index-linked 2046 95.2 36.0 -

£40 million 1.7146% indexation bond 2056 79.3 71.3 -

£50 miition 1.6777% indexation bond 2056 93.6 38.¢ -

£60 million 1.7903% indexation bond 2049 117.3 105.5 -

£100 million 1.3784% indexation bond 2057 178.7 155.5 -

£50 million 1.3825% indexation bond 2056 89.3 79.7 -

£100 million Class A wrazpped floating rate bonds 2057 100.6 100.0 -

£75 miilion 1.449% indexation bond 2062 1211 1114 -

£50 million 1.52% indexation bond 2055 81.0 743 -

£110 million Class A unwrapped fioating rate bonds 2043 1104 110.0 -

£25 miliion 6.875% private placements 2034 25.0 250 -

£130 million 2.262% indexation bond 2045 213.2 138 .4 -

EIB £75 million 0.53% index-linked term facility 2027 - 45.6 50.4 -

EIB £75 million 0.79% index-linked term facility 2027 '* 45.6 50.4 -

£250 million 4.5% fixed rate 2027 253.6 2533 -

£15 million 1.37% index-linked private placements 2022 - 159 -

£50 million 2.05% index-linked private placements 2033 74.8 66.1 -

£31.9 million 3.983% private placements 2022 - 325 -

£73.3 million 4.394% private placements 2028 66.2 721 -

£22.3 million 3.983% private placements 2022 - 22.7 -

EIB £150 million 0% index-linked term facility 2028 = 110.5 1173 -

£200 miilion 4.5% fixed rate 2026 194.8 200.3 - -

£35 million 1.141% index-linked bond 2042 51.1 45.2 - -

US$170 miilion 3.84% private placements 2023 138.8 1330 -

£93 million 3.537% private placements 2023 94.5 S4.4 -

EIB £65 million 0.41% index-linked term facility 2028 55.8 576 -

EiB Tranche 2 £125 million 0.1% 2029 ¥ 1149 1173 -

EIB Tranche 3 £60 million 0.01% 2030 59.1 59 8 -

RCF £550 million (1.7} (2.2} -

RCF £50 million bilaterals {0.1} (0.1) -

US5150 million 3.29% private placements 2026 1134 113.7 -

£55 million 2.93% fixed rate private placements 2026 55.5 55.4 -

£20 million 2.93% fixed rate private placements 2026 201 201 -

£35 million fleating rate private placements 2031 34.8 348 -

£200 million 2.6225% fixed rate 2027 191.7 196.8 -

£250 militon Green Bond 1.625% 2025 233.8 2428 -

£300 million Green bend 2.73% 2029 300.3 3004

Sub-total carried forward 5,576.8 59351 -
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

z20. Loans and other borrowings (continued)

Sub-total brought forward

£25 million 3.0% fixed rate 2031

USS53 million 3.053% fixed rate 2029

£E85 million 2.88% fixed rate 2029

£65 million 2.87% fixed rate 2029

F65 million CPI 0.835% 2040

1PY 7 billion 0.853% fixed rate 2039

EDC £100 million 1.588% fixed rate 2028
F50 million 1.76% fixed rate 2035

IPY 7 billion 0.85% fixed rate 2040

IR £26.1 millien CPI1 0.01% 2035

BPPT £26.1 million CP10.01% 2035

£35 million 2.14% tixed rate 2036

£40 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

1JSS35 million 1.16% private placements 2026
CS 350 million 4.525% Maple 2032

E£266 miliion 6.07% private placement 2037
£100 million CPIH index linked 3.017% 2040 toan
£75% million floating loan 2029

£75 million floating loan 2032

RCF £325 mullion

Liquidity facilities

£210 million 5.0% fixed rate bond 2023
£240 million 4.0% fixed rate bond 2026
£300 million 2 0% fixed rate bond 2028
£100 million 2.37% private placements 2031
£105 million 2.2% private placements 2028
£100 million floating terrn facility 2026

Loan notes

RCF £250m

£100 million 6.96% private placement 2033
Other loans

£10.5 million fixed to floating rate notes 2027
£145 million fixed to floating rate notes 2028
£120 miilion 4.82% fixed rate 2030

£30 million floating rate notes 2030

£50 mutlion fixed to floating rate notes 2030
£95 million floating rate private placements 2027
£125 million floating term facility 2026

£75 million floating term facility 2026

£75 million private placement 2030

£462 million 5.5% unsecured loan notes
£548 million interest free loan

£11.83 rrutlion 3.302% fixed rate 2026

Total loans and other borrotvings

2023

5,576.8
25.0
43.0
84.9
65.5
75.9
2.7

100.4
50.0
32.6
33.4
33.2
26.1
29.9
25.6

209.2

272.4

103.0
75.6
75.6
0.7

0.3

239.8

299.2

100.4

105.1

100.1

0.2
73.3
100.3
1.8
10.7

147.7

118.7
30.9
49.9
96.0

124.8
74.9
76.3

581.2

548.0
11.7

3,771.8

+—

0.
214
239
298.7
100.5
105.3
95.0
02
{2.1)

o Q

1.2
10.7
147.7
118.3
305
13.9
94 8
123.2
74.0

a31.2
518.0
116

3.351.4

20232

481.2
543.0

©1,029.2

Company
022

Em

1312
343.0

r,
V]
~d
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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20. Loans and other borrowings (continued)
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
lncluded in:
Current labilities 1,713.0 1,065 2 1,029.2 567 2
Non-current liabilities 8,058.8 8,286.0 - 162.0
Of which are leases:
Current liabilities 5.4 0.8
Non-current ligbilities 25.9 255 -

U These instruments are amortising from 2017 until the date of maturity shown.

This instrument is amortising from 2018 until the date of maturity shown.
These instruments are amartising from 2019 until the date of maturity shown.
This instrument is amortising from 2020 until the date of maturity shown.

The value of the capital and interest elements of the index-linkad loans is linked te movements in
inflation. The increase in the capital value of index-linked loans during the year of £363 .0 million (2022:
£170.2 million) has been taken to the income statement as part of interest payable.

These loans are shown net of issue costs and barrowings premium of £35.1 mullion (2022: £31.7 million)
The issue costs are amortised at the effective interest rate based on the carrying amount of debt over
the life of the underlying instruments.

A security agreement dated 30 july 2002 between Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, Anglian Water
Services Limited, Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings
Limited and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited {as Agent and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance
Parties to the Global Secured Medium Term Note Programme) created a fixed and floating charge over
the assets of Anglian Water Services Limited to the exient permissible under the Water industry Act
1991. In addition, there is a fixed charge over the issued share capital of Anglian Water Services
Financing Plc, Anglian Water Services Limited and Anglian Water Services UK Parent Limited. At 31
March 2023, this charge applies to £6,845.0 million {2022: £6,456.4 million) of the debt listed above.

A security agreement dated 31 January 2011 between Anglian Water (Osprey} Financing Plc, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited {as agent and trustee for itself and each of
the Finance Parties to the Guaranteed Secured Medium Term Mote Programme) created a fixed and
floating charge over the assets of Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc and Osprey Acguisitions Limited.
in addition, there is a fixed charge over the issued share capita! of Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc
and AWG Parent Co Limited. At 31 March 2023, this charge applies to £1,018.4 million (2022: £1,055.2
million) of the debt listed above.

Loans and cther borrowing liabilities disclosed within borrowings on the salance sheet are the anly
instruments designated as fair value hedge items by the Group.
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20.

Loans and other borrowings (continued)

The tabte below details the impact of fair value hedge adjustments on the instruments subject to far

value hedge accounting:

=023

US5150 million 3.29% private placements 2026
US5170 mullion 3.84% private placements 2023
£200 million 2.6225% fixed rate 2027

£200 million 4.5% fixad rate 20286

£246 million 6.293% fixed rate 2030

£250 million Green Bond 1.625% 2025

£73.3 million 4.394% private placements 2028
JPY 7 billion 0.85% fixed rate 2040

£35 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

£40 mililon 2.14% fixed rate 2036

US535 million 1.16% private placements 2026

2022

USS150 miltion 3.29% private placements 2026
US5160 milhon 4.52% private placements 2021
USS$170 million 3.84% private placements 2023
£200 miltion Class B 2.6225% fixed rate 2027
£200 million Class B 4.5% fixed rate 2026

£246 million 6.293% fixed rate 2030

£250 million Green Bond 1.625% 2025

£73.3 millien 4.394% private placements 2028
IPY 7 biflion 0.85% fixed rate 2040

£35 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

£40 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

USS35 million 1.16% private placements 2026

'

Accumulated
hadge
adjustment 'Y

£m

4.5
14
2.9
5.3

{1.3)
35
(03}
19
85
2.7
83
3.0
3.5
1.8

Carrying Proportion
value hedged
£m %
118.4 76
13838 34
1917 41
134.8 50
250.3 20
2338 100
656.2 100
326 100
26.1 100
29.9 100
- 25.6 B 100
.._1308.2 L
113.7 76
- 100
1330 54
196.8 41
200.3 50
266.5 20
242.8 100
72.1 100
352 100
32.0 100
36.6 100
24.6 100
1,353.6

32.7

Group
Discounted
hedge
adjustment

£m

= The accumulated hedge adjustment noted above is included within th-e-: -carr\/in-g- ;alue of each

instrument. The maovementin the accumulated hedge adjustment is shown within fair value losses

on derivative financial instruments in the income statement.
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21. Financial instruments

Financial asseis by category

At 31 March 2023
investments
Current - cash deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Current

Trade and other receivables

Current

Derivative financial instrurments

Current
Non-current

At 31 March 2022

Investments
Current - cash deposits
Non-current

Cash and cash equivalents
Current

Trade and other receivables

Current

Derivative financial instruments

Current
Nen-current

Assets at

fair value

through
profit
and loss

4.7

4.7

Assets at

amortised
Derivatives cost and
used for cash
hedging aquivalents
__ Em _ ___ __fm
5138.0
5819

179
653 -
113.2 1,099.9
6134
355.2

3138

57.8
109.6 ) 1,168.6

Trade and other receivables above exclude prepayments.

investments
at amortised
cost

Em

3le.7

316.7

430.7

130.7

_. Group

Total
Em
316.7
518.0
581.9
55.8

134.4
1,566.8

430.7

1.7
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets by category {continued)

At 31 warch 2023

investments

Non-currant

Cash and cash eguivalents

Current

Trade and ather receivables

Current

At 31 March 2022

Investments

Non-current

Cash and cash equivalents

Current

Trade and other receivables

Current

Assets at

amortised
cost and Investments
cash at amortised
equivalents cost
o fEm Em
1.678.9
176
_ 07 o
183 1,578.9
1,5880.7
1.6
L 0.3 . -
i1.5 1,680.7

Company
Totai
£m

1,678.9
i72.6

1,697.2

1.680.7
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21. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities by category {continued}

fair value
through Derivatives
profit used for
and loss hedging
Em___ Em
At 31 March 2023
Borrowings
Current
Non-current -
Trade and cther payables
Current
Derivative financial instruments
Current 24.0 28.8
Non-current 807.7 86.1
832.3 114.5
At 31 March 2022
Borrowings
Current -
Non-current
Trade and other payables
Current -
Derivative financial instruments
Current 10.1 -
Non-current 1,1455 46 9
_ 11560 6.9

Liabilities at

Trade and other payables above exciude receipts in advance.

Other
fiabilities
held at
amaortised

cost

LEm

1,713.0
30588

3386

10,1104

1,065.4
8.286.0

Group

Total
_Em

1,713.0
8,058.8
338.6
53.4

8938
11,9575

1,065.4
8.286.0

267.8

10.1
1,192.8

o _os2zl
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21,

Financial instruments (continued}

At 31 March 2023

Borrowings
Current

Trade and other payables

Current

At 31 March 2022

Borrowings
Current
Non-current

Trade and other payables

Current

liabilities
heid at
amortised
cost

fm

10292

1.6

1,530.8

15
10303

Company

Totai

Em

1,029.2

1.6
1,030.8

367 2
1620

10308
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21. Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Group
_ 2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Azseis Liabilinies
£gm M _m o ET
Designated as cash flow hedges o o 7
Interest rate swaps 31.3 {0.8) a3 12.9)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 16.0 {6.2} 5.2 39
Energy swaps 293 {29y 738 (2.2)
772 (360) 813 (14 0)
Designated as fair value hedges
interest rate swaps 0.9 (64.1) 1.0 1214}
Cross currency interest rate swaps 3’51 {273 {113}
.30 {7189 283 {323}
Derivative financial instruments designated as hedges 113.2 {114.9) 109.6 {(46.9)
Derivative financial instrumenis not designated as
hedges
'nterest rate swaps and swaptions 0.4 {104.9) - {173.9
RP! swaps 121.9 {505.0} - {634.8)
CPiswaps a3 {222.4) R R = Y
Total derivative financial instruments ~ 250.2 1947.2) 1143 {1,202.9)
Derivative financial instruments can be analysed as
follows:
Current 55.8 {53.4} 36.5 110 §4;
Non-current __.1%44  {893.3) _ 578 1Lig23)
2502 {%47.2) 1143 - 1L20239)

134



Osprey Holdco Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

21.

Financial instruments {continued)
Derivative financial instruments {continued)

At 31 March 2023, the fixed interest rates vary from 2 84 per cent to 4 75 per cent, floanng rates vary
from SONIA plus 11.20 bps to SONIA plus 326.36 bps, RPI-linked interest rates vary from 1.27 per cent to
2.97 per cent plus RPt and CPI-linked interest rates vary from 1 21 per cent plus TPl to 1.69 per cent plus
CP!. Gains and lossas recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedge reserve on interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swap contracts will be continuously
released to the income statement within finance costs in line with the repayment of the related
borrowings. Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash
flow hedge reserve on energy hedges will be released to the income statement within operating costs in

Hine with the expiry of the power season 1o which the gamns and losses relate.

The Company
The Campany has no derivative financial instruments {2022: none).

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embeddad derivatives thar are
required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out it the
standard. There were no amounts recorded in the income statement for gains or losses on embedded

derivatives for the year ended 31 March 2023 {2022: £nui).

ieases

The minimum lease payments in respect of all leasas fali due as follows:

Group

2023 2022

£m _&m

Within one year 6.9 57
Between two and five years 20.0 13.1
After five years T O =
38.0 38.9

Future finance charges or leases 5.7 15.61
31.3 23

Present value of lease hablities ) o
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21.

Financial instrumentis {confinued)

Cash and cash egquivalents

Current asset investments - cash deposits

Borrowings
Current
Mon-current

Intarast and crass currency interast rate swaps - assets

Current
Non-current

Interest and cross currency interest rate swaps -

liabilities
Current
Non-current

RPIl swaps - assets
Current
Non-current

RP{ swanps - liahilities
Current
Non-current

CPIl swaps - assets
Current
Naen-current

CPl swaps - liabilities
Current
Non-current

Net debt

Energy derivatives - assets
Current
Non-current

Energy derivatives - liabilities

Current
Non-current

e 7202;
Carrying Fair
value walue

,,,,, £m £m
518.0 518.0
316.7 316.7
{1,713.0} {1,716.0)
{8,058.8) {8,597.5)
30.0 30.0
53.7 53.7
{10.7) {10.7}
{179.9) {179.9}
1.9 1.5
120.0 120.0
{20.3) {20.2)
(484.7} {484.7)
3.5 5.5

9.2 9.2

{0.5) {Q.5}
{221.9) L {221.9}

{9,634.8) {10,176.4)

13.4 18.4

11.5 11.5
{21.9) {21.9}
A73y (3.3}

{9,634.1)  {10,175.7)

o _ Group
L 3622
(‘qrr\,«mg rau
vafee value
_fm o Em
513.4 61321
430.7 130.7
{1.065.4; {1,080.0)
{8.286.0} (L0223
3.7 3.7

30.3 30.3

(0.3) 10 3)
{218.3} {218 3)
{9.8) (9.8)
(645.0) (645.0)
4.7 47

o 327.3F 13273}
13,469.3) 12,220.8)
48.1 48 1

27.3 275
S22 2.2)
{9,395.9) {2,147 3
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

o= . _ — _Lompany
.. _ 262 — 2022
Carrying Fair Carming Fair
value value value FEI]
fm £m £ £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 17.6 17.6 115 11.6
Borrowings
Current {1,029.2) {1,030.3) 1367.2) 1567 0)
Non-current - - 462 Q) 147425
Net debt {1,011.6} {1,012.7} (1,017 6) 11,029 6)

The fair value of lgans and other borrowings represents the market value of pubhcly traded debt
instruments or, if in respect of debt not publicly traded, the cost which the Group would incur if it
elected to repay these borrowings before their maturity dates, calculated by discounting future cash
flows at prevailing rates including credit spreads experienced on publicly traded debt instruments.

The fair value of interest rate derivative financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
methodology with reference to discounted estimated future cash flows using observable yield curves.
The fair value of cross-currency interast rate derivatives is determined using discounted cash How
methadology, with the fareign currency legs calculated with reference to observable foreign interest
rate yield curves and the foreign exchange rate as at 31 March. The fair value of the Group’s energy
derivatives is calculated using discounted cash flow analysis, with reference to observable market
energy prices at 31 March.

Fair valuas of other non-current investments, non-current trade and other recewables and non-current
trade and other payabies have been estimated as being materiaily equat to carrying valtue

Derivative transactions expose the Group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned. The Group
has credit protection measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the event of
counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only enters into derivative transactions with
banks of high credit standing [as measured by reputable rating agencies) and also seeks to diversify
exposure such that cancentratian with individual banks is avoided.

In accordance with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’, the financial instruments carried at fair vatue on
the balance shieet have been classified as either level 2 arleve! 3 for fair valuation purposes. Bath
classifications are valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than
guoted prices in active markets. Level 2 instruments are valued using inputs that are observable for the
asset or hability either directly or indirectly The level 3 nstrument valuation relates to CPl-hnked
transactions where inputs are obtained from a fess liguid market. In both cases, valuations have been
obtained by discounting the estimated future cash flows at a rate that reflects cradit risk.

There have been no transfers between level 1, leve! 2 and leve! 3 fair value measurements in the year.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair valua hierarchy levels at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer occurred.
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)

Level 3 derivative financial instruments

Level 3 derivative financial instruments comprise CPl-linked inflation swaps which are traded based an a
spread to liguid RPl inflation markets often referred to as 'the wedge'. As the market for CPl swaps is still

developing, the wedge is not currently observable in a liquid market and as such these swaps have been
classified as level 3 instruments.

Movements in the year to 31 March for assets and liabilities measurad at fair value using level 3
valuation inputs are presented below:

2023 2022
o _fm £m
At 1 April (322.7) (188.21
Net ioss for the period 94.4 (156.4
Settlements . 208 219
At 31 March {2077} {32277

Gains and losses in the period are recognised in the income statement.

The impact (on a post-tax basis) on the income statement of reasonably possible changes in the CP!

inflation rate assumptions used in valuing instruments ciassified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy
are as follows:

2023 2022

B Em £m

Gain/(loss) T
1% increase in inflation rates (143.6} (203.2)
1% decrease in inflation rates ) 1223y 1625

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolic, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent has been used for sansitivity analysis as this
repreésents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
term.

Control of treasury

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer, substantially manages the
financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the Group. Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the
Group. The activities of the treasury function include the following:
- ensure that lenders’ covenants are met
« secure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities

manage interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs
« jnvest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minmimai financial risk
« maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies

enhance control of financial resources

monitor caunterparty credit exposure.
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21.

Financial instruments (continued)
Financing structure

The Group's regulated water and water recycling business, Anglian Water Services Limited, 1s funded
predominately by debt in the form of long-term bonds and other debt instruments through its financing
subsidiary Anglian Water Services Financing Plc. At 31 March 2023, Anghan Water’s net debt to capital
value ratio (net debt as defined in the Common Terms Agreement expressaed as a percentage o

Water’s regulated capital value) was 65.6 per cent {2022: 64.8 per cent).

The Group has also raised finance within the company, and Osprey Acguisitions Limited through its
financing subsidiary Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc.

Borrowing covenants

The Group’s borrowings are raised by the company, Osprey Acquisitions Limited, Anglian Water {Osprey]

Financing Plc and Anglian Water Services Financing Plc. The treasury function monitors compliance !
against all financial obligations and it is the Group’s policy to manage the balance sheet 50 as to ensure

operation within covenant restrictions. There were no covenant hreaches in the year.
Maragement of financial risk

Financial risks faced by the Group include funding, interest rate, contractual, currency, hiquidity and
credit risks. The Group regularly reviews these risks and has approved written policies covering treasury
strategy and the use of financial instruments to manage risks.

A Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, including the Chief Financial Officer and the Groug
Treasurer, meets monthly with the specific remit of reviewing treasury matters. Relevant treasury
matters are reported to the board.

The Group aims to meet its funding requirements primarily through accessing a range of financial
markets such as public bond markets, private placements, bank fcans and finance leases. Surplus cash 15
invested in short-term bank deposits, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, treasury bills and AAA
rated money funds.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions {comprising currency, index-linked, interest rate and
energy swaps) to economically manage the interest, currency and commadity risks to which the Group

is exposed.
Market risk

i) Foreign currency

The Group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very
small purchases in foreign currencies. The Group’s foreign exchange policy allows for a range of hedge
instruments, including forward foreign exchange, swaps and options, to hedge such exposures. All
hedges are undertaken for commercial reasons with the objective of minimising the impact of exchange
rate fluctuations on net assets and profits. The Group has no matenal unhedged monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency different from the local currency of the particular operation and

has no matenal net exposure to movements in currency rates.
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21.  Financial instruments {continued)
a) Market risk [continued)
i} Foreign currency

Where exposures arise out of debt issuances in currencies other than sterling, this risk 1s hedged using
Cross currency interest rate swaps on the date the debt issuance is contracted. The Group assesses the
economic relationship by comparing the currency cash flows an the underlying debt item with the
currency cash flows on the hedge instrument to ensure an exact offset of the specific fereign currency
flows of the debt is achieved. This results in a notienal hedge ratio of one for all foreign currency hedge
relationships. Both cash flow hedge accounting and fair value hedge accounting are applied to manage
foretgn currency risks as appropriate and detailed below.
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21.
a)

i

financial instruments (continued)
Market risk {continued)

Fareign currency

At 31 March 2023

Foreign currency borrowings - hedged item
1Py

usD

CAD

Cross currency interest rate s'wap - cashflow hedge
IPY

uso

CAD

Cross currency interest rate swviap - fair value hedge
IPY

usD

Net currency exposure

wWeighted average spot rate
IpyY
ush
CAD

At 31 March 2022

Farefgn currency borrowings - hedged item
IPY
usD

Cross currency interest rate swap - cashflow hedge
PY
usoD

Cross currency interest rate swap - fair value hedge
iPY

usp

Net currency exposure

Weighted average spot rate

iPY

usD

Within

one
year
m

170.0

110 8)

one and
five years
m

1163}

1308.2)

Between

Setween

five and
25 years
m

14,000 Q
33.0
3300

17.000.0]
(530
[350.0}

17.000 O1

1383

13
Lo

14,000 0
53.0

17,000 0}
1334)

17.000 Q)

1333
13

Group

Total

14,006.0
408.0
350.0

(7,000.0)
{99.8)
{350.0)

{7,000.0)
{308.2)

14,000.0
408.0

(7,000.0}
(99.8}

{7,000.0)
{368.2}
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a}

Financial instruments (continued}
Market risk (continued)

i) Foreign currency {continued)

Hedge ineffectiveness on currency hedging primarity results from situations where we have taken the
economic decision (in line with Treasury policy) to change our fixed and floating portfolio mix. Where
this has required existing hedged positions to be changed, the existing hedge is de-designatad and the
replacement hedge will generate effectiveness. This ineffectiveness regresents the difference between
the amortisation of the effective balance of the hedge on the date of de-designation (released on 2
straight line basis) and the dynamic change in the value of the derivative as it trends to zern. In additian,
ineffectiveness can result from counterparty credit risk {(which is present in the derivative but cannot he
modelled as part of the hedged risk}.

Fair valuaticn movements related to foreign currency basis which forms part of the pricing of cross
currency interest rate swaps, are treated as a cost of hedging for all fareign currency hedge designations
within the Group. As such, it is excluded from hedge relationships and is only a source of ineffectiveness
where hedge accounting has been interrupted.

The changes in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread, accumulated in the cash flow hedging
reserve, are amortised to profit ar loss on a rational basis over the term of the hedging relationship.

i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk

The Graup’s policy for the management of interest rate risk is to achieve a balanced mix of funding at
indexed (ta RPI ar CPI), fixed and floating rates of interast. To guard against the adverse movements in
interest rates having a detrimental impact on the business and to enable covenanted abligations and
credit ratings to be met, the averall underlying debt portfolio is maintained at between 45 and 55 per
cent of RCY for index-linked debt and between 5 per cant and 15 per cent for floating rate debt, with
the remaining being fixed rate. Within these hedging levels, the Group endeavours to obtain the finest
rates {lowest borrowing and finest depositing rates) consistent with ensuring that the refevant treasury
objectives are met in full, i.e. the provision of adequate finance for Anglian Water Services Group at all
times and maintaining security of principal on investments.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at vanable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, which is partially offset by cash neld at variabie rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Treasury manages its
interast rate risk by manitoring market rates in relation to the debt {and investment) portfolios,
analysing the effect of likely movements in interest rates and taking action as deemed appropriate,
within the hedging limits gutlined above.
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21. Financial instruments (continued)

a) Market risk (continued]

iti} Interest rate and inflation rate risk (connnued)
The table below summarises the impact of derivatives on interest rate and inflation risks within the debt

partfolio:
o Cm L. oo _Group
Post Effective
Debt Swap swap interest
position impact pasition rate
. Em . £m o Emo %
At 31 March 2023
Fixed (5.620.9) 13050 {4.115.9) 3.2
Floating (936.7) 1122.8) 11,059.3) 34
Index-linked (3,073.01 {1,722 1} {4,785 1} 141
Leases CoR2rn e 27y 2.6
(9,657.7) (339.9) {9,997.6)
At 31 March 2022
Fixed [5,507.2) 1.504.0 (4,003 2} 4.2
Floating (670.0) 11219} {791.9) 23
ingex-linked {2,974.8) 11,323 7) {4,498 .3) 73
Leases _ 398 _ ____ - (3086} 253
19.182.4) (141 5) {9.324.)

Where exposures arising out of debt issuances are swapped this risk is hedged using cross currency
interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps or inflation swaps. The Group assesses the economic
relationship by comparing the cash flows on the underlying debt instrument with the offsetting cash
flows an the hedge to ensure an exact offset of the specified notional value of the debt is achieved. This
results in a notional hedge ratio of one for all interest rate hedge relationships. Both cash flow hedge
accounting and fair value hedge accounting are applied as appropriate.
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21,

a)

Financial instruments (continued)

Market risk {continued)

ii}) Interest rate and inflation rate risk [continued)

Derivatives that do not gqualify for hedge accounting primarily consist of those relationships which swap

debt into inflation. The table below outlines the Group’s axpesureas to interest rates from derivative

swaps in isolation (excluding offsetting debtit instrument cashflows).

At 31 March 2023
Interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed rate
Floating from fixed rate
Fixed 1o fixed interest rate
swaps

Inflation swaps
Fleating to RPI
Fixed to CPI
Floating to CPI

Cross currency swaps
1PY

UsD

CAD

Totat

At 31 March 2022

Interast rate swaps
Floating to fixed rate
Floating from fixed rate
Fixed {o fixed interest rate
swaps

Inflation swaps
Fixed ta RP!
Floating to RPI
Fixed to CP!
Floating to CP!

Cross currency swaps
JPY

uso

EUR

Total

wWithin
one
vear

JEm_

1105

1105 13287  2,268.2

358

Between
one and
five years
£m

950
731.2

12597

240.3

1,165.3

Between
five and
25 years

£m

450.0
148.3
362.5
2250

565.9
150.4

101.2
401
2248

524.0
2285

481.3

2250
563.9
150.4

101.2
40.1

2,317.4

After 25
years
£m

190.9
106.0

_..2808

190.9
100.0

23G9

ark to
market
£

1.3
(76.1)

(54.3)

(391.0
[165.1)
(42.5)

(16.7}
47.0
(0.3)

(697.6)

{109.0
119.8}

(66.2)

{656.3)
{230.7)
{918}

{19.7)
EAI

{11621}

_ Group

interest rate
(weighted average}

payable receivable
2.8 2.3
2.8 1.8
3.5 17
3.5 3.0
0.9 3.6
0.8 2.8
3.2 s
3.4 35
3.8 45
2.9 0.2
0.6 1.7
3.5 1.7
312 1.1
0.9 3.0
a7 4R
2.1
18 35

JEN]
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21. Financial instruments {continued)
a} Market risk (continued)

ii} Interest rate gnd inflation rote risk {continued)

Hedge ineffectiveness on interest rate hedging primarily results from situations where we have taken
the economic decisions, in line with policy, to change our fixed and floating portfolio mix. Whera this
has required existing hedged pasitions to be changed, the awsting hedge is de-designated and the
replacement hedge will generate ineffectiveness. This ineffectiveness represents the difference
between the amortisation of the aeffective balance of the hedge on the date of de-designation (released
on a straight-line basisj and the dynamic change in the value of the dernvative asit trends to zero. in
addition, ineffectiveness can result from counterparty credit risk lwhich is present in the dervative but
cannot be modelled as part of the hedged risk).

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynaniic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging
derivatives. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined
interest rate shift.

The saensitivity of the Group's profits and equity, including the impact on dervative financial
instruments, to potential changes in interest rates at 31 March s as follows:

. _  _Group
2023 2022
o Em £m
increase/(decreasej in equity
1% increase in interest rates 15.2 20.6
1% decrease in interest rates ey (225
increase/{decrease) in profit before tax
1% increase in interest rates 169.0 2828
1% decrease in interest rates o f217.8y  13705)

Given the long-term matunty of the financial instruments that make up the portiolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
reprasents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a usefut benchmark change in the long
term.

The following assumptions were made in calcufating the inteérest rate sénsitivity analysis:

cash flow and fair value hedge relationships remain effective:
< the main fair value sensitivity 1o interest rates is 1n relation to inflation-hinked dernvatives,
« cash flow sensitivity is calculated on floating interest rate net debt; and

all other factors are held constant.

Debt instruments
The following analysis shows the impact of 2 one per cent change \n RPland a one per cent change In
CPt over the 12-month period to the reporting date an index-linked debt instruments.
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21.

a)

Financial instruments {continued)
Mlarket risk (continued)
ii} Interest rate and inflation rate risk {continued)

The finance cost of the Group's index-linked debt instruments and derivatives varies with changes in
inflation rather than interest rates. These instruments form an economic hedge with the Group’s
revenues and regulatory assets, which are linked to RP! and CPI-H inflatian. inflation risk is reported
monthly to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, which manages inflation risk by identfying
ppportunities to amend the economic hedge cusrently in place where deemed necessary.

The sensitivity at 31 March of the Group’s profit before tax to changes in RP) and CP1 on debt and
derivative instruments is set out in the following tables:

Group
2023 2022
Em £m

Increase/|decrease} in profit before tax
1% increase in inflation (22.8) 122.0)
1% decrease in inflation _z22.8 22.0

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cant has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long

term.
RPI-linked derivatives

The fair values of the Group's RPI-linked derivatives are based on estimated future cash flows,
discounted to the reporting date, and these will be impacted by an increase or decrease in RPl rates as
shown in the following table. The sensitivity to CPI rates has been included in the ievel 3 disctosure and
as such has not been repeated.

N Group
2023 2022
__Em =M

Increase/{decrease) in profit before tax
1% increase in RP! {143.2) {232.7)
1% decrease in RP( 132.3 _19¢.1

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfalio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current envirgnment, one per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
represents a reasonable aiternative market movement. as well as a useful benchmark change in the long

term,
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21. Financial instruments (continued)
a} Market ris' (continued)
iti) Commodity price risk

The Group recovers its electricity costs through revenue, setin real terms by Gfwat, to cover costs for
each five-year regulatory pricing periad. To the externt that electricity prices remain floating over this
period, this exposes the Group to volatility in its operating cash flow.

The Group’s policy is ta manage this risk either through forward purchases to fix the cost of future
blocks of electricity with the contracted energy suppher, through the purchase of wholasale electniaty
swaps with financial counterparties, or through direct generaticn. Where swap contracts are utilised,

the Group designates the swaps in cash flow hedge relationships.

Grqup
Within Between Between

ane one and five and ivlark to

year five years 25 years market

B LMW MW £m
At 21 iMarch 2023

Electricity swap %2y 85 40 07

At 31 March 2022

Electricity swap s 4o 18 735

Hedge ineffectiveness primarily results from counterparty credit risk (which is present in the derivative

but cannot be modelled as part of the hedged risk).

Assuming all energy hedges were in effective hedging refationships, a 10 per cent increase/decrease in
commadity prices would have the following impact:

i Group
2023 2022
£m EmM

Increase/{decrease)} in equity
10% increase in original prices 10.3 119
10% decrease in original prices (10.3}) {11.9]

10 per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this represents a reasonable alternative market

movement, as well as a useful benchmark change.
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21. Financial instruments {continued)
b} Creditrisk

Credit risk arises principally from trading and treasury activities. From a trading perspective. the Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk due to minimising the risk through the effective
manapement of customer relationships and thuough the collateralisation inherent in the licensing of
business retail activities. The Group's largest trade receivable balance is in Anglian Water Services
Limited, whose operating licence prevents the disconnection of water supply to domestic customers
even where bills are unpaid. Irrecoverable debt is taken into consideration as part of the price review
process by Ofwat, and therefore no additional provision is considerad necessary in excess of the
provision for doubtfu! debts included in note 17.

Placements of cash on deposit expose the Group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned.,
The Group has credit protection measures in place within agreements that pravide protection in the
event of counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only places cash depaosits with banks of
upper investment grade {as measured by reputable rating agencies) and aiso seeks to diversify exposure
such that concentration with individual banks is avoided. The credit rating applied to ail counterparties
is reviewed monthly and on an angoing basis.

All cash and cash deposits are held with institutions with a minimum of two short-term ratings of
P1/A1/F1 or higher, or in the case of money market funds with a minimum of two ratings of Aaam
MR1+/AAAM/AAAMMT or higher.

In the case of derivatives, the following table sets cut the Group’s financial assets and liabilities and the
impact of any enforceable master netting arrangaments.

Financial assets and liabilities on different transactions are only reported net if the transactions are with
the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists and the cash flows are intended to be settled on a
net basis. Amounts that do not meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheet but could be settied
net in the event of defauit of either party have been reflected in the offsetting column below.

Group policy requires that transactions are only executed with counterparties which are both (a} from
the lending Group and (b) rated at least A- {long-tarm) or Al (short-term) by Standard & Poor’s,
Moody's or Fitch.

R __ _. Grow
Offsetting
“let amount not
Gross presented in presented in
carrying the balance the kalance et
amounts sheet sheet amount
£m ~ Em £m Em
At 31 March 2023
Derivative financial assets 250.2 250.2 (93.1} 1571
Derivative financial liabilities (947.2) {547 2} 931 {334 1)
At 31 March 2022
Derivative financial assets 1143 1143 184 3 300
Derwvative financial fiabilities ] i1.202.5) {1,202.9) 343 f1.118.9;
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21.

b}

c)

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Gross amounts offset represent equal and opposite transactions with the same counterparties and same
terms an which no setttements are paid. Offsetting not presented in the balance sheet reflacts the
extent to which derivative assets and habilities could be offset with the same counterparty in the event
of counterparty default.

At 31 March, the maximum exposure to credit nsk for the Group is represented by the carrying amaount

of each financial asset in the Group balance sheet:

S . Group

2023 022

fm £Em

Cash and cash eqguivalents 518.0 al3.d
Trade and other receivables 598.3 367 2
Investments - cash depasits 316.7 4307
Derivative financial assets B - 250.2 1143
_ S Company

2023 2022

_ Em _ . Em

Cash and cash equivalents 17.6 iie
0.7 0.3

Trade and other receivables

Capital risk management

The prime responsibility of the Group's treasury function is the efficient and effective management of
financial resources within the Group, i.e. the provision of adequate finance and liquidity at ail times
while maintaining security of principal. This involves focus an efficiency. quality and effective contral to
improve cash flow certainty and profitability. The treasury function will actively seek oppartunities to
raise debt, to reduce the cost of funding and the cost of hedging interest rate and foreign exchange risk
while maintaining a risk-averse pasition in its fiquidity management and in its controi of currency and

interest rate exposures.

Recognising the ievel of gearing in the Group, and the fong-term nature of the Group’s asset base. the
Group 1s primarily funded from the debt caprtal markets. It 15 the Group’s policy to maintamn sufficient
cash and/or borrowing facilities to meet short-term commitments and to provide working capital
support/flexibility in treasury operations in the event of short-term difficulties in the capiral markets.
The treasury team actively maintain a good financial reputation with rating agencies, investars. lenders
and other creditors, and aims 0 maintain the relevant key financial ratios used by the creditrating
agencies to determine the respective credit ratings. The Group does not have any externally imposad

capital requirements.
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21.

d)

Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access
ta different markets and debt instruments. Daily cash management is undertaken to calculate cash
position and dealing requirements, and weekly and monthly cash forecasts are prepared to demonstrate
short/medium-term liquidity, covenant compliance and to inform investment strategy. Regular meetings

are heid with cash forecasters to understand cash variances and challenge latest forecasts. Consolidated
cash forecasts are presented to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group on a monthly basis.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity to cover 12 months’ working capital requirements, and the non-
regulated businesses are run on a cash-gositive basis. Internal policy is to maintain 18 months’ kquidity
in tarms of capital expenditure and operating costs in Anglian Water Services Limited, and to refinance
maturing debt at least three months in advance, to ensure covenant compliance.

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March in respect of
which ail conditions precedent had been met at that date:

- Group
2023 2022
£m £m

Expires:
Within one year 375.0 375.0
Between two and five years 1,255.0 280.0
1,630.0 1,255.0

The Group's borrowing facilities of £1,350.0 million (2022: £975.0 million} comprise Class A debt service
reserve facilities totalling £244.0 million provided by Barclays Bank Plc, HSBC Bank Plc, Sumitome Mitsui
Banking Corporation, JP morgan Chase M.A. and Licyds TSB Bank Plc; a £131.0 million operating and
capital maintenance expenditure reserve facility provided by Barclays Bank Plc, BNP Paribas Plc, Lioyds
TSB Bank Plc and Bank of Nova Scotia; two syndicated toan facilities totalling £875.0 miltion for warking
capital and capital expenditure requirements managed by Barclay Bank Plcin the role of the facility
agent and syndicated to a pooi of relationship banks; a bilateral facility of £50.0 million with MUFG
Bank and a bilateral facility of £50.0 miilion with Bank of China Limited for general caorporate purposes.

Osprey Acquisitions Limited Group’s borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of a syndicated £250.0
million revolving loan facility for general corpaorate requirements provided by National Westminster
Bank Plc and syndicated to certain other banks.

Borrowing facilities at Aigrette Financing Limited Group comprises an additional £30.0 million revolving
foan facility provided by National Westminster Bank Plc.
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2%,

d)

Finarcial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments into

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periad at the balance sheet date. The amaunts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscountad cash flows, including interest payable:

At 31 March 2023
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments (net settled)
Derivative financial instruments (gross settled
outflow)

Derivative financial instruments (gross settled
inflow)

Leases

At 31 March 2022
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments (net settfad)
Derivative financial instruments (grass settled
outflow)

Oerivative financial instruments {(gross settied
inflow)

Leases

(L3418)

Within
cne
year
_Em

(338.5)
{1,915.6)

111.7)
(131.5)

159.5
16.9)

o {2244.3)

{267 8)
(1,203.7)

(64 7)
(10.2)

11.3
(6.7)

Between
one and
five years
£m

(3,403.4)
(403.8)
{189.7j

2090
{20.0)

_13,807.9)
3,802.1)
(323.3)
(273.9)

2993
118.1)

(4,118.2)

Between
five and
25 years

£m

{7.857 2)
(776 7)
{144 0

351.8
(7.3}

(8,693.4)

{7.519.9)
({1,0323)
(180.4)

1312
110.3)
I

_ 3
{8,601.9

After 25
years
£m

(2.802.3]

i194.2)

3.7

{3,000.2)

(2,789 6}

(311 7)

13.8)
13.308.0)

Group
Total
£m

{338.5)
{15,378.5}

{1,386.4)
{765.2)
760.3

(37.9)

1267 8)
{15,315.3)
11,935 1)
146:1.5)
152.0

(38.9)
(17.389.7)
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21. Financial instruments (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 March 2023
Trade and cther payables
Borrowings

At 31 March 2022
Irade and cther payables
Borrowings

22. Provisions

At 1 April 2021

Additional provisions recognised
Unused amounts revarsed
Utilised in the year

At 31 March 2022

Additional provisions recognised
Unused amounts reversed
Utilised in the year

At 31 March 2023

Maturity analysis of total provisions:

Current
Non-current

- - _ Company
Within Between
one one and

year five years Total

- _Em _ Em _Em

(1.6) {1.6)

{1.035.8} {12.8) {1,048.5)

_{LD37.3) (128 (1,0502)

{1.6) {1.6)

(5483 {500.6} 1.048.9)

o 15%99) (5006) {10505}

Group

Onerous Legal and

Leases other  Restructuring Others Total
__ Em £m B £m Im Em
1.6 10.5 0.3 05 129
1.9 0.4 2.3

0.4 {6.4)

) (4.6) 0.3} - {4.9)

74 Q.9 9.9

Q.5 5.7 0.3 7.1
(1.8) - {1.8}

. 2.9 (09 {3.8)
2.1 B.4 0.3 114
I __ Group

2023 2022

£m ~Em

5.8 37

56 8.2

il.2 9.9

Provisions for legal and other claims includes legal claims and potantial poliution fines, all of which are

expected to crystallise over a period of approximately two years. In making these provisions

management use past experience to estimate the expected liability.

The onerous lease pravision is in respect of the asscciated costs for property leases, not included in the

talculation of the ROU asset, where the unavoidable obligations under the contracts excead the

expected economic benefits to be received from them. The provision is discounted and is expected to be

utilised over the next three years.
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22.

23.

Provisions (continued}

Other provisions relate to bonuses and work on treatment plants which are expected to crystallise over

a period of one year.

The Company

The Company has no provisions for liabilities {2022: nane).

Deferred ta::

At 1 Apnil 2021
Charged/{credited) directly to
income statement

Charged directly to other
comprehensive income

At 31 March 2022
Charged/(credited} directiy to
income statement

Charged directly to other
comprehensive income

At 31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
Em

1,271.3

4173

~ 16888

1712

_ 1,860.0

Financial
instruments
£m

{130.8)

182 9)

(258.7)

150

Retirement
benefit

obligation
£m
{0 6)

13.1

57 8

73

203

Tax losses
carried

forward

_ {366.9)

Other
£m
13.1)

04

7.8

Group

Total
£m
1,649.5

{51.9}

1,405.0

The Group has the following deferred tax assets that are not recognised in the financial statements:

Corporate interest restrictions

_ _Group

2022
_Em

52 3

New legisiation was introduced from April 2017, restricting the amount of :nterest that a group can
offset aganst its tax habilities in any year. Any amounts restricted are available to carry forward against

future tax liabilities, so long as the company has the capacity to do s¢. Tha Directors beliave it s

uncertain that the Group will have the capacity to utilise this disallowed interest, and therefore the

Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of these restrictions,

The Company

The Company has no deferred tax (2022: none).
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24,

Met retirement benefit deficit

Pension arrangements for the majority of the company’s UK employees are of the funded defined
benefit type through the AWG Pension Scheme {"AWGPS”} Main section and Hartlepool section {a
defined benefit scheme for the employees of the former Hartlepoco! Water Limited, where the pension
scheme was fransferred on 1 April 2000 which i3 now o seclict ul the AWGPS). The dehined benefit
pension arrangements are closed to new pension accrual with effect from 31 march 2018,

The Company alse manages an unfunded pension arrangement which has been valued by independent
actuaries to take account of the requirements of IAS19 as at 31 March 2023, The provision for unfunded
pension obligations relates to the cost of enhancements of former employees, over and above their
entitlement in the Company’s pension schemes. The majority of these employees ceased their
employment following redundancy programmes principatly between 10 and 20 years ago. These
pension enhancements are pavyable untii the death of these former employees (or their dependants)
and payments are expected to be made over approximately 25 years.

The assets and liabilities relating to the defined benefit scheme for the employees of the former
Hartlepool Water Limited are held in a segregated section of the AWGPS. Hartlepoo! Water Limited was
acquired in Juiy 1997, with trade and assets transferred to Anglian Water on 1 April 2000. However, as
the Trustees assess the funding requirements of the Hartlepool section separately from the rest of
AWGPS, the Hartlepool section has been separately disclosed in the tables below.

Within these schemes, employees are entitled to retirement benefits based on their final salary and
length of service at the time of leaving, or closure of, the schemes, payable on attainment of retirement
age {or earlier death).

On 31 March 2018, following a period of consuitation with representatives of all employees, the defined
benefit sections of the AWGPS (including the Hartlepool section) were closed for future accruals. From 1
April 2018 all employees now have the option to participate in a new high guality defined centribution
scheme which offers an equitable scheme with more flexible benefits.

The Group also has pension obligations to former empioyees through the Maerrison Pension & tife
Assurance Plan ('MPLAP’). In addition, pensions in payment to a number of former employees are
unfunded.

The administration and investment of the pensicn funds are maintained separately from the finances of

the Group.

Full valuations as at 31 March 2020 have been completed for the AWGPS (including the Hartlepoot
section) scheme, and for MPLAP, the results of which have been used as a basis for the 1AS 19 ‘Employee
Benefits’ disclosures as at 31 wiarch 2023.

The Group has a plan in place with the scheme’s trustees to address the funding deficit for the Main
Section of the AWGPS by 2026, through a series of annual deficit recovery contributions.

During the year, the Group contributed £21.7 million (2022: £14.6 mitlion) deficit reduction payments.
There were no deficit reduction payments (2022: none) for the Hartlepool Section due te the funding
position on the funding basis at the 31 March 2020 valuation.

154



Osprey Holdco Limited
Notes to the financial statements {(continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

24.

a}

Met retirement benefit deficit {continued)

Contributio

ns to MPLAP, including an allowance for expenses, were £4.4 million {2022: £8.7 mullion)

during the year.

In the year to 31 March 2024 employers’ contributions are expected to be £nil.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for AWGPS (excluding Hartlepool) 1s 18
years, for the Hartlepool section of AWGPS is 17 years, and for the unfunded scheme 15 LL years.

The Group also operates a number of defined contribution schemes in the UK, and contnbutions ta

these schemes amounted to £20.5 million (2022: £19.1 million}. There is £nil cutstanding balance on the

defined contribution scheme at year end {2022 £nil}

Prinzigal actuarial assumptions

The fiabilities of the Group’s pension schemes have been valued using the projected unit method and

using the following assumptions:

Group
2023 2022
— o %pa __spa
Discount rate a7 27
Inflation rate
RPI 3.4 37
cP 2.9/2.7% 33/31°
Increases to deferred benefits during deferment
RPI 34 37
CPi 2.9/N/AB 32/N/AC
increases to inflation related pensions in payment !
RPi 3.2 35
Pl _L2ONAR BN AT
years ears
Longevity at age 65 for current pensianers {years)
Men 21.9%/21.4 W 223'/218 "
Wamen 23.48/23.9@ 246 /241 ¢
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners {years) -
Men 23.2%1/22.7 2357230 ¢
women 25.8% /2534 260 /255 ¢

[ S

3y

For RPI pension increases capped at 5 per cent per annum.

The life expectancy shown for future pensioners is for those reaching 65 in 2043,

Life expectancies for ‘AWGPS’, "Hartlepool” and ‘Unfunded pensionears’

Life expectancies for 'MPLAP’

As at 31 March 2018 the AWGPS Main and Hartlepaol Sections closed to accrual of benefit
and benefits are no longer linked to future salary therefore a satary increase assumption 1s
no longer required

inflation related assumptions for MPLAP
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24.  Net retirement benefit deficit (continued)
b) Sensitivity analysis

The following table sets out the sensitivity of the liabilities within the schemes to changes in the
financial and demographic assumptions.

Group and Company

Unfunded
Change in AWGPS Hartlepool pensions Total
assumption £m _ _F-"“ . Em &m
At 31 wlarch 2023
Discount rate +/-0.5% pa -68/76 - -2/2 -70/78
Rate af RP! inflation +/-0.5 % pa 57/-38 . 2/-1 39/-57
Life expectancy +/- Lyear 32/-33 - 1/-1 33/-34
At 31 March 2022
Discount rate +/-0.5 % pa -112/127 172 -2/3 -115/132
Rate of RPI inflation +/-0.5% pa 106/-97 /-1 3/-2 110/-100
Life expectancy +/- 1 year 5655 iy 3/2 0 58/58

Changes te market conditions that influence the assumptions above may also have an impact on the
value of the schemes’ investment holdings. The extent to which these are managed is discussed in
section (¢} below. The sensitivities in the table above have been calculated by changing the key
assumption and leaving all others fixed, with the exception of the RPI inflation assumption, which has a
corresponding impact on Consumer Prices Index ('CP{’) inflation, pension increases and salary increases
due to the way the assumptions are derived. These changes in assumptions represent a reasonable
alternative range, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long term.

¢} Risk and risk management

The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes, in common writh the majority of such schemes in the UK,
have a number of areas of risk. These areas of risk, and the ways in which the Group manages them, are
set out below.

The risks are considered below from both a funding perspective (which drives the cash commitments of
the Group} and from an accounting perspective, i.e. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts
recarded in the Group’s financial statements,

Asset volatility

Far the purpose of setting the contribution requirements, the calculatian of the value of the liabilities
uses a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with ailowance for additional return
to be generated from the investment portfolio. Under iAS 19, the defined benefit obligation is caiculated
using a discount rate set with reference to carperate bond yields.

The schemes hold a proportion of their assets in return-seeking funds. The return on these assets may
be volatile and are not correlated to the value of the liabilities. This means that the deficit may be
volatile in the shorter term, which may lead to an increase in the contribution requirements and an
increase in the net defined benefit liability recorded on the balance sheet.
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24,

cj

Net retirement benefit deficit (continued}
Risk and risk management {continued}

The Group believes that return-seeking assets offer an appropriate level of return pver the long-term for
the level of risk that is taken. The schemes’ other assets are well diversified by investingin a range of
asset classes including government bonds and carporate bonds. The allocation to growth assets 1s
manitored to ansure it ramains anoraoriate given the schemes’ long-term objectives.

Change in bond yields

A fall in bond yields increases the value placed on the liabhties for reporting purposes and for setting
the Groupg's contribution requirements. However, in this scenario the schemes’ investment in corporate
and government bonds and liahility-driven investments 1s expected to increase and tharefore offset
some of the increase in the value placed on the liabilities.

Price inflation

The majarity of the schemes’ benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher out-turn inflation will
lead to a higher benefit obligation (althaugh n most cases caps on the level of inflationary increases are
in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). A significant proportion of the schemes’ assets do
not provide a direct hedge against changes in inflation as they are either fixed-interest in nature
(corporate bonds and government bonds), or have an indirect link to inftation (equities).

Life expectancy

The majority of the schemes’ abligations are to provide benefits far the lite of the meamber and, as such,
the schemes'’ liabilities are sensitive to these assumptions, This is particularly significant where the
longer duration and inflation-tinked nature of the payments result in higher sensitivity to changes in fife
expectancy. The schemes do not contain a hedge against increases in future life expectancy.
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24. Net retirement benefit deficit (continued)

d) Amounts recognised in comprehensive income

AWGPS Hartlepool MPLAP pensions
- _Bwo o Em_ Em _ Em
2023
Amounts credited/(charged) to finance costs
Interest income on scheme assets 13.2 0.2 5.9
Interest cost on scheme liabilities L Y N (150 B - ) I o U ) B
plet interest income/(expense) 5.8 0.1 1.5 (1.1)
Amounts credited/(charged) to the income - T
statement .58 ®13 = 15
Amounts credited/(charged) to other
comprehensive income
Return on plan assets {exciuding amounts
included in net interest) (519.2) (3.3} {108.4)
Actuarial losses arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions 439 3 2.3 37.4 95
Experience adjustments oo \rAsy RSy 123
Met charge to other comprehensive income {1548} (1.0} = {5784 72

Unfunded

_ Group

Tatal

£m

{630.9}

508.5
_18ay)

. {2965}
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24,

d)

Net retirement benefit deficii {continued)

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income (continued)

2022

Administration axpenses
fmpact of restriction on surpius
Tatal aperating cradit

Amounts credited/{charged) to finance casts
interest income on scheme assets

Interast cost on scheme hiabilities

Net interest income/(expensea)

Amounts credited/(charged) to the income
statement

Amounts credited/{charged) to other
comprehensive income:
Return an plan assets {excluding amounts
included in net interest)
Actuarial gains arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments
Change arising from minimum funding
requirement
Net {charge)/credit to other camprehensive
income

AWGPS Hartlepool
£ Em
337 0.4
{323 . 94
1.4
14
2905 3.7
77 7 Y3
433
1421 LRy

Unrunaed
NMPLAP pension;
Em £m
1.2 -
_wa -
3
53
ERE) W3
023
(J.4) (2.3
{1J 3 -
305 L5
289 (23
s
ou.7 L2

~ o

L

[ [~

<L
Lot

[E R )
[ R )

59
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24,  Net retirement benefit deficit (continued)

) Armounts recognised in the balance sheet

I el _ .. __ Group_
Unfunded
AWGPS Hartiepool WMPLAP pensions Total
_ .. Em  Em . Emoo o &m0 Em_
2023 ' i
Equities 84.0 - - - 84.0
Corporate ponds 297.1 . . 297.1
Gavernment bonds 1,137 06 - 1,140.3
Property 67.0 - - - 87.0
Alternatives 82.6 - - - 82.6
Pooled LD! investments {with def of LDH) 73.0 - - - 73.0
Derivatives (S04 - - - {50.4)
Repurchases {730.3) - - - {73G.3}
Insurance contract - - 145.0 - 149.0
Cash and cash equivalents 132 - 64 - 1555
Totai assets 1.117.9 0.6 149.4 - 1,267.5
Present value of scheme liabilities {17,"02__9.9) ) - (145.0) S 133.0) {1,211:.9_)
Net penstan surplus _ %80 08 04  {330) 560
Comprising:
Pension schemes with a net surplus, included
in non-current assets 23.0 0.6 0.4 - 39.0
Pension schemes with a net deficit, included
in non-current liabiiities e e 330) 0 {33.0)
33.0 0.5 0.4 {33.0) 56.0
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24,

&)

Net retirement benefit deficit {continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet {continued)

2022

Equities

Corperate bonds

Government bonds

Property

Alternatives

Poaled LD! Investments {with def of LDI)
Derwvativas

Repurchases

PiVs (L)

Pivs (Real Return Fundj
Insurance contract

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
Net pensian surplus

Comprising:

Pension schemes with a net surplus, inciuded

in non-current assets

Pension schemes with a3 net deficit, Included

in non-current liabilities

AWGPS

£

176 6
806.6
1,375 53
80.8
79.3
746
(7.3}
11,2114

2375
1.532.0
{1,416.8)

2152

Hartlepscol
Em

170
o
185
{170}
15

MPLAP
£m

3238
35.0
43.0

12.0

'

I
ea)

T
o
I
AT Ui o~ drodr
L2 ole o

24

ot

Unfunded

pensions

tm

141 8)
{41.3}

Group

Tatai
£m

2091
7016
16130
30.8
91.3
746

(7 3]
11,2118
146

30

23,1
2701
1,305.5
11.678.2%
2273

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property
accupied by. nor other assets used by, the Group. Most of the assets have quoted prices in active
markets, but there are corporate bonds, alternative investments and insurance contracts, which are
unquoted amounting to £235.0 million (2022: £164.4 mullion),
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24, Met retirement benefit deficit (continued)

f) Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

AWGPS
AL 1 April 2021 1.629.7
Interest income on scheme assets 33.6
Administration casts
Employers' contributions 11.6
Benefits paid (65.4)
Intreduction of insured annuitants -
Return on plan assels {excluding interest income) 05
At 31 March 2022 1,632.0
Interest income on scheme assets 43.2
Administration costs
Employers’ contributions 218
Members’ contributions
Benefits paid {59.9)
Introduction of insured annuitants
Return on plan assets {exciuding interest income} {519.2)
At 31 March 2023 1,117.3
g) Reconciliziion of scheme liabilities
AWGPS
—_— — Em —_—
At 1 April 2021 (1,572.5)
Interest cost on scheme iiabilities (32.3)
Benefits paid 66.4
Actuarial gains 1215
At 31 March 2022 {1,416.8)
tnterest cost on scheme liahilities {37.4
Benefits paid 59,5
Actuarial gains 364 .4
Curtailments and settlements e
At 31 March 2023 - (1029.9y

Em

Hartlepool WPLAP
. _Em_ _ _fm
20.2 253.4
0.4 34
10.2)
- 8.7
114y (8.2}
- 6.4
0.7) (10.5)
185 255.0
0.2 5.9
4.3
(0.1) 18.4)
i14.7}
(3.3 1084)
0.6 145.4
Hartlepool MPLAP
_Em _ __fm
{18.3} {258.6)
{0.) 15.3)
14 3.2
S 05 583
(17.0) {202.56)
{C.1) {3.4)
0.1 8.4
2.3 506
87
BRI ¢ LE R

L __ . _ Grouwn
Unfunded

pensions Total
fm _ . _tm
1,903.3

39.4

{0.2)

2.7 26.0

12.7) {(78.7)

6.4

9.3

1,305.5

- 56.2

2.7 28.9

12.7] {71.1}
(14.7)

(630.9)

- 1,267.9

_ ___ Group

Unfunded

pensions Total
o _fm__ __ Em_
(44.8) {1,894.4)
[0.3) {38.9)

2.7 78.7
12 a7
141.8) {1,678 2}
(1.1} {24.0)

2.7 71.1

7.2 424.5
S 7
{33.0) {1,211.8)

The £14.7 millian settlement shown against the Hartlepool section relates to the full buyout of this

section with an insurer which completed in June 2022.
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25.

26.

Share capital

Authorised, issued and fuily paid
54,815,751,651 ordinary shares of £0.0055 each {2021 £0.01 sach)

Group and Company

2023
£m

3015
3015

W22

£m

301
301,

v

There were no maovements in the number of shares allotted, 1ssued and fully paid in either the current

or preceding year.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, dividends of £31.8 million (£0.002 per share) were paid by the

Company to its sote sharehoider, Anglian Water Group Limited {2022 nane).

Hedging reserve

At 1 Aprit

Losses an cash flow energy hedges

Arnounts transferred to the income statement

Gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges

Amaunts transferred to the income statement from discontinuation of cash flow
hedges

Exchange movement on hedging mstruments reiated to debt in cash flow hedges
Deferrad tax movement on cash flow hedges

At 31 mMarch

Cost of hedging resesve

At 1 April

Gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges

Deferred tax movement on cash flow hedges
At 31 March

The hedging reserve represents the cumuiative effective portion of gains and josses arising on the

£m
0.3
1.8
(0.4)
7

_ Group

2072
£m
137 4
64 3
2.9
{344}

111
49 4

(115-3)

20.4

change in fair value of hedging instruments, excluding thase fair value movements identified as costs of

hedging within the specific hedge relationship. The cost of hedging reserve captures the movement in

the fair value of the cost of hedging component.

The Lompany
The Company has no hedging reserve (2022 none}.
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26. Hedging reserve (continued)

The table below provides additional information in refation to the annual movements and cumulative
closing positions on the cash flow hedge reserves.

_ . S - i Group
Anrnual movements Cumulative reserves
Hedge Total hedge Total hedge Deferred tax
Hedged item  ineffectiveness raserves reserves on hedge Total hedge
gain/(loss) gain continuing  discontinued reserves reserves
__£m ) _Em fm fm £m £m
At 31 March 2023
Cash flaw hedge of
interest rate risk {26.1} N - 65.2 (39.2) (63 13.5
At 31 March 2022
Cash flow hedge of
interest rate risk . 1n2 .05 759  {a8®) (&8 203
27. Capital commitments
The Group has a substantial lang-term investment gprogramme within Anglian Water, which includes
expenditure to meet regulatory requirements, shortfalls in performance and condition, and to provide
for new demand and growth. The commitments shown below refiect the value outstanding of orders
placed at 31 March.
777777 - Group
2023 2022
_ _Em _Em
Property, plant and equipment 215.8 112
Intangible assets 283 257
2422 13738

There were no capital commitments relating to the Group’s share of joint ventures.

Tha Company
The Company has no such commitments {2022; none).
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28. Llease arrangements

The Group leases various items of property, plant and eguipment. Right-of-use assets are included
within property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet. further details can be found in note 13.
Lease liabilities are included within borrowings arr the halance sheet, further details can be found in

note 20.

Group
2023 2522
_Em -l
Additions to right-of-use assets 5.1 80
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets {6.5} (5 8i
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets 87.7 69.3
Interest expense on lease liabilities {0.8 (1.2
Expense relating to short-term leases 3.2 2.8
Total cash outflow for leases comprising interest and capital payments (7.2} 114,38

Reconciliation of lease liability
Contractual undiscounted cash flows 37.9 38.9
Effect of discounting U € 1) J R £ - R <3
Lease liability 313 323

The Group leases certain items of plant and equipment, as well as vehicles, und?ar sr;ort—term -Lgasresl At
31 March 2023, the Group had £0. 1million {2022: £0.2 million) outstanding commitments in respect of
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable short-term leases. The Group does not typically
lease low value assets and therefore no maternial costs were incurred individually or in aggregate in

relation to such assets.

Leases as lessor
The Group leases out its investment praperties. During the year to 31 March 2023, rental income of £2.0
million (2022: £1.8 million) was included within revenue.

29, Contingencies

The Campany, as part of the Anglian Water Services financing Group, guarantees unconditionatlly and
irrevocably all the borrowings and derivatives of Anglian Water Sennices Finanang Plc, which at 31
March 2023 amounted to £8,080.1million {2022: £7,709.5 million}. The barrowings of Anglian Water
Services Haldings Limited and Anglian Water Services UK Parent Co Limited are also guaranteed
unconditionally and irrevocabiy by the Company. Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited and Anghan
Water Services UK Parent Co Limited had no outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2023 {2022 Enil).

In April 2020, circa 100 property search companies served proceedings on all the Water and Sewerage
Undertakers in England and Wales, including Anglian Water Services. The claimants assert that
companies — including Anglian Water Services - should have provided certain mformation to the search
companies free of charge pursuant to the Environmental Informaton Regulations. Anghan ‘Water
Services, iIn common with its co-defendants, has filed a robust defence. This s an industry-wide 15sue
and at this stage the Directors consider, based on current lega! advice. that the claim s unhikely to
succeed and, in any event, would not to be maternial to the financial standing of the company. During the
period to 31 March 2023, there has been no change to the Group’s position.
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29.

30.

3.

a)

Contingencies (continued)

Flow to full treatment: Dfwat and the Environment Agency launched industry-wide investigations in
2021 into compliance with conditions of environmental permits. While the final outcome of these

investigations is not yet known, we've provided comprehensive information to both regulators and
rontinue to engage positively with them.

Asis normal for a company of this size and nature, it is subject to a number of other claims, disputes and
litigation. The Directors consider an appropriate position has been taken in reflecting such items in these
financial statements.

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling paity

Osprey Holdco Limitad is a limited tiabifity company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
The Directors consider Anglian Water Group Limited, a company registered in Jersey, to be both the
immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and the controlling party of the group. Anglian Water
Group Limited is itself owned and uitimately controlied by a consortium of investars consisting of the
CPPIB {Hong Kong] Limited, First Sentier Investars, Infinity investmants S.A., Global InfraCo (HKJ €
Limited and Camulodunum Investments Ltd.

Anglian Water Group Limited is the parent company of baoth the smallest and largest group to
consotidate the financial statements of the Company. Copies of the Anglian Water Group Limited
financial statements can be obtained fram the Company Secretary, at the registered address, Lancaster
House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE29 6XU.

Related party transactions
Transactions with shareholders

The consortium of investors owning Anglian Water Group Limited are considered to be related parties of
the Company as they each have the ability to influence the financial and operating policies of both the
Company and the Group.

On 29 May 2018, a loan of £462.0 million, with a maturity date of 29 june 2021 (initially extended to 29
june 2022 and extended further to 29 fune 2023 j and an interest rate of 5.5 per cent, was issued to the
members of the consortium of investors owning Anglian Water Group Limited. At 31 March 2023, the
amount outstanding was £462.0 million {2022: £462.0 million}, with interest of £19.2 million {2022:
£19.2 million} accrued but not paid. During the year, interest of £25.4 miilion (2022: £25.4 mullion]) was
paid in respect of these loan notes.

During the year to 31 March 2023, there were no other transactions (2022: none} with the shareholders.

166



Osprey Holdco Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

31.
b}

Related party transactions {continued)

Transactions with key management

Key management personnel comprise ali the directors and members of the management board during
the year. A scheme is in place to encourage investment in the Group by key management on an
equivalent basis as the consortium of sharebolders. During the year £0.3 million {2022 £0.7 million) was
wnvested by key management, a return of £0.1 mithon (2022: £0.1 million) was earned, and the Group
repaid £nif (2022: £nil) as part of this scheme. At 31 March 2023, £1.8 mullion {2022: £1.2 mullion) was
loaned to the Group by key management under this scheme. At the balance sheet date key
management also heid various bonds issued by the Group totalling £1.8 million (2022; £1.8 miliion),

Remuneration of key management personnel

; Group
2023 2022

£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 6.9 657
Post-employment benefits &5 05
7.4 72

Transactions with joini ventures
The Group’s transactions with its joint ventures are summarised below.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group made gross sales on an arms-length basis of £132
million {2022: £1590.7 million} to the Wave joint venture, and recognised interest receivable of
£1.9million {2022: £1.7 miflion}. At 31 March 2023, the foliowing amounts were due from the Wave joint
venture:
* A £10.7million {2022: £10.7 million} 5.5 per cent medium-term loan repayable on 31 August
2027, or such other date as mutually agreed between the parties, included within
investments in joint ventures;
A £16.7 million (2022: £16.7 millien] ioan at 12 month LIBGR plus 2.75 per cent with na fixed
repayment date, included within trade and other recervables;
A £4.6 million (2022: £15.0 million} shart-term warking capital facility at one month LIBOR
plus 2.75 per cent, included within trade and other receivables:
£4.0 million repayment of Preference Loan. This is the scheduled final repayment of a 5
year loan that was put in place as part of the Wave JV in 2017. Originally, loan amount 15
£20.0 million it has been repaid at £4.0 million for each of the S years thus nil balance as

at 31 March 2023; and
Accrued income of £8.3 million (2022: £4.9 million}, trade receivables of £rul millian (2022

£nil} and interest receivabie of £2.7 million 12022 £1.7 million}, included within trade and

other receivables.
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31.

32,

Related party transactions {continued)
d) Parent company

The Company’s related party transactions are summarised healow:

Interest received from
Subsidiaries

Dividends received from
Subsidiaries

Dividends paid to
Parent company

Trade and other receivables due from
Parent company
Subsidiaries

Trade and other payabies due to
Subsidiaries

Loans and other borrowings due to
Parent company

Alternate performance measures

2023 2022

tm £m

1.9 0.4

120.0 210
{91.8}

2023 2022

. Em_ ___ Em

- 0.1

- 0.2

1.8 16

{548.0) {548.0}

Financial measures or metrics used in this report that are not defined by IFRS are alternative

performance measures. The Group uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide

additional useful information on the performance and position of the Group. Since the Group defines its

own alfternative performance measures, these might not be directly comparable to other companies’

alternative performance measures. These measures are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior

to, IFRS measuraments and have been consistently applied within each year presented in these financial

statements.
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32. Alternate perfarmance measures (continued}
a) EBITDA
Calculated as profit befaore net finance costs, tax, depreciation, and amaortisation to give a measure of
the Company’s overall financial performance Fach element of this APM is shown on the face of the
income statement {page 72).
- Group
2023 2022
.. Em _Em
EBITDA 800.0 7373
Net finance income/(costs) {149.7}% i6d2.6)
Tax charge (64.5) [289.1)
Depreciation & amortisation {(381.7) 1351.1)
Share of joint ventures’ joss after tax {0.4) {2.6)
Profit/{Lass) for the period 203.7 1497 .6}

b) Adjusted finance costs

Calculated as net finance costs excluding fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments.
These fair value gains/{iosses) are volatile, non-cash movements that distort the actual underlying
economic performance (page 72).

Group

2023 2022

o Em  Em

Met Finance costs axcluding fair value gains/(losses] on deri-ative financial instruments {795.0) {527.5)
Fatr value gains/{losses} an derivative financial instruments 545.3 1115.1)
Net Finance costs, including fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments {149.7) (642.6

Group

2023 2022

Em £m

Adjusted loss before tax/Loss before fair value gains/(losses) (375.7} 1930.8])
Tax charge {64.5) 1289 1)
Fair value gains/{losses) on derivative financial instruments 545.3 1113 1)
Share of joint ventures' loss after tax I X {2.56)
Prafit/{loss) for the period z03.7 1187 6)

c) Adjusted profit befare tax/Profit before fair value gains/{losses)

Calculated as profit before tax excluding fair value gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments. The
calculation is shown on the face of the income statement. These fair value gains/{losses) are volatile,
non-cash movements that distort the actual underlying econamic performance [page 72)

b
ay
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32. Alternate performance measures (continued)

d) Net debt

Net debt comprises borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents, and derivatve financial instruments

(excluding those in respect of fair value energy hedges). This measure i1s used because it provides

additional useful information in respect of the financing of the business. See note 18 and below.

Net cash and cash equivaients
Current asset investments
Borrow!ngs

Net gebt excluding derivatives

Derivatives
Less: energy derivatives

Net debt

Group

2023 2022

£m £m
513.0 513.4
316.7 430.7
{9,771.8} {9,351.4)
{8,937.1) (8,307.3}
{697.0) (1,088.6)
{0.7) {73.4)
{9,634.8) (9,469.3)

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group. the day-to-day cperaticn

of the business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this

refationship, the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services

Limited and therefore interestad parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the

Anglian Water Services Limited annual integrated report (AIR}. As such, the alternative performance

measures referenced below refer to Anglian Water Services Limited.

e} Interest cover

Interest cover is the ability of the Company to pay interest of on its outstanding debt out of operating

cash flows. The table below shows the operating cash value less RCV depreciation, compared to the net

interest paid during the year o show the Interest cover

Operating cash
RCV run off

interest cash

Net interest (income)/costs excluded under CTA

interest cover

Group

2023 2022
Em  _ fm
710.89 7489
{423.5)  (413.dy
287.4 3365
{184.8) {220.9)
(0.6 179
1.6 1.7
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32. Alternate performance measures {continued}

f) Capital investment
Capital investment is the total property, plant. and equipment, and intangibles additions less capitalized
interest, adopted assets, and capital additions in the non-appointed business. This s used as a measure

to help us monitor haw we are achieving our Business Plan commitments

. Grous
2023 022
o £m o £m
Property, plant and equipment additions 7334 3723
Intangible assets addition 823 621
Capitalised interest {40.8} {16.7)
Adopted assets {45.0) {39.2)
Nen-appointed business {1.4) (0.9}
Items shown as stock {2.5]
Capital investment 7250 3777
g) Free cash flow
Free cash flow is used in determining cash conversion and is calculated as cash from cperating
activities, less net interast of cash deposits, less capital maintenance.
Group
2023 21022
. &fm  _Em
Operating cash 710.9 7499
Interest on cash (124 5) (220.9)
Less: net interest {income)/costs excluded under CTA (0.6} 179
Capital maintenance {326.2} {269.2)
199.5 2777

Free cash flow

33. Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no events between the balance sheet date, and the date on which the financial
statements were approved by the Board, which would reguire adjustment to the financial statements or

any additiona! disclfosures.
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34,

Group undertakings

The Group's subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2023 are shown below. Unless otherwise disclosed, all
subsidiary undertakings are incorporated in the UK, are 100 per cent owned. and with a share class of

ordinary shares.

Owned directlv by Osprey Holdco Limited
Anglian Venture Holdings Limited
Morrisen Limited

Osprey Acquisitions Limited

All subsidiary undertakings
Aigrette Financing Limited
Aigrette Financing (Issuer) Plc
Alexander Morrison Limited
Alpheus Envirenmental Limited
Ambury Developments Limited
Anglian Venture Holdings Limited
Angiian Water {ireland) Limited
Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Pic
Anglian Water Direct Limited
Anglian Water Facilities Management Haldings (UK} Limited
Anglian Water International Holdings Limited
Anglian Water Internaticnal Limited
Anglian Water Services Financing Plc
Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
Anglian Water Services Limited
Anglian Water Services UK Parent Co timited
AVH Parks Limited (formerly AWG Utilities Limitad)
AVH Solar Limited
AW Creative Technclogies Limited
AWG (UK) Holdings Limited
AWG Business Centres Limited
AWG C4 Limited
AWG Central Services Limited
AWG Corporate Services Limited
AWG Group Limited
AWG Land Holdings Limited
AWG Outlet Centers Limited
AWG Parent Co Limited
AWG Property Developments {Ireland) Limitad
AWG Property Director Limited
AWG Property Limited
AWG Property Solutions Limited
AWG Residential Limited
AWG Shelf 11 Limited

Registerad

office

Percentage

nolding

o) o W )

'Y
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34. Group undertakings (continued)

Registerad Parcentage
office nolding
All subsidiary undertakings (continued)
Cambusiang Retail Portfolio Limited b
Chester {1995) Limited
CS Amenities Lirmiied
DMWS 819 timited
DMWS 822 Linmited
DMWS 823 timited
DMWS 824 LiP '
Edmund Homes Limited
Graham Street Airdrie Retail Portfolio Limiteda
H2GO Limited
Macrocom (743} Limited
Morrison {Oldco) Limited
Morrison Glosha Limited

97 %

o

[

o w o o g o

Morrison Holdings Limited
Morrison Internationai Limited

W o oW o o o w

Morrison Property Invastments Limited

w

Osprey Acqursitions Limited
Ospray Investco Limited 3
539 39%

o

Rutland Insurance Limited
Valuetype Limited

Wave Environmeantal Limited
Wave Holdings Limited
Wave Utilities Limited

Wave Water Limitad

o O 9w W

2%
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34. Group undertakings (continucd)

Registerad Percentage
office holding
loint ventures
Anglian Water Business (National) Limited f 0%
AWUG Lutlets (HRathdownay) Limited c 50%
Cambridge 4 LLP 3 50%
City Road Properties (Chester) Limited a 50%
Crowwood Grange Estates Limited b 50%
Hollowstone Limited a 50%
Kings Waterfront Praperties Limited a 30%
Morriscn Gwent Limited a 50%
Marrison Leneghan [RL Limited o 50%
Maorrison Properties Limited b 50%
Morrison Residential Properties Limited b 50%
NWG Businass Limited f 0%
Rathdowney Shopping Centre Management Company Limited c 30%
NVB Rathdowney Limited c 0%
Wave Ltd f 0%

Spreevale Limiteg '?

‘1 The principal place of business of these companies is the same as the registered office address.
2" Dissolved on 10 April 2022

Registered offices

a) Lancaster House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire, PE29 6XU,
United Kingdom.

b) ¢/o Brodies LLP, Capital Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh EH3 8BP.

c) Suite 8, Northwood House, Northwood Business Campus, Santry, Dublin 9, Ireland.

d) 6th Floor, Southbank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4, ireland.

e) PO Box 33, Dorey Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY1 4AT. Guernsey, Channel Islands
f)  Nerthumbria House, Abbey Road, Pity Me, Durham, DH1 5F), Urited Kingdom.

For all companies, the registerad office is located in the country of incorporation.

Under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006, Osprey Holdco Limited gives a parent company
guarantee in respect of all outstanding liabiiities as at 31 March 2023, until the liabilities ar= satisfied in
full, for the following subsidiary companies. Under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the
following subsidiaries are therefore exempt from the requirements relating t¢ the audit of individual

accounts.
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34.

Group undertakings {continued)

Subsidiary undertakings guaranteed by Osprey Holdco Limited

Alexander Marrison Limited
Alpheus Environmental Limited
Ambury Deveiopments Limited
Anglian Venture Hoidings Limited
Anglian Water Direct Limited
Anglian Water International Holdings Limited
Anglian Water international Limited
AW Creative Technologies Limited
AWG (UK) Holdings Limited

AWG Business Centres Limited
AWG C4 Limited

AWG Central Services Limited

AWG Group Limited

AWG Land Holdings Limited

AWG Parent Co Limited

AWG Property Limited

AWG Residential Limited

AWG Shelf 11 Limited

AVH Parks Limited

AVH Solar Limited

CWRP Relocation Limited

Graham Street Airdrie Retaii Portfoho Limited
Macrocom {743) Limited

Maorrison International Limited
Morrisan Limited

OHL Land Holdings Limited

OHL Property Hotdings Limited
Tide Services Limited

Valuetype Limited

Wave Water Limited

Marrison (Oldco) Limited

SC038867
02499491
04173903
06420222
03306995
020247869
02729389
03286074
05441805
05844645
11787247
04172712
02366618
04530863
(3936645
SC067190
SC082292
SC115080
10177651
14271777
12215644
SC271032
5C228103
SC120552
04700725
12185958
11782560
11145202
02559548
02702745

SC172855

175



Independent auditor’s repcrt to the members of Osprey Holdco Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

« the financai statements of Osprey Boldco Lmitzd 1n=
a lrus and fair viaw of the state of the graup’s and of =n
the group's profit for the vear then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been proparly preparad n accordarcs witr Urit2d <rgdom adoptsd
imternational accounting standards and internatona Financal Raportirg Stardards FR3s) 335 s3ued oy e
International Accounting Standards Board (1A58),

« the parent company financial statements have beer oroperly oraparsd in accordance witn Lo taad Gradom
adopted international accounting standards and as appli=d in accordance amn the prsyisions af the Jamrpari=3
Act 2006; and

- the financal statements have been prapared In accordanca with the ~eguirements of the Zomoanes 2ot 2206

ar=2nt 22maar

N
8,
=

wWe have audited the financial statements which comprise

= the group income statement;

+ the group statement of comprehensive iIncome:

« the group and company balance sheerts,

« the group and company statements of changes In 2quimy,
= the group and company cash flow statement; and

= thereiated notes 1 to 34

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 0 their praparation s aophcable law and Unitad Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and, as regards the garent company financal statements, 3s appvad r
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

wWe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards or Auduing 1UK) 15325 (U< and agpacabla 'aw
Cur responsibiities under those standards are furthar described in the auditor's rasponsitilings ror tne audit or o
financial statements section of our report

M

We are independent of the group and the parent company :» accordance Wwitn e 2thica raquiremanris [Oat ara
relevant to our audit of the financial statements In the e nzisding the Fnascal Regarming Zounal 5, e PRI
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsioli.es in 3Ccor2ancs with ese raguiramants. v
pelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approoriate (o prov:de 3 basis for our IpIre~

Conclusions relating to going concern
in auditing the financial statements. we nave concludad that the Diractars use 2F th2 gang Corcare 033 C
accounting 1n the preparation of the financial statements -3 agpropnata

Cur avaluation of the Directors’ assessment of tha Iroug 5 3070 042Nt T3MEar, 3 30ilhy 1o tonurm s 11 3ot ve
going concern hasis of accounting included:
. Jnderstanding Alanagemant’s process to mod=2 tn2 meacT 3 gomng Cotvert and 3Zre2ing 723,377 1303



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Osprey Holdce Limited
(continued)

- points m the rodel to supporting documeantat on

. Assessing the sophisncaucr of the model used D or2par2 e forocasts, ERTE T
rhose forecasts and 3352551ng the “Istoncal accuragy of 7oratasts prepara

. As3e55iNg tha 3Ssumpions wsed n 2stablishing MWanad2meant 5 Sase T
assumpiions (o irdependent Jata sourcas wher2 ral2vant,

. Fvaluating hgurdity, includemg 0 the scarand whara fatur2 inarciag -5 -25treied

4 Evaluating the extarnal finanding 1o 2stanhsh and 355255 1N COYENANT 720U r2mants 3tTarad T3 s rrss 57 g,

. As3e33mng the amount of headraom o tha “orecasts 12357 3M 1 20v2rant; L 4 d

. Evaluating tne sansitivity 3nawss roludirg doa e 5.3 10 r2fiadl T2 m3acrD 200raTe 13T 1T 35
prepared by Maragemeanrt,

Basad on ihe work w2 have performed. we have nor wder-fi2d 30y mat2c 3l anceaint2s 720303 1 2.2 37

sonditions that, indeadually ar collactiveiy, may 2330 31gniMtart douDt 50 102 2roup 5 and 2ar2nt 2ompan, § 3ty
1D continue as a going concern for a penad of at «@ast TH2N2 MONtRs oM when e fnarc 3l sTararmanrs 3ra
aurnorised forissue

Dur responsibilines and the rasp0nsbiimies of The DIP2Ciors Mt raspect 0 30Ing Jorc2re a7 desinp2t n rha

relevant sections of this repore

Other information

The other information comarises tha informanon inc.udad 17 18 annLal £2000T 3Th20 TNan the Sraniial 31372marts
30 our auditor’s report theragr The Diraciors 378 ~230005.012 100 02 1n2r nformangn 2i7ianed pm s 1o
irnual report Our opirion on the finandial stataments J025 ToT 23,37 W02 2INar iIrfoymalon and 21207 73 772
axtent otherwise axplicitly stated in our report, we do nat 2xor25s any form 2f 355u7ance Zonclus.on tnaraon

Dur responsibility is to read the other .nformation and 1 d0ing 50 consider synarhe” tha ather ATOrMator 1
waterally incons.stent arth the financial statements or Jur <rowl2dge octan2d 'n o the Course 37 Tre audr or
Jtherwise appears 1o be marerally misstared If we rdanhiy 3uch Mararal nIidnisiens DF 3D0AF2NT MAater-3

misstatements, we are reguirea to determing whether RIS Z025 152 10 3 Ma3teral misstaiement 7 72 Wn3ncg
statements themsalves |f pased on the work we have performed. w2 corclude that rher2 1 3 rmateny
misstatement of this other .nformation, we are reguirad £0 r200rr 03t fact

YWe have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Directors

A5 axplained maore fully 10 tha Diractors’ R=Ssponsisim 25 sTI2mMant, Ine Jiraifors 309 20 onsitd I

oreparat on of the Rnanciar staterrants ard for D2ng 537050 23 thar a2,

nternal cortral as tne DIracIors Jetarmire o3 Necassas, T 27a0lE U Dragarat or O Frarcoal snatemmaars thar ars
fraa from materal misstatemeant, whavthar due o fraud or =r7ar

i prepganng the Tinandal sfatements rae O

Tampany 5 abhity T Continue 33 3 20INE CONCATT
131ng the going oncarn asis of 3ccount
zompany or 1o cease operations. ar bave ~o reals
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Osprey Holdce Limited
(continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

2ur objectives are to obtamn reasonable assurance about wnether the financ-ai starzments 35 3 who2 ar2
materal misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and o 1ssue an auditor's r=port that Acludes our 90N on
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 15 70T 3 guaranie2 that an aud.? conducted v accordancs
~NIth 1SAs {UK) wil always detect a2 matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstataments Zar arse fram frawd o
2rror and are consdered matenal f, individually or in the aggregate, they “owd r23s0nat.y be 2«wect2i o
in‘luence the aconomic decisions of users takan on the basis of these financia' statamants

a further description of our responsibilities for the audit ot the financial statamanrs S 1xcarad 2n ths FRO; weosine
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespansibilities. This description rorms part of our auditor s regort

Extent to which Lthe audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws ard ragulatiors A2 design proceduras 0
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect matarial misstatements in raspect of irregulanities, incluading
fraud. The extent to which our orocedures are capable of detectung rregulanties. including fraud is deta:led below

W2 considerad the naturz of the group's industry and its contrel enaranmari, 3nd 2a2wed tha 570L0 :
documentation of ther policies and procedures relating to fraud and comphance with iaws and regulatnons. We aiso
enguired of Management, internal audit, Audit Commuittes and the Directors about their 2wn identidficanior ana

assessment of the risks of irregulanties, including those that are specific 1o the group’s DusSINess 33CTar

Wwe obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory rrameworks that the group operaras . and denrnifizg

rhe key laws and regulations that:

+ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures In fhe financial statements Thes
inctuded UK Companias Act, Environmental Agency raguiations, pensions legislation and tax legistation, ard

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but comphiance with which may be fundamertal o the
group’s ability to operate or to avoid 3 material penalty

[y 7]

e discussed among the audit engagement team and ~2levant intarra: spec:alists such 35 T3x, TIirandial nstrumant
valuations, pensions and 1T specialists regarding the opportunities and ncentiyas that may 2xI5T within r2
arganisation for fraud and how and whers fraud might occur -~ the finarcial statemenis

A3 a result of performing the above, we dentified the zrearast potential for fraud 'n tha Mllowing ar2as. and our
procedures performed to addrass them are described below
In addressing the sk of fraud through bad debt provisioning, we

» gbtained an understanding of relevant controls within the bad 2201 proyisor 23Umanion orocass,

« utilised data anaiytics to perform a recalculation of debtor ageing ¢ s2nfy, the accuracy 21 ~formanor
within the aged debt report in order to assess whether Zustomers 372 accuritahy, -3tegors2d cased oo
information within Management 5 financial r2parming 5,3t2m;

+ challenged the base bad debt provision by agra=img tha r2covarat ity assumaTons 10 tdsr colecoon rate,
and tested the mechanical accuracy of the calculation:

«  3ssessed whether any giscrepancies exist Detwaen th2 provision 720080520 ard m

woparted oy otk

wi

2
macra-economic indicators that may impact the abimt, of fustom2rs 1o mak2 S3,meris,
=3
=

+  3ssessed whether tha provision has oeen calculated o o ne air the gol oy
‘Financial Instruments  and

Sre IDS L
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Osprey Holdco Limited
(continued)

+assessad the accuracy and Zomolerzress of th2 Z3sr loil2ct or mends uied 0 Th2 20Su500 raTE 3Ty arae
by reconcihng oilling and SAP Jata and Testsd 2 3302 D7 2330 1280000, 000N A.reg rhn 250 174 2010

penad end

N addressing the risk of fraud in respect of the 'naocropnate Zapitl 3ation 07 23575, W,
+ obtained an wurdarstanding of and tested c2i=vd0T CONITE 37GLnd T2 21353

axpensditure. and

'n common with all gudits under 1SAs (UY), we ars 350 ~23u rad 13 08710 m 308270 pracadursas 1o r230003 10 ne
risk of managemeant override 10 addrassing the ris< of faud trougn managsement Su2ari 42 3 2arTrdls we

the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments, assassad wheiher the judgemants nade ~ ~aking
acCcounting estimates are indicative Of 3 potental g;ias. and 2valuatad the pusme ra2 3t an, ngnihciar

Transactions that ars unusual or Jutside the Nermal Tou<se 3f dusness

' 3ddition to the above. our procedures to respond 12 tn2 7 sks dernfed rc Lde e fohow ng
- reviewing finarcial statement disclosures by 25t ng © upPArting JOCLMANTEN0T T 353855 SOMS ance M
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Independent auditor’s report to the members

(continued)

W2 nave nothing ta r2part in r2350800 21 these mattars

Use of our report
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K3tz Hadley (Senior statutory aucitor:

“or and on benaif of Deloitre _LP
Statutory Auditor
Sirmingham, ‘unitea Kingdom
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